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Who we are
Cood, value, great values

We are a leading financial services provider and a mutual, employing over
6,200 people. We have 5.8 million customers, of whom 1.1 million are

our members. Our customers hold a variety of products with us including
insurance, investment and retirement solutions, which are available directly
from us and through IFAs, brokers and our partners.

Mutuality goes back to the early days of insurance, when pecple paidinto a
fund to share the risk. The benefit then weni back Lo the people who needed it.
Today we are a very modern mutual, but the principles remain the same, ang
we still exist to create value for our members.

We have spent the last decade transforming LV= into the successful mutual
we are today, a husiness with a special place in the financial services market.
We have built a strong and well-respected reputation and coupled with our
values and longer-term view we believe we have an important role to play in
people’'s lives.

We are externally recognised for offering an excellent level of customer service.

According to YouGov we are the UK's most recommended insurer and we are
rated the number one insurer for customer satisfaction by the UX Institute of
Customer Service.

-

We have a proven track record in increasing member value, consistentiy
delivering strong investment returns. We have £16.9 biltion of assets on our
balance sheet and are rated at ‘BBB+' for our financial strength by ratings
agency, Standard and Poors.

We are a modern mutual and committed to the ethos on which we were
founded: values of trust, ownership and joint benefit,
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2016
highlights
£20m

Cperating profit from
trading operations, including the
impact of the Ogden rate change*

£(49m

Group loss before tax**

£1/m

Mutual bonus

£113m

General insurance
operating profit, excluding the
impact of the Ogden rate change*

(1%

Brand awareness

6,200

Employees

* See explanation for Ogden rate change on page 28.
** See definition for profit/{loss) before tax on page 29.

£159m

Operating profit from
trading operations, excluding the
impact of the Ogden rate change*

140%

Solvency Il
Capital Coverage Ratio

14.5%

With-profits
investment performance

£45m

Life
operating profit

0.4m

Policies in-force

83%

Employee engagement




- Good, value, great values
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Our members, at the heart of what we do

LV=is a modern and leading financial mutual. We were
established in 1843 to help families provide for their
dependants and protect their cherished possessions.

LV= still has this aim at the heart of its business today.

We are owned by, and run for, the benefit of our They have voting rights and can expect to

members and are therefore different from other influence the key decisions in the Society.

organisauons which may be owned by shareholders,

employees, private equity groups or Government. We look after 1.1 million members holding

We believe this difference is important in serving 1.7 million qualifying products. With-profits

our customers, engaging with employees and to policyholders account for around 36% of
f‘ \""-\“ fulfil our primary goal of creating long-term value our membership.

for our members.

Qur members are customers who have certain
1 1 tonger-term financial products with us, such as
* life insurance, protection, investment or

m l I I | O n retirement policies.

members

£130m

The total mutual
bonus allocated
by LV= since 2011

Number of
Members
1,088,693
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With-profits fund
investment return




Our Members 7

Returning value to our with-profits members

We have returned good value to our with-profits members in 2016 through:

+ The investment return achieved on their policies. The main LVFS with-profits fund continued to deliver
good relative performance for our with-profits members with an absolute performance during 2016 of
14.5%, which is 1.0% below the markel benchmark of 15.5%. Performance has been above benchmark
in four of the last five years, with the cumulative investment return over this five year period 6.2% above
benchmark at 61.6%.

+ Eliglble members received the LV= mutual bonus. For 2016 this amounts to a 0.5% enhancement to
the eligible policies’ asset shares (£17 million in total).

+ The payouts on policies maturing during the year. These compare well against competitors, with eleven
out of twelve of our benchmarked payouts above market average and top quartile in ten out of twelve
cases. Further details can be found on page 47.

Mutual bonus

The L¥= mutual bonus was introduced in 2011 and rewards eligible members for their continued
investment in the Society (see Business Model on page 27). The LV= board considers the financial
performance of the LV= trading businesses each year along with its current and projected financial and
capital strength to determine whether, at what level, and in what form, any mutual bonus should be
declared, and which members should be eligible to receive it. Most eligible members will receive the
mutual bonus when their with-profits policy matures or is cashed in. The LvV= mutual! bonus is not

a guaranteed benefit and is at the sole discretion of the LV= board.

Our performance in 2016 has enabled us to allocate a discretionary mutual bonus of £17 million {2015:
£27 miliion}, We have applied the mutual bonus by enhancing the asset share of relevant policies. The
0.5% enhancement to eligible policies' asset shares has been reduced (2015: 1%) to reflect our lower
operating profit and reduced capital strength.

Since the launch of the mutual bonus in 2011, LV= has allocated a total mutual bonus of £130 million
to eligible member policies.

With-profits policyholders’ bonuses

In addition to the LV= mutual bonus, we added £149 million {2015: £113 million) of bonuses to members’
with-profits policies during 2016. The increase is driven by bonuses paid to the policyholders of the
recently acquired Teachers Assurance fund of £30 million.

We manage our with-profits fund and set bonus rates with the aim of being fair to all policyholders invested
in the fund. When we decide bonus rates we need to consider the policyholders who will remain in the fund
as well as those whose policies mature or are surrendered. We also need to maintain the strength of the
fund and protect the long-term interests of all our current and future members.
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Favourable payouts relative to the market
We are proud of the consistently high relative payouts our members receive on the investments they have with LV=.

The table below shows the comparative position for representative conventional with-profits (CWP) and unitised with-profits (UWP)
policies invested in the main LVFS with-profits fund.

Upper
Quartile

Annuatised Annualised { Industry
relurn on Average RPI | savingsrate | Annualised
pokicy over term?2 over ferm3 Returm*

Product and term (years)

OB Endowment

\e
£50 p.my. 10 uwp £8,101 5.9% 2.7% 0.3% 4.1%
Age at entry: 30
15 uwp £15,028 6.5% 2.9% 1.0% 5.3%
20 CwpP £22,658 6.0% 2.7% 1.6% 5.4%
25 cwp £37,282 6.6% 2. 7% 2.1% 6.2%
30 Cwp £65,623 7.64 3.3% 2.8% -
IB Whole of Life
20 Cwp £6,014 8.4% 2.7% 1.6% -
£10p.m.
Age at entry' 55
25 Cwp 16,602 5.8% 2.7% 21% -
30 CwWP £8,570 5.3% 3.3% 2.8% -
Bond
',
£10,000 10 uwp £18,628 6.4% 2.7% 0.2% 4.8%
Pension (regular)
[}
£200p.m. 5 uwp £15,234 9.5% 2.0% 0.2% 7.2%
Retiring at 65
10 uwp £37,050 8.4% 2.7% 0.3% 6.6%
15 Uwp 166,326 7.7% 2.9% 1.0% 6.9%
20 Cwp £99,193 6.8% 2.7% 1.6% 5.7%
Pension (single)
£10.000 5 uwp £15,749 9.5% 2.0% 0.2% 7.3%
Retiring at 65
10 UWP £19,513 6.9% 2% 0.2% 5.4%
15 uwp 122,885 5.7% 2.9% 1.5% 5.7%
LAY
1, Timg oy g wWhsaf poned on cat ity ors oI w0 TR S e al D MR 1207, 13 and Q5 T s e taantie po L mewt g are the el 11 nanth g peas | e
v Thae e s, shew
2. TR= RPES Jres arm moyr s 7 rrthe 8 0 INs' 1 ST
SORPIE e mep 8 raten mre worLed By s BL L Ty G0 ST Ty 2017,
A The Lpper Quarti'e I ostry Kot e oo Reture 7 36 A0 T Ranfre o Th ) f pegme ) pant perfUrinanee Maray MRl Ca0Ient SLrvey s, VPRRT B Lot bedtistiy A, ie ' werd Ret fon i
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Member supi:ort in action

r’"‘"“ Good, value, great values

7 am so proud, to
be a member of
such an honourable
azgan/'mf/bn.
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‘Personally I think
the Hub is great, and.
valuabte. T read alf
the information and
answers with interest
ard I am educated a

&it more.’

Barbara Rouse, Liverpool

What it means to be a member

We can operate our business differently from privately-owned organisations, because we are not
beholden to external shareholders. Instead we can focus on doing what is right o sustain and grow
LV= and generate value for our members today and in the long-term,

One member, one vote

As owners of the Society, alt our members are entitled to vote on key matters affecting the business.

This invariably relates to the etection of our board directors and the approval of our financial accounts but
from time-to-time this might involve casting a vote on changes to our rules. Members cast their vote at any
Annual or Special General Meeting we convene. These meetings are also a platform for members to ask
questions of our board of directors.

An open dialogue with members

Although we do not answer to shareholders we are accountable to our members. The LV= Member Panel
is a group of around 40 members who represent a cross-section of our membership and challenge our
performance and what we do. They meet with our board, executives and senior leaders twice a year.

It is a great platform for us to understand what members think and feel about how we do things,

We developed and set up the Member Panel Hub in 2016 so that the panel can stay in touch with news
throughout the year and comment on developments and changes via posts and online forums,

The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee approved the appointment of three new panellists
during the year who attended their first meeting in November 2016.

AGM donation charity .

Every year we donate an amount to charity that is raised through the number of AGM votes we receive.
Depending on the overall turnout we pledge to donate between £15,000 and £25,000 to a charity
nominated by a member who casts a vote, In 2016 The RNL| was selected to benefit from our donation.
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£1.3 million

for member benefits

Life Education
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“Where words fail, music speais”

Lifeboats
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Free and exclusive member benefits

As well as a mutual bonus for eligible members, members also get access to a range of additional
benefits. In 2016 we invested £1.3 million to allow our members to use these benefits or
save money.

Telephone support and advice

The Member Care Line offers three very different services. Members can get free and confidential legal
advice, ranging from how to challenge a parking ticket to advice on how to resolve a neighbourhood
dispute. Thousands of members have found this facility extremely useful and reassunng. The Care Line
also allows members to speak to medical staff if they are worried about a health condition and they can
even talk to a counsellor if they are experiencing emotional distress, and need a sympathetic ear.

A financial boost at a difficult time

The Member Support Fund provides grants to members in fnancnal hardshrp and has helped hundreds
of members get back on their feet in times of financial difficulty. Applications for financial support are
reviewed by a small committee of LV= members who approve requests. We understand that people can
face adversity, through no fault of their own, so this fund is especially significant in giving members a
boost when they need it most.

Supporting local communities

We already do a tremendous amount for our local communities and causes that our employees are keen
to support. The aim of the Member Community Fund is to give back to good causes that are important to
our members. This fund allows members to put forward a charity, organisation or an individual to receive
£10,000 in order for us to make a significant and lasting difference. So far we have helped community
centres, homeless shelters and individuals make a change for the better. Any member can nominate
something or someone that is important to them.

Member discounts

Another financial reward which is available to members is discounts on the majority of our general
insurance products, Members can save {rom 5-10% on their insurance premiums if they take out car,
home, pet, travel, caravan, motorcycle or classic car insurance.
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Overview

The following pages outline our performance
during 2016 and give a review of our
business areas and ocur strategy.

We have chosen to observe the requirement
of the Department for Business Innovation
Skills (BIS) narrative reporting regulations,
which requires the preparation of a strategic
report, even though we are not formally
required to do this.
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Key Performance Indicators

Our key performance indicators for 2016 were chosen
to measure performance against our goal of growing
member value, and our vision of being Britain's best
loved insurer.

Our board also assesses progress against our strategic agenda, the way we manage risks plus a

range of other financial and qualitative measures covering the significant aspects of our business. Cur
operating profit KP| now reffects operating profit from rading operations, which excludes heritage to atlow
management to specifically monitor the performance of our active trading operations.

Additional performance indicators are reported in the individual business sections of this report.

Further targets for 2017 will be developed alongside the new strategy.

Kb aymit Lt .
v Teum g o - \l»qct'
L VYUY PPy .

Britain's best loved insurer

To be Britain's best loved insurer Staff engagement

Expianation of measure Explanation of measure
We use a combination of surveys 10 assess our performance Our people are a major differentiator for LV= and are crucial
against our vision to be Brntain's best loved insurer. to delivering our best loved vision So it is important they

are engaged with the work we do.
2016 Target )

To be one of the best loved insurers by continuing to rank in the 2016 Target
top five for relevant opimion surveys and delivering excellent Focus on retzining engagement scores at or above the UK tugh
customer service levels whiist consistently treating the performing orgarmisations norm of 83% as defined by Withs
customer faurly. Towers Watson, a global HR consultancy.
Performance Performance
15 UKbestioved € 83y V¥
2015: 1" 2014; 2~ oe ngagem e nt
UK LV= engagement 2016: Ba%
customer
satisfaction S

index of .
nsurance 2015: 2nd

companies:  2014:1st

LV= engagement 2015: 86%

2016: 90%
2015:83%
2014: 80%

UK high parforming crganieations norm 2045: &1%

YouGov: Vo<t recomrmended General nsurance LV= engagement 2014: £5%
Insurer customers very/
extremely satished

E LTI T AT

Commentary

In an independent survey by Research Now of 1,796 customers Commentary

in the insurance industry, LV= was voted best loved by more of Despite a marginal drop since 2015, LV= has continued to

our customers than other brands surveyed. demonstrate strong levels of staff engagement, matching
i these of igh performing orgamsations, and exceeding those

As well as the results of opinion surveys our best loved of UK financial services organisations norm by 7%.

vision is demonstrated through the many awards LV=

has won during the year including the Moneywise ‘most

trusted snsurer’ and The Claims Excellence awards for

Customer Care,

2017 Target 2017 Target

Our aim is 1o differentiate ourselves in the market against Focus on retaining ‘sustainable engagement’ scores at or

corpetitors based on customer and member satisfaction above the UK high performing organisations benchmark as

measured against relevant opinion surveys. defined by Willis Towers Watson,
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Operating profit from trading operations

Explanation of measure
Operating profit from trading operations is the key performance measure for the profitability of the LV= group, This measure represents
management's view of the performance of the ongoing business without distortion from temporary volatility. See page 28 for definition.

2016 Target
To deliver superior returns commensurate with the markets in which we operate. Planned operatung profit from trading operations

was £114 milhon.

Performance

pblAY st-Ogden: . £20m

2016 Pre-Ogden: £159m

2015: £107Tm

Commentary

£20m €@

Past-Ogden

£159m

Pre-Ogden

Operating profit from trading operations, inctuding the £139 million impact of the Ogden rate change, was £20 million. Operating
profit, excluding the Ogden rate change, was £159 million, with year-on-year improvements across both of our trading businesses.
General insurance weathered continyed ¢laims inflation ang achieved growth in operating profit {pre-Ogden} underpinned by
improvement in motor rates and increases in direct policy numbers. Life expenenced strong trading performance in retirement

and favourable model and basis changes in protection.

2017 Target
To defiver return in line with the markets in which we cpérste.

LVFS main with-profits fund performance Solvency Il Capital Coverage Ratio

Explasation of measurs

This Is the pre-tax return made on the maln LV= with-profits
{und, which is an actively managed kvestmant fund consisting
‘ofuwulm?:tmpollcyhddms‘ﬁlidnthﬁmmmon

' theslr behatf,

2016 Target
To deliver fund performance at or above benchmark ievels of

14.5% @

Performance
LV= with-profits 2016 14.5%

IR R W Lo fits 2015: 3.8%

R - 2015: 2.7%

LV= with-profits 2014; 11.4%

Commentary

The return on the with-profits fund in 2016 was 14.5%, which
is a significant increase on the 2015 performance of 3.8%.
The with-profits fund performance is 1% below benchmark,
driven by underperformance in equities, partialty offset by over
performance in gilts and bonds. The fund 1s managed on our
behalf by Columbia Threadneedle Investments. See page 32
for further details.

2017 Target
To deliver fund performance at or above benchmark levels.

Explanation of measure
To angure (he susiainability of the Soclety we monitorour

' Soency Il caplial coversge ratio, Sse page 38 {or defiatiion.

2016 Target

To manage the Solvency |l capital coverage ratio within the
group’s nsk appetite framework of £470 meliion {or about 150%
as at 31 December 2016).

Performance - all figures reflect Standard Formula.

140% @

2016: 140%
2015: 146%

Commentary

At the end of 2016 the group capital surplus on a Solvency

Il Standard Formuta basis was estimated to be £367 million
{2015: £383 million) and the capital coverage ratio was
140% (2015: 146%). The £16 milhon reduction in the capital
surplus is largely due to the £100 miliion impact of the Qgden
rate change as well as negative markel movements, offset
by the impact of recalculation of Transition {refiecting the
changes in the group’s risk profile), the implementation of the
Matching Adjustment and other capital optimusation actions.
The Ogden rate change is a significant factor causing the end
of 2016 capital surplus to be below the group's target level

of £470 mitlion.

2017 Target

A key Tocus for the group in 2017 is on strengthening the group’s
capital position and further raducing the balance sheet exposure
1o volatiity in risk-ree inierest rates and other markei changes.
See page 33 for more details.
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Chairman’s
Review

Mutua/ organrisatiors fike Li/=,
with their values ard fonger-

term views, have ar imgortart
role to p@;« in toda’ joiatile

hrarciai wier/A.

Mark Austen
Chairman

2016 has been a ¢hallenging year for the financial services
sector. Most insurance providers have expenenced ever more
volatile investment markets, the transition to the Sotvency H
regime, unceriainty derived from the EU referendum and Brexit
and very recently a major change in the calculation of personal
injury compensation (called the Ogden discount rate).

Against this background your Society has had an acceptable
financial year achieving an operating profit from trading operations,
before the impact of the Ogden rate change, of £159 million, The
operating profit has been subject to a number of exceptional items
and these are explained 1n the Group Finance Director’s Review
on pages 28 to 37, The board has allocated a mutual bonus of
0.5%, amounting to £17 million, to eligible members’ policies
this year, which is half the previous years', reflecting the impact
of Ogden and some of the other exceptional nems.

The most significant event this year has been the EU referendum.

While we do not believe the outcome of the referendum will have
a long-term impact or a need to change our business model, the
result and the debate around Brexit has led to seme increasing
turbulence in market conditions, in particular significant
movements in longer1erm interest rates, which have increased
volatility in the Society's capital coverage ratio.

We have mitigated such impacts and since the Society's half
year results in June the solvency capital coverage has increased
to 140%. While this coverage is above the Society's solvency
capital requirement, it is below the board's risk appetite. The
reduction in the Ogden discount rate has put further strain on
the Saciety’s capital position and we shall continue to carry out
actions to strengthen our ratio. Further information on this is
included in the Group Finance Director’'s Review.

The transition from the previous capital regime 1o Solvency Il
has resulted in a very sizeable increase in the capital required

to fund the Society. There are many technical factors at ptay
here but the main contributors to the change are increased
capital requirements to be held against longevity risk and our
investments in gilts and bonds and the introduction of an explicit
risk margin.

An unfortunate consequence of this tighter financiat environment
was our decision, in common with some other major suppliers. to
withdraw certain products. In our case and because of the high
capital loading we withdrew from the enhanced annuity market

in late 2016. We regret the need to take this action and the
consequent reduction in customer choice.

We seek to work closely with the Government and continue to
play an active rote both in the development of pension reforms
and the proposed changes to the way that personal injury claims
are handled.

In March 2016 we saw the publication of the findings from the
Financial Advice Market Review. We were pleased that the final
report included three of the recommendations that we had
made namely: a single definition of advice, the introduction of a
pension dashboard to enable retirees to view ail of their pension
funds in one place and an increase in the tax incentive for
employers te offer financial advice in the workplace.

We fully support the Government’s plans to give greater freedom
to people at retirement but think that with extra choice the need
for regulated financial advice becomes ever more important. With
the investment we have in Wealth Wizards we are well placed

to take advantage of moves to encourage the wider take-up of
regulated financial advice.

We very much welcomed the reforms to ensure greater fairness
in dealing with whiplash claims. We committed then to passing
on the savings to motorists from these changes when they were
first announced and that commitment still stands.

In this light the Government's recent decision to reduce the
Ogden personal injury discount rate is ever more disappointing.
People who are seriously injured should be properly
compensated but the method used by the Ministry of Justice
to set the new discount rate is obsolete and in need of reform.
The decision to launch a consultation on this issue is therefore
welcome and we shall continue to work with the Government

to hopefully achieve a fair outcome for both claimants and our
general customers.



Chairman's Review 17

There have been a number of executive changes within L=
during 2016. | believe effective succession ptanning is done
from a position of strength and in so far as possible should be
handled so as to make transitions as seamless as possible.

In April we anpounced that Mike Rogers would be standing down
as chief executive after ten very successful years. Following a
thorough search process that produced a short-ist of excelient
internal and external candidates the board was particularly
pleased to be able to promote from within to fill the roie of chief
executive by appointing Richard Rowney, managing director

of the Iife and pensions business, as the new chief executive.
Richard is an exceptionally talented business leader and was the
unanimous decision of the board to build on the heritage of the
Society's 170 year history and take LV= to the next level. Richard
took over from Mike Rogers in July 2016.

Similarly Steve Treloar was appointed as managing director of
general insurance in May 2016 joining the board from Aviva as
successor to John O'Roarke.

Recognising the importance of our customers and members to the
long-term success of the Society we appointed Katie Wadey to the
new role of customer and member director in January 2016.

it is now ten years since | joined the board and your Society has
been transformed over this period. If | look back to the end of
2006, Liverpool Victoria as we were known then operated as

a broad business model incorporating life, general insurance,
banking, IFA and asset management operations. This broad
diversification into areas where we did not have a significant
market position meant there was no clear focus.

Alan Cook joined

the board as a new
non-executive director
and chairman designate
on 1 January 2017,

It is our intention, subject
{0 a member vote, that he
1akes over as chairman
at the Annual General
Meeting in June.

The transformation from Liverpool Victoria to LV= was based on
bringing that clarity and focus that had been missing, building
scale and running the Society as a sustainable, profitable
business. At the end of 2006 we had two million customers and
gross earned premiums of £662 million. We now have nearly six
million customers and gross earned premiums of £2.8 billion.

2016 has been a year of significant change and | have no doubt
that 2017 will be no fess challenging. In pfanning for the future,
we shall never lose sight of the things that make this a great
organisation, the focus on our customers, our people and our
members. Mutual organisations like LV=, with their values and
longer-term view, have an important role to play in today's volatile
financial world.

Despite the challenges faced this year | believe the group has
great potential. We have a new chief executive with a clear vision
of how he sees the future of the group through to 2020 and
beyond and some of the thinking is set out in the Strategic Report,

As for other board changes, | was very pleased to welcome David
Barral in March 2016 as a new non-executive director after a
distinguished executive career in insurance. More recentlyin
January 2017 Alan Cook joined the board as a non-executive
director and as designate chair and | am pleased to introduce
him below.

I felt that at the forthcoming AGM it was the right time for me to
hand over the role of chairman after four years in the role and ten
years on the board, it has been my privilege to serve the Society
and | am immensely proud of the transformation of LV= over the
last decade into the successiul profitable mutual it is today with
its special place in the financial services market.
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Chief

Executive's
Review

7 ﬁ}'m/t; believe that what
makes us different is our
p&qr e and cu/z‘qre

R:en
Chief £x0 - utinve

This is my first review as chief executive having
taken over from Mike Rogers in July 2016.

It has been a real privilege to work alongside Mike
and | ook forward to continuing to build a business
that delivers the best possible outcomes for our
customers, colleagues and members.

At a headline level pperating profit from trading
operations, before the impact of the recently
announced Ogden rate change. was £159 million
compared to £107 miltion in 2015, reflecting

the strong trading performance in our general
insurance and life businesses.

Including the impact of the Ogden rate change
operating profit from trading businesses was £20
million and the group loss before tax was £49
million, impacted by mode! and basis changes in
our legacy heritage business and various one-off
costs. mainly associated with the introduction of
the new Solvency Il regulatory regime.

Throughout the course of the year we have also
undertaken a range of actions to improve our
capital position and our capital coverage ratio has
increased to 140% from 126% at the half year,
measured on a Standard Formula basis. At this
level the capital coverage ratio is still not where
we want it to be and we will pursue a number of
options which are intended to bring the group’s
capital surplus within risk appetite. We expect to
move to an Internal Mode! following PRA review and
approval.

Strategy

LV= is a well-respected financial mutual and we
have a strong platform to build on. We already
have a strong brand, we are YouGov's most
recommended ingurer and have been voted the
UK's most trusted insurer and most trusted life
insurer by Moneywise.

But | think we can do more. | believe LV=is atits
bestwhenitis agile and entrepreneurial and |
increasingly expect LV= to become the challenger
brand in our industry, one that is {famous for great
customer service combined with clever investment
in digital solutions that benefit our customers,
members, IFAs and brokers alike, Our investment
in Wealth Wizards is a good example of this and
that business cantinues 1o perform well,

To help deliver on this ambition we have recently

launched a clear and simple blueprint for the future

of LV=. Our strategic priorities focus on three

themes: eradicating waste and building stronger

financial foundations, harnessing the power of the

latest digita! technologies and creating solutions |
far customers that leave them feeling more

confident about life and more confident in LV=.

Further details on our new strategy can be found
on pages 20 to 23.

General insurance

in general insurance, while we are best known for
car insurance we offer a wide range of products
including home, travel, pet and landlord. We also
have a growing commercial insurance business
providing a suite of products to protect businesses.

Conditions in the general insurance market have
remained mixed in 2016. The rate recoveryin
motor that we saw in the second half of 2015 has
continued this year however the home insurance
market remains soft. With our disciplined
approach to underwriting we will only grow where
it makes financial sense to do so.
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Before the impact of the Ogden rate change

our general insurance business delivered an
operating profit of £113 million for the year and a
combined operating ratio of 94.1% reflecting the
strong underlying trading in the general insurance
business. Additional reserving due to the reduction
in the Ogden rate has impacted profit by £139
million, meaning that the general insurance result
incorperating this charge reduces to a £26 million
operating 105s.

Over the next five years we expect 1o see increasing
disruptionin the general insurance market. We
expect Lo fully play our part in this and our focus

is in two areas, The first is combining the best of
technotogy with the excellent customer service

for which LV= is well known. The second is new
technology as car manufacturers move from partial
automation to full automation.

Life

Cver the last five years we have been growing
our life and pensions business and this strategy
continues in 2016. We delivered an increased
operating profit of £45 million on sales of

£1.9 billion, measured as the Present Value

of New Business Premiums.

Qur retirement solutions business has recovered
from the shock-waves created by the previous
Chancellor’s freedom and choice reforms and we
have seen good top and bottom line growth over
the prior year. We have also invested heavily in
developing the right tools to enable us (o succeed
over the long-term. These include Retirement
Account, which enables IFAs to blend a wide
combination of retirement ingcome products in one
simple account; Pension Compass, a range of
too!s designed to make defined benefit pensicn
schemes members aware of their income options
at retirement in light of the new freedoms; and
Retirement Wizard, the UK's first fully regulated
robo-advice solution.

in protection we have a market-leading position in
individual protection and last year expanded into
business protection. Cur focus is now on investing
in technology to make it easier to do business
with us and maintaining our market share at a
lower cost.

The introduction of our Fastway quote and apply
system has been very well received by IFAs and we
have seen an increase in new business volumes.

Across our retirement and protection businesses
IFAs will remain our primary distribution channel
and we are making smart investments in digital
solutions to make it easier for them to do business
with us,

Our heritage business reported a foss this

year resulting from changes to the reserving
assumptions and more details can be found in
the Group Finance Director’s review on page 29.

People and culture
| firmly believe that what makes us different is our
people and culture,

We are proud of the high levels of employee
engagement that we achieve and we regularly
outperform the financial services norm in our
annual survey.

To serve our customers and members wellitis
important that we have a diverse as well as an
engaged workforce. In 2016 we signed up to

the Women in Finance Charter, a joint initiative
between business and HM Treasury that reflects
the Government’s aspiration 10 see gender balance
at all levels across financial services firms.,

LV= has a strong diversity and inclusion
programme which ensures we provide inclusive
products for our customers, and that our workplace
is accessible and inclusive for atl. We were pleased
this year 1o be short-listed in the British Insurance
Awards Diversity category and nominated for the
‘Diverse Company of the Year" award at the 2016
National Diversity Awards.

We have a strong customer service ethos
developed over many years, but customers buying
habits and service expectations have changed.
They no longer compare our service against our
traditional competitors, they compare it against
the likes of Amazon and John Lewis.

These companies and others set the bar that we
need to aspire to. This is why we created the new
role of customer and member director earlier this
year, ensuring that the customers' voice is always
represented around the executive table.

In summary, we are a successful mutual with

a well-known brand and our composite model
presents growth opportunities in both our trading
businesses. We will remain disciplined in the
management of the business, exercising strict
controls over the allocation of capital to the right
product areas.

In a changing financial world, our approach remains
consistent; earning the trust of our customers and
members by providing good value backed up with
great values.

The LV= Strategic Report on pages 13 to 71 was
approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April
2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Richard Rowney
Chlef Executive
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Our Core Purpose, Strategy
and Business Model
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Introaducing the blueprint for our future

The world is constantly changing and it is important that we at LV= keep up with it. In order to do this
and to do it well, we need to evolve our business and how it operates. We know that the insurance
industry is facing a big transformation with new business models, Fintech, investrment in big data
and start-ups shifting customer expectations. It is with this in mind that we have developed our new
strategy. We call it our blueprint and we believe it is the best way to move forward at pace lo maintain
and grow our business.

What it means
We believe that everyone deserves to Live Confident, and we exist to help people to do that. For us
this means:

* heing proactive about preventing things going wrong, not just fixing them when they do.
e fighting for and teading the way in doing things that are in our customers’ best interests.
* being transparent, well-intentioned and absolutely honest in all that we do.

To deliver on that promise there are three things we must do:

1 Bujld a business that is sustainably Lean & Strong so we can achieve our goals over the
long-term whilst continuing to grow member value.

2 Deliver Green Heart Experiences for our customers, colleagues and members designing and
delivering solutions that prevent as well as fix - and inspire total trust.

3 Harness the latest technologies, evolve how we operate, and bring in the new talent needed
to ensure that we lead the industry today and into the future. We have termed this LV=3.0.

We will only succeed if everyone at LV= truly lives our values every day, so that:
* We make it feel special

* We make every pound count

¢ We don’t wait to be asked

* We fight for better

If we do all of this our customers will be able 1o live bigger lives; our people will be able to fulfil their
aspirations; and LV= will be abte to make an important and valued difference for longer. People and
LV= will be able to Live Confident.

We stijll believe that our sharp with a heart philosophy gives us a clear point of difference and we
will continue to do things that combine the competitive performance of a PLC with the trusted
behaviours of a mutual.
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Strategic thrusts

Our strategic thrusis will gradually replace our strategic agenda in order Lo provide direction for LV= as we
navigate the challenges and opportunities over the years ahead. Our three strategic thrusts outline what
we will deliver and have been further broken down into priority initiatives.

How we will measure performance

| We will be measuring our future progress against these initiatives using key performance indicators (KPls),

| both at a business unit and group leve!, At a group level, ‘Green Heart Experiences’ will be measured by our
suite of customer salisfaction and staff engagement KPIs and ‘Lean and strong’ wili be measured by our
suile of financial strength KPIs. "LV=3.0" 15 key to ensuring all this can happen in a constantly changing world.

1 Green Heart Experiences

We will create Green Heart Experiences - that leave customers, colleagues and
members feeling more confident about life, and more confident in us,

Priority Initlatives:

Detine Redesign Create new
membershi our empioyee products and
‘I P experience, services that prevent

benefits that drive
differentiation for us
and loyalty from
our customers

recogmsing that great
customer expenence
starts from the

inside put

bad things from
happening in
the first
place

Defiver
seamless
joumeys that are
loved by our customers
and distnibution
partners

Build an
mdustry-leading
advice service

J v Live Confident is about
' ouyr rofe in society, the
role that insurance
rea//t/ should. p/cuf n
Je's i V4
peaple’s fives.

)\ Comparies that successtully
navigate the waters of
disruption spat and act

Azqfi:k/tf on the opportunities

1o reinvent.

Richard Rowney
Chief Executive
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We will create confidence in our customers, colleagues and members by helping

them harness the power of the latest digital technologies — evolving how we
operate and bringing in the new talent needed to make sure we do so.

Priority initiatives:

Deliver the
systems changes that
are critical foundations
ifwe are to
become 3.0

Transform
our systems, tajent,
and capability around
data and analytics

Cresgte a culture
of agility so we can
test and learn, and create
progress at pace

Buiid
the new
skillsets and
mindsets needed to be
industrydeading in our
creation of digital
channels for both
customers and

colleagues

Establish a
Futures Lab that will
help us kok further out
and experiment
at the cutting edge

Lean & Strong

We will ensure our customers, colleagues and members can remain confident over
the long-term by eradicating waste and building the strong financial foundations
needed to be there for them.

Priority initiatives:

Hamess
Design an
the power of robotics
operating mode! and automation Rebuikd our
that is free of confusion, 1o streamiine capital strength
red tape, and vwaste OUF processes

Redefine our
risk culture so that

Put systems
thinking at the heart

everyone {akes
2;:0“;“';"‘2": ownership for making
ngs happ hatter decisions
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Accordfr@ fo
YouGov, 25%
of adults are
attracted to 6«7/?13
Lega/ services
from insurance
companies.
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How we have performed against our strategic agenda in 2016

This is the final year we will be reviewing our performance against the strategic agenda we set out in 2014.
We had selected eight areas of focus for management to ensure the sustainzble growth of the Society as an
aspiring and mission-driven modern mutuat. Fottowing the appointment of our new chief executive, Richard
Rowney, we have chosen to refine and refocus our strategy, as outlined in the previous pages. In the short-
term, there will be continuity in our key initiatives, as we transition to our new core purpose and strategic

thrusts,

@ Sustainablefbhlsinessinodel I

i Diversified general v‘ ]
Insurance garnings &=

Exploration of
adjacent business
areas

1 Sustainable business model

For a mutual, managing the businessina
sustainable manner is critical to ensure that the
business continues to thrive and succeed into the
future. Compared to PLCs, mutuals have a narrower
set of funding oplions and hence typically need to
be more cautious in approach.

On 1 January 2016 the Solvency il EU wide capital
management regime came into force. It was
designed to strengthen consumer protection

and sector stability by ensuring that insurance
companies hold sufficient capital to cover their
business risks. Currently LV= is regulated under the
*‘Standard Formula' basis, where a standardised
methodology is applied to the calculation of required
capital. During 2016 we have been working on

our ‘Internal Madel’ application for the PRA. That
application was submitted in the first quarter of
2017 with a view to moving to reporting on this basis
following PRA review and approval.

As part of this application process we have worked
to optimise our capital position though various
actions including reviewing our hedging strategies,
and updating actuarial and expense modelling.

2 Diversified general insurance earnings
We have a very successful general insurance
business offering a range of personal and
commercial products, selling directly to consumers
and via brokers. We have a particularly strong
personal motor line with around 12% market share
based on the number of vehicles insured.

We batance pride in the success of our general
insurance business with the recognition of risks
that the volatility often experienced by the motor
insurance industry presents. Over recent years
therefore, we have put a deliberate management
focus on diversifying into other general insurance
products and growing life to scale {see opposite).
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For 2016 our ambition was to increase non-motor
general insurance policies as a percentage of the
overall book by 1% to 37.8% of in-force policies. We
successfully achieved this target, with non-motor
policies growing from 36% to 38%, by implementing
a variety of initiatives such as the launch of LvV=
Legal Services, a new home scheme with the
National Union of Teachers, and new products such
as Muiti-bike and Park Home insurance.

3 Grow life to scale

Qur life business consists of businesses that
operate in the retirement and protection markets
alongside our heritage business which is primarily
our with-profits products. Historically our life
business has been smaller than our general
insurance business and as a result we have been
trying to grow this business.

2016 has seen us deliver record levels of new
business premium and near record operating
profit in our life business. This has been driven by
our focus on ensuring customers and IFAs have
the information and understanding they need to
make the best financial decisions, and by ensuring
that any transactions are as easy and straight
forward as possible. Policy application efficiency
has been aided by increasing customer usage of
‘Retirement View' our application tool that provides
customers with real time updates on applications,
and "Fastway’, our new quote and apply and
underwriting rules engine designed for IFAs in our
protection business. Our heritage business has
also benefited from the finalisation of the Teachers
Assurance acquisition this year,

In November we announced that we were
withdrawing from the enhanced annuity market.
The Pensions Freedoms legislation removed

the requirement for retirees to buy an annuity

and caused demand lor this product to fall. This
combined with the record-low interest rates and
bond yields depressing annvity rates meant that
the rates we could offer customers risked no longer
providing good value.



Our Core Purpose, Stratedy and Business Model 25

Tts official
- we have
the best Lite
Insurance
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experience in
the market!
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4 Exploration of adjacent business areas
LV= already benefits from a diversified product set,
and is well set up to support additional business
areas, where we have expentise.

In January 2016 we launched LV= Legal Services
in conjunction with our partner Lyons Davidson.
We continue to work on making our offering stand
out in a crowded market place and have already
introduced video-conference capabilities to enable
face-lo-face interaction with our customers.

5 Go Digital
We have invested significantly in digital
capabilities and services during 2016 in order

to strengthen relationships and provide better
experiences for our customers, advisers, brokers,
partners and employees.

Our investment in Wealth Wizards has enabled us
to further strengthen our LV= Retirement Wizard
digital proposition, making affordable retirement
advice available to the mass market, We have
expanded our distribution in 2016 by launching
‘white-label’ digital services through new corporate
partnership agreements.

During the year we launched ‘LV= Labs’ a cross-
functional initiative to help us develop innovative
digital propositions and an internal culture of
forward thinking and innovation.

We have also continued to invest in simplifying
our technology set, made advances in data and
analytics and through major strategic investment
programmes built new digital capability to optimise
services, drive back-office efficiencies through
automation and improve the user experience
across core digital journeys. This includes
initiatives such as Fastway and Retirement View
in our life business, and also a major project in
our general insurance business to transform our
preduct and distribution capability for our direct
customers.

LV= has also been recognised for digital excellence
winning ‘Best B2B Website’ for our LV= Adviser
Portal and ‘Most Innovative Digital Experience’

for LV= Retirement Wizard at the 2016 UK Digital
Experience Awards.

6 Build a distinctive and relevant brand
It has now been two years since we carried out
our brand refresh and we continue to see the
benefits with our brand remaining one of the most
recognised brands in our target market. YouGov
continue to rank us as the most recommended
insurer as well as placing us top for best value-
for-money and highest overall brand health. This
alongside our Moneywise awards for Most Trusted
Insurer and Most Trusted Life Insurer demonstrate
the strength in the LV=brand.

During 2016 we commissioned a review of the value
of our brand from an independent company using
an IS0 accredited methodology. This review showed
considerable growth in the value of our brand, and
rated it AA+, indicating a very strong brand.

7 Become customer centric

Putting the customer at the heart of our business
is what we have been doing successfully for years,
and each year we receive numerous awards and
recognition for our customer service. Rather

than resting on our laurels though, we continue

to promote the importance of considering the
customer in everything that we do.

In 2016 we appointed a new director with specific
responsibility for customers and members. Katie
Wadey brings a huge amount of experience to help
take LV= 10 the next ievel of customer excellence.

We have launched many initiatives in 2016
designed to give us a deeper understanding

of customer needs and behaviours and have
used customer research to guide our product
developments, including the design of our new
Home Plus product which is due to launch in
2017. During 2016 we also took great strides in
developing products and communications to
de-mystify the new pension freedoms, as well as
the launch of a new Pop Up Pension Coach
service we are trialling with LV= employees.

We are committed to building ever greater
engagement with our customers and believe
that customer centricity in the design, development
and delivery of our products and services is core
o our business.

8 Broaden and deepen talent pool

Qur ability to recruit, motivate and retain

talented people is the key to our success.

We are committed to providing appropriate
opportunities and support to our employees 1o
help them achieve their ambitions whatever their
backgrounds. This positive and supportive culture
creates high employee engagement levels that
meet or exceed the benchmark for organisations
that excel at employee engagement across the
UK. We continually look to strengthen this high
engagement culture to retain and develop our staff,
and ensure we remain an attractive employer for
future recruitment.

Whilst recognising that there is still progress to be
made, in 2016 we invested significant efforts in
our diversity and inclusion programme. We signed
up to the Women in Finance Charter signalling our
commitment and aspiration to see gender balance
at all levels across LV=. Qur wide-scale leadership
development programme continued into 2016
engaging with over 1.800 leaders and recruitment
consultants on the impact of unconscious bias and
benefits of inclusion. We also laid foundations for
our multi-cultural programme engaging with our
people on ethnicity and feeding into the creation
of our LV=Equals network.
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Business Madel

The LV= group is owned by, and run for the benefit
of our members and is therefore different from
some other organisations which may be owned by
shareholders, employees, private equity groups,
or Government. We believe this difference is
important in serving customers, engaging with
employees and creating long-term value for

our members.

Qur members are customers who have certain
longerterm financial products with us, such as life
insurance, protection, investments or retirement
policies. They have voting rights and can expect to
influence the key decisions made in the Society.
Eligible members may benefit from a share of any
surplus profits which the group is able to allocate.

We aim to grow member value consistently over
the longer-term while managing the risk involved in
doing so appropriately.

Our products fall into the following categories:

+ Life: protection and retirement products,
including savings and investments,
covering peoples’ lives and incomes;

= Herltage: focuses on savings and investment
products that are no longer actively marketed,
the majority of these being with-profits products.

Our portfolio includes a deliberate and careful
balance of well established, profitable lines

and selective investments in growth lines,

all distributed to consumers directly and via
brokers and IFAs. This mix of business lines

and distribution channels provides us with
diversification of risks and helps mitigate the
impact of adverse market conditions and business
cycles which affect specific products or distribution
channels.

Our members' funds, are managed on our behalf
by our strategic partners, Columbia Threadneedle
Investments, BlackRock and AgFe. This allows

us to secure the best possible outcomes for our
members and customers by focussing on our
core expertise of risk-based insurance business
while: benefiting from the investment management
expertise of our partners. The partnership
arrangements are reviewed regularly to ensure
the risk and return balance is appropriate for

our members,

Surplus funds of the group are held in the
LV= Estate. This is predominantly made up of
Unallocated divisible surplus accumulated in
prior years, Estate own funds are invested to
generate returns and provide the LV=group
with a capital buffer.

When the financial performance and financial and
capita! strength of the LV= group allows, surplus
funds from the LV= Estate may be used to allocate
the LV= Mutual bonus to eligibie members.

As well as investing in the debt and equity of
other companies, the LV= Estate has invested
a significant proportion of its funds into LV='s
own proflt making businesses. The majority of
this investment is in the LV= general insurance
business, which sells a variety of products,
including motor and home, to both personal and
commercial customers, distributed directly or
via brokers. Surplus profits of the Lv= general
insurance business are remitted back 10 the
LV= Estate.

The LV= general insurance business provides
the group with more than just remitted profits,

In addition to diversification of risk, strategic
advantages include the larger foot-fall of our
successful general insurance business increasing
brand awareness and the customer centric
approach taken across the LV= businesses
enhancing the opportunities for cross-selling and
customer retention, Similarly the Life business
companies, such as LV= Equity Release, LV=
Commercial Mortgages and Wealth Wizards,
provide the life business with wider strategic and
capital advantages.
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Key

-q Flow of members® funds

* Flow of funds returned
1o members

LV= Business model - A modern mutual
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Some of the LV= Estate funds

Surplus profits of LV='s own are invested in LV="s own
profit making businesses are profit making businesses to
remitted back to the generate returns
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Group Finance
Director’s
Review
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Definitions

Operating profit
QOperating profit is
defined as profit
before tax adjusted
for pensions business
IFRS adjustment,
short-term investment
fluctuations, centrally
managed costs,

gain on acquisition,
finance costs and
amortisation or
impairment of
acquired intangibles.

Pensions business
IFRS adjustment
The adjustment
required to convert
self-invested pension
plan operating profit
from a value-add
basis to a pure IFRS
{Income-expenses)
basis.

Group binance Director

Overview

Operating profit from trading operations in 2016,
including the impact of the Ogden rate change,
was £20 million and £159 million excluding Ogden
(2015: £1.07 million). The result benefited from
good trading profits in both the general insurance
and life businesses. At a group ‘evel the result
included a £35 million operating loss in the
heritage business generated by changes made

to the reserving assumptions, partially reversing
the £88 million operating profitin 2015. The loss
before tax of £49 million (2015; £1.24 million profit)
was primarily driven by the overall group operating
{oss of £15 million, plus centrally managed costs
and debt interest.

Market conditions have been mixed for our trading
businesses. The rate recoveries in the motor market
have been partially offset by continuing claims
inflation, the home insurance market remains soft
and the broker market remains very challenging.

In the life business we have positioned ourselves
well to take advantage of the shift in the buying
behaviours of retirees in the new pensions freedom
environment, leading to continued growth in both
sales and profits during the year. We have also seen
good growth in protection volumes.

The economic environment has been particularly
volatile throughout the year, and ongoing low
interest rates experienced in recent years continue
to raise challenges for the business. However, with
the decrease in gilt yields increasing the value of
debt securities and the strong equity performance,
both in the UK and overseas, policyholders’ funds
have seen a significant uphft in value. This is
demonstrated by our with-profit investment return,
which increased to 14.5% in 2016.

On 27 February 2017, the Lord Chancellor
announced a reduction in the Ogden discount rate
from 2.5% to minus 0.75% fram 20 March 2017
Subsequently, a consultation has been launched
across the industry on 30 March 2017 to consider
options for reform. The Ogden discount rate is used
1o calculate lump sum settlements of bodily injury
claims, including awards for recurring costs such as
loss of earnings and ongoing medical care.

The group has previously held a provision in claims
reserves in line with the previous actual rate of
2.5%. As a result of the announcement, the group
has increased this provision for the estimated
impact of moving to a minus 0.75% Ogden discount
rate, for all business earned up to 31 December
2016. The overall impact of this rate change on
2016 operating profit was £139 million (£100
million capital impact under Solvency ). Reflecting
this charge as a separate item in the operating
profit statement recognises the magnitude of

the change in policy and the potential for future
revisions to the discount rate to cause further
volatility in LV="s results.

A key challenge for the business during the year
was the introduction of the Solvency H regulatory
regime. Increased capital requirements under this
regime mean that we have to carefully manage our
capital position and a key focus for the group during
the year has been to improve our capital strength
and to reduce the balance sheet exposure 10
volatility in risk-free interest rates and other market
changes. The group Soivency |l capital coverage
ratio on a Standard Formula basis stood at 140%
as at the end of 2016.
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Results for 2016 Trading operations* Herftage Businass LV= Group

£m } 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
General insurance 113 72 - - 113 72

Life 45 a1 - - 45 41

Heritage - - {35) 88 {35) 88

Group 1 (6} - - 1 {6)
Operating profit/{loss) - pre Ogden 159 107 {35) 88 124 195

Reserve increase due to Ogden rate changes** {139} - - - {139) -

Operating (loss)/profit - post Ogden 20 107 {35) 88 {15) 195

Pensions business IFRS adjustment 3 {5 - - 3 (5)
Short-term investment fluctuations and related items*** (") (21) 21 11 14 {10}
Centrally managed costs (25) (29) {2) - (27) (29)
Gain arising on Teachers acquisition - - 3 - 3 -

Finance costs (24) (24) - - (24) (24}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (3) {3) - - (3) (3)
{Loss)/profit before tax (36) 25 {13} 99 T (49) 124

Mutual bonus 1 {17) {27)
Income tax expense (35) (6)
Pension scheme actuarial (loss)/gain net of tax {2) 51

Transfer {from}/to the Unallocated divisible surplus (103) 142

. Trading operalions excludes hentage as a legacy business in run-off (see page 45).

**  Ressrve increase due 10 Ogden rate changes represants the increase in 1eserves required folowing the decision of the Lord Chancelior 10 lower the Ogden discount rate to minus
0,75% from the prewvious rate of 2.5%. Disclosing this charge as a separate item recogmses the magnitude of the change n pohcy and the potenlial for future tevisions to the
discount rate 1o cause further volatihty in LV 5 results.

*= 4 GShortterm investment Muctualions and relatad items includes the favourabls impact of \ax deducted from pohicy asset shares and the RNPFN fund totating £42 muikon 2015,

£nil milthon).
Operating profit for the general insurance business  of £11 miltion; mainly generated by additional
comprises the trading results from insurance payments made to ensure policyholders are treated
activity (underwriting profit) and investment returns.  in line with the Principles and Practices of Financial o
Before the impact of the Ogden rate change, general Management (PPFM). %
insurance operating profit increased to £113 million é
" {2015: £72 millon). Underwriting profitincreased ~ Group operating profitincludes unailocated group 2
Definitions to £70 million (2015: £44 million) reflecting the overheads and also the return on the group's free ®
Short-term investment improved underlying trading performance. The capital.
fluctuations {STI 2015 result benefited from exceptional levels of .
Unmatched TR favourable prior year claims run-off of £93 million ~ The reversalin profit before tax for the group lo a
movements in the {2016: £64 million). The main driver for this loss of £49 million {2015: £124 million profit) is
value of Investment improved performance has been the continuing rate  Mainly driven by the large fluctuation in the heritage
assets or habilities recovery in moler, although the impact of this has busmess' mode! and valgauon changes. l.n_2015 t_h1s 1%
are reported in short: been partially eroded by engoing claims inflation. resulted in a favourable |m;?a_ct of £91 ml.lllon. whilst -
\erm investment The investment return increased o £43 million in 2016 there was a £22 million adverse impact. 8
fluctuations. (2015: £28 million) reflecting the improved market  11iS Swing was mainly caused by the methodology 5
cenditions in the second half of the year. used to value the liabilities for OB pension policies, 4
which was adjusted during both years to reflecta
Centrally For the life and heritage businesses, operating change in the basis used to calculate the amount

managed costs

These costs tend to
be one-off costs and
are often connected lo
strategic initiatives of
the group.

Profit/({loss)

before tax

Our measure of
profit before taxis
defined as profit
before tax. mutual
bonus allocated,
and transfer {0
Unallocated divisible
surplus. This definition
allows meanmgful
comparisons with
the profit before tax
disclosed by other
companies,

profit includes the trading performance of new
and existing insurance business, the impact of
actuarial model and valuation assumptions, and
also a margin for prudence in the life vafuation
assumptions (such as credit default allowance).
Life operating profit has increased to £45 million
(2015: £41 million). New business volumes have
grown across all product segments, with the
increase in contribution from this new business
helping to drive the increase in operating profit.
The life operating profit resuft is also benefiting
from favourable one-off model and valuvation
changes in the year, mainly driven by savings from
reduced unit costs in the protection business as
volumes increase, During the year the business
took out an annuity reinsurance treaty in order to
strengthen the group capitat position. This has had
an adverse impact on the hfe result of £14 million.

The heritage business operating loss of £35 miltion
(2015: £88 million profit) is driven by model and
valuation changes relating to the OB pensions
payout basis and cash take-up rate and unit costs
of £22 million and claims experience variances

payable when the policyholder elects to take the
proceeds from the policy as cash rather than as an
annuity, There has been uncertainty around this
following the pensions freedom legislation which
has required refinement over the last two years.

Items below operating profit, other than short-

term investment fluctuations and related items
were relatively neutral year-on-year. Short-term
investment fluctuations of £14 million (2015:

£30 million loss), is pnmarily made up of a loss

of £28 million representing the unmatched
movements in the value of investment assets and
liabilities predominantly caused by the fallin yields
during the year. This adverse impact was more than
offset by the recovery of tax paid on investment
gains deducted from policy asset shares and the
RNPFN fund totalling £42 million. Also impacting
profit before tax were centrally managed costs of
£27 million, which include Solvency Il project costs;
and finance costs of £24 million, mainly interest on
our subordinated debt {see note 10).
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Treatment of
policyholders tax

LV= pays tax on behalf
of Its policyholders
when they make gains
on therr investments.
The tax paid is
deducted from the
policyholders’ asset
share. Policyholder tax
is reparted in Income
tax expense with

the deduction from
policyholders’ asset
share credited to
Short-term investment
fluctuations and
related items.

The acquigition of the Teachers Assurance business was completed on 1 June 2016. The results of

the acquired Teachers business have been incorporated into the resutts of the group from the date of
acquisition, As weli as the scale based strategic benefits generated for both LV= and Teachers members
from this transaction, we have also recognised a £3 million gain on acquisition, mainly from future margins
which are expected 1o be generated by an agreed service fee. Full acquisition disclosures are presented

in note 46 of these financial statements.

The increase in the tax charge during the year to £35 million reflects the high gains made in policyholders’
fixed-interest investments during the year, partially ofiset by the tax credit associated with the loss in the
general insurance business. This tax on investment gains in the with-profits business, which gets charged
to policyholders' assel shares increased to £42 million (2015: £nil million) with the recovery of the tax
paid on investment gains deducted from policyholders’ asset shares and the RNPFN fund reported in
short-term investment fluctuations and related items, as outlined on the previous page,

The actuarial loss on the pension schemes of £2 million (2015: £51 million gain) reflects a decrease in
the discount rate increasing the value of the scheme’s iabilities, offset by an increase in the value of the
scheme's invested assets. As at 31 December 2016 the schemes reported a combined asset, net of tax
of £87 million {2015; £54 million), bo!stered by employer contributions during the year of £34 million.
Further details of these contribution payments are presented in note 38 of these financial statements.

The general insurance, life and heritage performance is explained in more detail in the relevant business
review sections,

Statutory results for 2016
Summarised Income statement

£m 2018 2015
Gross earned premiums 2,760 2,408
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (601) (469)
Net earned premiums 2,159 1,939
Investment income 401 401
Net gains/{losses) on investments 1,006 (282)
Gain arising on Teachers acquisition 3 -
Other income 658 57
Total Income 3,637 2,115
Net benefits and claims (1,596) {1.391)
Net change in contract liabilities (1,494) 47
Finance costs (24) (24}
Investment return allocated to external unit holders (1) -
Net operating and administrative expenses {571) {623)
Total benefits, clalms and expenses (3,686) (1,991)
{Loss)/profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer {49) 124

Total income has increased by £1,522 million to £3,637 million (2015: £2,115 million). This is primarily
driven by the movement in net gains on investments to £1,006 million compared to net losses of £282
million in 2015. Gains on equities of £584 million reflect the overall increase in the UK and overseas
markets. Gains of £385 million occurred in the value of debt securities as gilt yields decreased.

Total income has also been impacted by an increase in gross earned premiums of £352 million to £2.760
million, The majority of this increase was in the life business, with strong new business sales across all life
product categories. General insurance sales also increased, with gross earned premiums up 8% by £100
million, mainly in motor insurance.

The increase in gross earned premiums was mitigated at a net earned premium level by increases in
reinsurance ceded. Additional reinsurance treaties have been introduced for annuities and a 20% quota
share agreement put in place in the general reinsurance business as one of several management actions
during the year to manage risk and protect the Solvency |i capital position.

The net increase in contract liabilities of £1,494 million is driven by a combination of policyholder’'s
investment gains and the increase in new business,
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The net operating and administrative expenses have fallen to £571 million {(2015: £623 million) however
gross expenses pre-commission have increased slightiy to £4 36 million (2015: £428 million). This is
analysed in the table below:

Net operating and administrative expense

£m . 2026 2015
General insurance 257 256
Life 121 122
Heritage 32 27
Central items and other 23 20
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 3 3
Gross expenses pre-commission 436 428
Commission 207 195
Expenses recoverable from guota share reinsurers . {72) -
Net operating and administrative expenses 571 623

The year-on-year increase in gross expenses pre-commission is predominantly as a result of expenses
incurred by the newly acquired Teachers business in heritage and increased consultancy fees related to
Solvency 1l in central items. Management continues to focus on underlying trading cost control.

Summarised balance sheet

£m 2016 2015
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 805 1,186
Financial assets - Fair value through income 13,491 11,419
Other assets 2,574 1,934
Total assets 16,870 14,539
Liabllities

Insurance contract liabilities 11,797 9,868
investment contract liabilities 3,237 2,416
Other liabilities 838 1,154
Unallocated divisible surplus 998 1,101
Total liabilities 16,870 14.539

investments held at fair value through income have increased by £2,072 million, reflecting market
movements and the continued growth of the business, with increasing new business sales and the
acquisition of the Teachers assurance business which added approximately £750 million to the group
balance sheet. These are also the main drivers behind the £1,929 million increase in insurance contract
liabilities and £821 million increase in investment contract liabilities.

The increase in other assets includes the impact of new reinsurance treaties entered into during the year.
Associated with the group’s investmenl in debt and other fixed income securities, cash and cash
equivalents, and loans secured on residential and commercial property is credit counterparty risk,

The table below shows the credit profile of the group's investment in these assets, with 70% of the
groups exposure to credit on these assets rated ‘A’ or above (2015: 72%).

Credit risk exposure

£m 2016 2015
AAA 80O 739
AA 2,728 3,304
A 1,740 1,933
8BB 1,192 1,585
Below BBB 170 59
Not rated* 888 728

7,518 8,348

* Noi ratled inchides balances for loans secured on resident.al and commercial property totaiing £ 883 milion (2015; £706 milkon).

w0
ol
s
o
=
a
iy
o
2
>
-]
<
3
2

BIUBLIGADD

SIUNOAY INQ

|



32 LV= Annual Report 2016 Group Finance Director's Review

Assets under management p
Main LYFS WP Fund® performance % P

Main LVFS with-prafits fund performance Benchmark= = performance % P
[£648m | [£316m | [£585m | [ £178m | [£21am ] [ g61m | | _£88m | £2,272m
15.5 16.8 276 29.5 14.2 13.9 13.3 127 1.6 286 10.3 5.3 06 04 14.5 155
I I | . I I I o B I 1 __

UK Overseas UK .

Equity Equity Gilts Bonds Property Aliernative Cash Total

In addition Lo the asset classes held sbove, 1he tund slso invested £112 milllon in Multi-asset and £100 mulkon in UK fixed income (high yiekd). Because these asset classes
had not been helg toc g 1ol yore, i 15 not possible 1o messing the anceal telptive porlormpnte against benchmark tor 2016,

"

Other group assets fund performance***

Assets vnder
Fund performance % management
Main LVFS
' UK Equit I 13.2% £683m
With-profits 2016 i
Assel class breakdown
Overseas
Sty I 7.7% £250m
UK Gilts T Sy
» UK Equity 20%
» Overseas Equity 14%
b UK Gilts 24%
» Bonds 8% Bonds ) 9.0% £4.567m
b Property 9%
» Alternative 3%
b Cash 4%
» Multi-asset 5% Property I -4.6% £183m
P UK Fixed Income (High Yield) 4%
Alternative I 8.6%
Cash C.6% £536m
Other group I
assets 2016
Assel class breakdown
Muiti-asset I 8.3%
Tota I won  EEEEE
» UK Equity 9%
b Overseas Equity 3%
P UK Gilts 22% *  This reprasents assels held within the convantional wilh-prefits fund. i sxciudes OB
P Bonds 56% pensions and assets held within the umiised with-pro™s tund,
» Property 2%, =+ Benchmark performance s colculaied using a biend of recognised metncs which
» Alternative 0% rsasonably represent the market level performance for the mix of assels included

1n the main LVFS with profits-fund,

» Cash 7%
» Multi-asset 1%

++« Gther group assets are asseis invested by the general Insurance and hife businesses.
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Definitions

With-profits
fnvestment
performance:
Investment
performance is
expressed as a
percentage of
average funds under
management within
the mamn LVFS with-
profits fund.

Capital Reporting
basis

The capital coverage
ratio represents

the ratio of eligible
own funds over the
Solvency Capital
Requirement.

For 2016, we

are reporting our
capital positionon a
regulatory basis under
the Solvency |l regime.
The 31 December
2016 fhgures are
estimated and have
not been subject to an
external audit opimon.

The group cagpital
resources table shows
the estimated eligible
own funds, Solvency
Capital Requirement
{SCR) and surplus
funds of the group.
Figures exclude
RNPFN and Teachers
Ring-Fenced Funds.
Calculations are
based on the Standard
Formula approach
using the Volatility and
Matching Adjustment
(for eligible business)
and Transition
recaiculated as
agreed by the PRA
during the year,

Investment performance

Columbia Threadneedle Investments — OQur ongoing strategic parinership with investment managers
Columbia Threadneedle Investments continues to prove successful with the annualised investment
return for the main LVFS with-profits fund since 1 December 2011, when fund management by Columbia
Threadneedle Investments commenced, 0.8% above benchmark at 10,1%.

With-profits — The main LVFS with-profits fund delivered good performance for our with-profits members
with an absolute performance of 14.5% (2015 3.8%). This is 1.0% below benchmark, mainly due to the
underperformance of UK and overseas equity and commercial property within the fund. The return has
increased signihcantly from the previous year, with strong returns in both equities and gilts and bonds,
which collectively form 75% of the fund’s assets.

Other group assets — Quiside of the main LVFS with-profits fund and the RNPFN and Teachers ring-fenced
funds. the majority of assets are invested in UK corporate bonds and UK gilts. Returns in these areas were
strong in the face of decreases in yields and narrowing credit spreads.

Capital performance
At the end of 2016 the group capital surplus on a Solvency Il Standard Formula basis is estimated to be
£367 million (2015: £383 million) with a coverage ratio of 140%(2015: 146%).

Salvency 1l

Since 1 January 2016, the group has operated on a Standard Formula basis for calculating its regulatory
capital position. The group has continued to work closely with the PRA throughout 2016 to prepare an
application to operate on an Internal Model. In July 20186, the PRA confirmed that the group's preparations for
Imternal Model were sufficiently advanced to allow it {0 proceed to making an application for Model approval.
Lv= submitted an application for Internal Model approval in the first quarter of 2017. Internal Model will only
be implemented following PRA review and approval.

The group secured PRA approval in April 2016 to apply the Matching Adjustment to the majority of its
annuity business. The inclusion of the Matching Adjustment forms an integral part of the group's approach
to Asset and Liahility Management.

The group has also received PRA approval to apply Transition {also known as Transitional Measure on
Technical Provisions or TMTP) and Volatility Adjustment from 1 January 2016. Transition provides firms
with relief from day 1 from the financial impact on Technical Provisions of moving to the new Solvency

Il regime. The relief then amortises annually over 16 years. The PRA also allows firms to apply for
permission to recalculate Transition, subject 10 certain trigger conditions, to take account of matters such
as market movements or changes o a firms’ risk profile, The group applied to and was granted by the
PRA permission to recalculate Transition as of 29 April 2016, triggered by the move to use the Matching
Adjustment, and as of 31 August 2016 due to changes in the business risk profile. There was also an
industry-wide recalculation on 30 june 2016 as a result of market movements, The net effect of the
recalculations in the year has been to offset the adverse impacts of changes in business risks,
including interest rates, on eligible own funds by some £281 million.

The group complied with all regulatory capital requirements that it was subject to throughout the reporting
period.

Group surplus capital

£m 2016 - 2015
Eligibte own funds 1,296 1,220
Solvency Capital Reguirement (SCR) 929 837
Surpius 367 383
Capital coverage ratio 140% 146%

Eligible own funds and SCR above exclude amounts attributable to the RNPFN and Teachers Ring-Fenced
Funds. Including these funds would not change the capital surplus shown above.

Eligible own funds include the positive benefit of Transition of £837 million (2015: £816 million}.
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Transition is only re-measured when approved by the PRA, at a minimum of every two years, or if there have
been material changes in the entity's risk profile. Accordingly, there may be timing differences between the
measurement of technical provisions at the balance sheet date and the value of Transition.

Surplus funds at 31 December 2016 include a significant timing benefit of economic gains in the period
since the last recalculation of Transition as at 31 August 2016 which have not yet been offset by a further
Transition recalculation. Future Transition recalculations will reflect ongoing amortisation of the Transition
balance and also reflect the potential adverse impact of other tests such as the Financial Resources
Requirement test, which can result in a limit being applied to the amount of Transition benefit recognised
within own funds.

Subject 1o any major market movements or changes in the group’s risk profile, including a move to Internal
Model, the next industry wide recalculation of Transition is expected to be no later than 31 December 2017,

As the Transition runs off pver 16 years, the first annual step down of £52 miltion occurred on 1 Januar'y
2017. .

During 2016 the main movements in the group Solvency I capital surplus were:

£m i 2016
Surplus capital at 1 January H 383
New business ! {57)
Claims and expense variances {37)
Capital initiatives ' 140
Business changes : ] (19)
Interest on subordinated debt ' {23)
Impact of Ogden discount rate change - (100)
Economic variances i (182) '
Transition recalculations ! 281
Other items 1 {19}
Surplus capital at 31 December 4 367

Surplus funds of the group have fallen by £16 million over the year. This is largely due to the impact of the
Qgden discount rate change, negative market movementis, resulung from low interest rates increasing
capital requirements, and the impact of writing new business, largely due to enhanced annuities which
was closed as a business line during 20186, offset by capital optimisation actions, in¢luding Matching
Adjustment, together with the favourable benefit of Transition recalculations and assumption changes.
There has been significant volatility in the drivers of economic variances in 2016, particularly in long-term
interest rates. For example, the reduction of £182 million for the year for economic variances shown above
is net of a gain of £138 million in the fourth quarter of the year.

The table below provides a summary by risk of the Solvency Capital Requirement on the Standard
Formula basis.

Analysis of the Group Solvency Capital Requirement

£m r 2016
Credit Risk I 308 -
Equity risk and property risk 136
Interest rate risk 9 |
Other market risk 9
Life insurance risk 210 ,
General insurance risk 326
Operational risk 124
Tax refief and management actions (193)
Solvency Capltal Requirement I 929 !

The increase in SCR over the year is targely due to new business, economic conditions {the reduction
in interest rates over the year) and reduction in tax relief due to the Ogden discount rate change,
partially offset by the impact of the Matching Adjustment and capital optimisation activities.
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Sensitivity analysis of Solvency Il surplus capital

The following table shows the sensitivity of the group’s Solvency |l surplus and capital coverage ratio to
economic assumptions. All other assumptions remain unchanged for each sensitivity, except where these
are directly affected by the revised economic conditions or where a management action that is allowed

for in the Solvency Capita! Requirement calculation is applicable for that sensitivity. In this analysis it is
assumed that there is no benefit from a recalculation of Transition, The credit and gilt spread sensitivities
are relative to swaps. The sensitivities allow for the impact of the group’s hedging strategy.

Impact on Solvency npact on Solvency
Il capital surplus Il coverage ratie
2016 2016
£m %
Changes In Economlc assumptlons
Equity values fall by 10% {35) (4)
Credit spreads increase by 50bps 84 10
Gilt spreads increase by 25bps (51) {5)
Fixed Interest yields fall by 25bps {39) (5)
Fixed Interest yields increase by 25bps 37 [

The group surplus position is affected by the sensitivities due to the following:

« Afall in equity values reduces the value of the group's defined benefit pension schemes and increases
with-profits liabilities due to higher guarantees costs.

+ A widening of credit spreads, relative to swaps, increases the value of the group’s defined benefit
pension schemes, reduces the value of liabilities using the Valatility Adjustment, offset by a reduction
in corporate bond values held to support the with-profits and general insurance business lines.

« Awidening of gilt spreads, relative to swaps, reduces the value of the group’s defined benefit
pension schemes, with the remainder of exposure across the group materially hedged using a
derivative contract.

« Changes to fixed interest rate yields (both swap and gilt rates) lead to changes in the group’s surplus
capita! position, as the Solvency I yield exposure is not fully hedged.
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Capital management actions
During 2016 we have taken a number of acticns to improve our capital position and to reduce the
sensitivity of our capital position to market movements including:

« Implementation of the Matching Adjustment for certain annuity liabilities.

» Interestrate hedging across the group to reduce the exposure of the group Solvency It surplus capital
to interest rate movements.

« Increased longevity reinsurance on our enhanced annuity business.

« Implementation of a quota share agreement to reinsure 20% of our general insurance business.

¢ Transfer of Teachers non-profit annuities into the matching adjustment portfolio.

FUUBLIDADD)

In addition to the above, LVFS received PRA approval to recalculate Transition as of 29 Aprit 2016, due

to the implementation of the Matching Adjustment and as of 31 August 2016, due to changes in the risk
profile of the business. Going forward a key focus for the group is on continuing to reduce exposure of the
capital surplus to interest rates and other market changes.

SIUNCITY INY

For further information regarding how we measure, monitor and manage our capital see Note 3,




36 LV= Annual Report 2016

Definitions

Operatlonal liquidity
Operational Lquid.ty
is generated from
movements n free
assets inthe year
{including cash ang
cash eguvalents andg
surplus assets within
funds in excess of
maiched liabilities),
Operational liquidity
excludes amounts
attributable to the
RNPFN and Teachers
ring-fenced funds.
This metric is not
directly recongilable
to the group's IFRS
Statement of Cash
Flows.

Liquidity management

Liquidity management is required to ensure that the group has sufficient financial resources available 1o
meet its obligations when they fall due. The LV= group has a highly hguid balance sheet with £805 million
of cash and cash equivalents, £6,603 million of listed shares and £5,830 million of listed debt securities,
of which some £8,344 million is realisable within one year.

The table below summarises the expected timing of when the group's invested assets could be realised
and the estimated timing of the payment of habilities. The table shows that assets realisable within one
year are sufficient to cover the investment and insurance contract liabilities and financia! liabilities due in
the next five years.

Group maturity profile of assets and liabilities

£m Within 1 yea Over 1 year Tota
Cash and cash equivalents 805 - 805
Financial assets - fair value through income 6,602 6,889 13,491
Qther assets 937 1,637 2,574
Total assets 8,344 8,526 16,870

umt-

Insurance and investment contract and ! Wahin ; . [ YR .
financial liabilities boked o year Mdears 2Syems S0 Totat
Insurance and investment contract

liabilities 2,527 1,391 1,824 1,468 6,707 13,917
Financial liabilities - 259 5 19 730 1,013
Total 2527 1650 1829 1487 7437 14,930
Cumulative liabllities 2,527 4,177 6,008 7,493 14,930

Operatlonal liquidity

The group generates cperational liquidity (or free cash) from profitable trading in the general insurance
business and from realised margins on in-force tong-term insurance policies, Free cash is used to fund new
business growth, central costs and the mutual bonus, Investment fluctuations will also affect the liquidity
of long-term insurance funds.

When reserves are strengthened or released at a fund level, assets are either transferred from or paid to
the Estate Fund. The transfer of assets into or out of the funds will reduce or release assets to be used
as free cash. In addition, surplus capital is held at subsidiary level to ensure that individual entities are
adequately capitalised and have sufficient liquidity to meet their obligations as they fall due.

The table on the following page summarises the operational tiquidity generated for the Society.
- -

The general insurance business returned funds of £7 million 1o the Society, down from £37 million in 2015
as the general insurance subsidiaries have retained more funds internally in order to strengthen their
capita! positions under Solvency Il. The change in the Ogden discount rate had an adverse impact on the
general insurance subsidiary of £100 million, which required a £40 million capital injection in February
2017. The remaining costs were able to be absorbed within the subsidiary as prior to the announcement
the capital coverage ratio was above the targeted position.

The life outflow has been impacted by increased new business sales of pensions and protection products
which have increased the leve! of new business cash consumption. This was offset by cash generated from
sales of flexible guarantee bonds. Surplus cash of £18 million has also been received within the Estate
from the Equity Release subsidiary.

The £131 million outflow for non-recurring items includes the pay-out for the general insurance long-term
incentive scheme of £43 million, pension scheme contributions of £34 million, consideration paid as part
of the Teachers business acquisition of £26 million and the adverse impact of one-off model and valuation
changes in the heritage business of £60 millien. This is offset by pasitive investment gains in the life and
heritage business of £37 million.

Operational liquidity as at 31 December 2016 was £306 million, which was £44 million below the group's
liquidity risk appetite of £350 million. The group is pursuing a number of options which are intended to
bring the group within its risk appetite.
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LVFS operational liquidity

£m 2016 2015
General insurance surplus cash remitted* 7 37
Life subsidiaries surplus cash remitted 18 -
Life (21) {10)
Group items** {30) {24)
Debt interest paid {23) (23}
Tax (4) 4
Cutflow before non-recurring items and mutual bonus (53) (24)
Non-recurring items**+* (131) 34
Net {outflow)/inflow before mutual bonus (184) 10
Mutual bonug (17) (27)
Net outflow (201) {17)
Operational liquldity held at 31 December 306 - 507

*  Escludes the ympact of the change in the Ogden discount rate, which has resulted in a £40m capial injecton to the general insurdnoe
subsidianes in 2017,

** Group items comprise centrally managed costs and aisa itve net impaci of the hertage wilh-profits business

** * Includes nel impaci of assumption changes and mvesimem gains in lfe and herrage and ane off cash fiows including the impact of moving to
a Sclvency B asset malching strategy

Outlook

Following the transition to the Solvency Il regulatory regime we will continue to focus on reducing the
balance sheet exposure to volatility in risk-free interest rates and other market changes and carry out
further management actions which are intended to strengthen the capita! position and bring the group’'s
capital surplus and operational liquidity within risk appetite.

Afurther aspect of managing our future capital position is the group’s recent application o the PRA (o
move onto an Internal Model. Adopting the Internal Model for regulatery capital purposes will only occur
following PRA review and approval of the application.

Continued profit contributions are expected from all of our trading businesses, which continue to benefit
from our strong brand and reputation for customer service, However, we expect that the impact of

the Ogden rate decision may adversely affect general insurance underwriting profits and the low rate
environment will impact general insurance investment returns.

Careful consideration of the impact on the group’s capital position, operationat liquidity and cost base,
will be given to any potential future growth opportunities, as we look to ensure that the LV= business
continues o grow member vatue in the years to come.
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General
Insurance
Review

Dur aerer:. .. arorce business
o Straray s uftiored in aq oo

Stove Taeelnor
Manaping Director of General Insurance
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{joined LV in May 2016 knowing that it was a
company with a strong reputation for excellent
service and guality products. If anything, | have been
even more impressed than | thought possible at the
way that our great valyes really put our customers

at the very heart of our business. | am therefore
pleased with how well we have continued to give
good value to our customers, and that we have
delivered a good resuit for LV= and its members

and have continued 1o build on our hentage.

We love being Britain's best loved insurer, so

we are therefore delighted that the number of
policies held by our customers grew by over 5%.
We ended the year with our customers holding
almost five million LV= policies, all our measures
of customer satisfaction improving year-on-year
and we are YouGov's most recommended insurer
for the third year running! We are immensely proud
to have recently been awarded the Which? Most
Recommended Provider for both car and home.
Having already received this status for travel

in November and breakdown in August, these
completed a full suite of accolades for our major
product lines.

Cur colleagues work tirelessly for our customers,
and itis great to see all their efforts appreciated
and recognised. They are the beating heart of our
business, and they make it special.

Our 2016 operating profit, before the impact of
the Ogden rate change, of £113 million was up
57% compared to 2015 reflecting an increase

in investment return and a strong increase in
the underwriting result. Underlying performance
showed good progress, with gross written
premiums up 7% compared to 2015. In large part
this was due to our growth in policies, but also
because prices have gone up across the whole
market in recognition of inflation in claims costs
in recent years.

While our underlying claims costs were impacted
by the increased costs of puting right damage to
vehicles, mainly third parties, these were largely
offset by better outcomes on claims from prior
years. As expected, at £64 million the releases
from prior year ¢laims reserves were not as large
as those in 2015 (£93 million}, Despite this, our
pre-Ogden combined ratio of 94.1% is lower than
2015's 96.1%.

The reduction in the Ogden rate {as outlined in

the Group Finance Director's Review on page 28}
increased our 2016 claims incurred figure by £139
million, resulting in a 2016 operating loss, after the
impact of the Ogden rate change, of £26 million.

We absolutely believe that people who are
seriously injjured should be properly compensated
but nat overly compensated.

We therefore found the recent decision to reduce
the discount rate to minus 0.75% extremely
disappointing. It is encouraging to see the
Government acknowledging the need to consult on this
issue. Ultimately, we want to make sure that a fair
outcome is achieved for all parties involved and we
will work closely with the Government to achieve this.



General Insurance Review 39

Results for 2016

Person, | ator () other @

Home &

Gross written premlums 2016 - £1,581m

Commercial @

Ope-rat g profit ceded to re nsurers o

£1,103m £16Bm£43m £267Tm
0 10% 3= 17%

L

{

Gross written premiums 2015 - £1,472m

(£6m)

5" Operating profit - Pre Ogden 2016 - £113m

|

£1,013m £175m £39m £245m
9 12% 3% 16%

£97m £11m £4m £7m
8k 9% 4% 8%

!

(£am) ORerating profit 2015 - £72m

-

£73m £4mE4m

13% 101 6% 6%
Definitions
Loss ratlo:
Calculated by dividing
Net benefits and
claims by Net 3,090k 829Kk BIlk 143k
earned premiums. Inforce policies 2016 - 4,993k B7% 18% 17% 3%
Calculated by dwviding
segrment Other .
Expenses net of In-force policies 2015 — 4.729k 2014k 850K 237k 131K
Other income by Net ‘sn 18% 15% a%
earned premiums,
Combined ratio:
Calculated as the total £m 2016 2015
of the Loss ratio plus Underwriting result 70 24
the Expense ratio. Investment return a3 28
Investmant Oneratlng profit - pre Ogden 113 72
performance: Resetve increase due to Ogden rate changes ___ 139) -
Expressed as a Operating (loss)/profit - post Ogden (26) 72
percentage of Centraflly managed costs . (2) -
average funds under Amortisation of acquired intangibles {2) (2}
management (FUM). {Loss)/profit before tax (30) 70
FUM include segment
financial assets and
Cash. Adjusiments 2018 2015
are made to exclude Direct operating profit — pre Ogden £93m £91m
Insurance contract Broker operating profit/{loss) - pre Ogden £26m £{19)m
related debtors and Operating profit ceded to reinsurers — pre Ogden (£6m) £nil

to in¢lude accrued
interest and other
minor adjustiments.

Pre-tax return on
capltal:

Calculated as
segment Profit before
tax divided by average
net assets excluding
current year dividend
payments, and in
2015, the LV GIG LTIP
impact on relained
earnings.

69.7% pre Cgden

Loss ratio 81.7% post Ogden 66.3%
. 24.4% pre Ogden
Expense ratio 24.1% post Ogden 29.8%
. . 94.1% pre Ogden
Combined ratio 105.8% post Ogden 96.1%
Investment performance* 2.1% 1.3%
Direct premium income £913m £837m
Broker premium income £668m £635m
Pre-lax return on capital — pre Ogden 14.2% 9.5%
Direct in-force policies 3.6m 3.3m
Broker in-force policies 1.4m 1.4m

" Quinte guuas of rauRHaey

FIMUIFA0D

SIUNOI0Y INQ
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meanc

Broker.

[7] Service
Survey 2016/17

COMMERCIAL

INSURANCE
AWARDS 2018

COMMERCIAL
OF THE YELAR

Direct

Qur direct business grew in LV= branded car and
home portfolios due to strong sates and market
feading renewal retention. This growth was driven
by our continuous focus on providing great value
products. underpinned by great customer service.
These elements featured prominently in our new
‘Fix U’ TV ad, which also promoted our new "good
value, great values’ strapline. Overall policies
increased by 9% te 3.6 million, with our car and
breakdown portfolios passing their 2 million and
1 million milestones respectively. Together with
strong average price growth, overall premiums
grew by 9% from £837 million in 2015 to a new
record high of £913 million. The current year loss
ratio. before the impact of the Ogden rate change,
improved from 74.2% to 71.8%.

To support sustainable profitable growth, and
respond to evolving customer needs and market
developments, we are investing heavily in our
Pioneer Programme, This willreplace our legacy
policy systems and transform our car and home
distnbution capability. We will be able to provide

a better customer experience which reflects how
people want to get in touch with us, and improved
proposition development and pricing. Thanks to great
teamwork, management focus and commiiment, we
remain on track and within budget to roll-out our new
propositions and capabilty in 2017.

Broker

2016 saw a strong turnaround in the profits of
the broker division pre-Ogden from a loss of

£19 million last year to a profit of £26 million

this year. This was achieved through disciplined
underwriting, and a forensic review of all our
business lines. Our broker division policies
remained at 1.4 million and grew premiums by 5%
from £635 million 1n 2015 to £668 million. The
combined ratio, before the impact of the Ogden
rate change, improved to 99.3% compared to
105.5% in 2015. In commercial we have continued
to focus on regional brokers and achieved 9%
growth. Personal lines has concentrated on areas
of the market that complement our direct division.

Unfortunately, we have not been able to make
sustainabie profits in the highly competitive broker
home market, so following consultation we have
decided to withdraw this product from April 2017,
We remain fully commitied to our broker personal
metor and commercial business, and to our home
insurance products sold directly to customers.

We have continued to deliver a strong service
proposition to our brokers and have achieved
Chartered Insurer status for our underwriting
teams during the year which recognises the
professional skilts and knowledge of our people.

Looking ahead

Looking ahead our general insurance business is
strongly positioned in all our markets with excellent
customer service, exciting digital offerings in
development and a very strong brand franchise.
We have delivered a strong improvement in
underwriting profits in 2016, which | am expecling
to continue in 2017, subject, of course, to the
usual caveals about bad weather and large losses,
and the negative impact of the Ogden discount
rate change on our unearned premiums. We have
re-priced our motor business 1o take account of
the higher expected claims costs going forwards.
We are investing in technotogy to improve the
customer experience and eliminate waste. The
expense ratio should continye to improve as we
reap a productivity dividend irom this investment.
Continued volatility in investment markets means
we are more pessimistic about returns fror our
investment portfolio.

The quality and strength of the franchise means
we are lgoking forward to the next couple of years
with a clear plan and confidence we can grow and
succeed in our chosen markets,
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Good value, great values
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Life Review

Owr agiﬁ'ﬁ, and amdersfa.ndz?g
of the needs of our customers
enables us fo react iqfcféﬁf to

c/lafge na c/:a//ergirg market

John Perks

Managing Director Retirement Solutions

Myles Rix

Managing Director Protection

2016 Life Full Year Results

Overall the life business has delivered an
operating profit of £45 million, a 10% increase
on 2015 driven by the continued strength of our
underlying trading businesses.

New husiness volumes have continued to
demonstrate strong growth. In our retirement
solutions business we experienced growth
across every product line bar enhanced annuities
where we took the decision to exit the market.

In protection, new business volumes have

also increased demognstrating the successful
introduction of cur Fastway quote and apply
system which has been very well received by
financial advisers.

Retirement new business contribution before
investment in new propositions remains strong at
£25 million, again driven by our flexible guarantee
product as consumers increasingly utilise our
speclalist savings expertise. At a total level, life
new business contribution before investment

in new propositions is below 2015 levels due to
our reduced parlicipation in whole-of-life
protection markets, which led to a fall in
acquisition allowances.

Ceontinued growth in volumes has increased our
scale and operating efficiency. This has enabled
substantial reserve releases from our in-force
protection business which has contributed to the
overall life operating profit.

Operating Profit

£45 million

+10% on 2015
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Definitions
Present value of hew
business premiums Results 2016
{PVNBP) — - -
The total of new £tm I 2016 2015
single premium Operating profit i 45 41
sales received in Pensions business IFRS adjustment ' 3 (5}
the year pius the Short-term investment fluctuations : T32 (27}
discounted value. at Centrally managed costs {2) {2
the point of sale, of Amortisation of acquired intangibles ' (1) (1)
the regular premiums Profit before tax 77 6
we expect to receive
over the term of
the new contract
sold in the year. For
Equity Release this New business P'.“::.:::;:!(:;\;;:;he“ Singie pramiums New regular pramiums
represents - - - vy p
the amount of loans i 208 2018 e v £m £m
provided. -

Pensions* 996 986 894 893 ' 16 14

Annuities** . 338 309 338 . 309 . - -
New business Flexible Guarantee Bonds* 217 194 , 217 194 b - -
contribution” Equity Release 102 63 102 63 .
The contrnbution to Total retirement solutions 1 1,653 1,552 1,551 1,459 16 - 14
underlying operating Protection , 284 272 - -1 37 35
profit as a result of Total lite i 1,937 1.824 1,551 1,458 53 49

new business written.

New business
margin®

The new business
contribution as

a percentage

of sales on a PYNBP
basis.

Internal rate of return
{IRR}*

The discount

rate at which

the present value of
all expected future
revenue is equal to
the expected mitial
investment to

write the business.
This excludes
investment in new
propositions and
under/overruns.

Payback period*
The length of

time reguired

for the expected
cash flows from new
business to equal
the amount of cash
required to write

the business. This
excludes investment
In new propositions
and under/overruns.

M These metrics are not
directly reconcilable
1o the group’s IFRS
results.

* Pensions customers cen invest part of their pension pot inlo the Fiexible guarantee fund. These sales were pres ously disciosed as Flexible
guarantee bond salas, As the business has come inlo the pension product and s then subsequently re-invested :n our llexible guarantee
fund 1 Is more appropriate that these are disclosed 88 Pensions sales. AS Such, prior periods have been restaled between the Pensions and

Flexibke guarantes bond calegones by £185 milior.

** PYNBP Annwitias sales comprised
+ Enhanced £99 mibon (2015 £116 million): and

« Tradiional fixed Lerm £239 rillior {2015 £183 milkon).

New business contribution

New business margin

in
=
3
-
-
2
=
a
D
)
h-}
)
3
2

SIUBLIIACEY)

SIUN0NY NQ

, 2016 2015 i 2016 2015
. £m im % ]
New business contribution before investment . ! .
in new proposlitions ' I
Pensions* | 2 6 | - 1
Annuities ' 5 4 1 1
Flexible Guarantee Bonds** 1' 16 9 i 7 5
Equity Release . 2. 7 2. 11
Total retirement solutions i 25 ° 26 2 : 2
Protection | is 21 1 5" 8
Total life before investment in new propositions ' 40 47 |1 2 3
Investment in new propositions*** 1 (9} {17) 1 1
Net new business contribution . 31 - 30 2 2
*  Cakulated on a value add basis, | 0. before pensions business IFRS adjusiment.
** Flexble guarantee bonds includes the contribution trom Flewible guaranies fund sales
*** Expense incurred developing new products.
New business internal rate of return and
. Ly
payback perIOd ona SOIvenCy I baSIS Intermal rste of return Payback portod
. 2016 | 2015 2016 " 2015
I % ‘l % Years Years
Annuities** | 25 20 4 - 5
Pensions 6 8 11 i 10
Flexible Guarantee Bonds*** | 30’ 3.
Total retirement solutions 1 16 ¢ 12 1 5 7
Protection | 12 - 14 4 7 6
Total life H 14 13 1 5 : 7

* Metncs are calculated on 8 Sohvency | basis to provide consistency with the new business contribution table above.
*+ Metncs for Annuities are calculated including an element of Equily release cxpenses as & propori-on of the Equity release asset is used to

back the Enhanced annuity Kability

*** Flexible guarariee bond metrics are calculsted including the contnbution and value of Fiexble gusiantee fund sales. The impact of mutual

borus 1s excluded from these calcuiations Metnics foe 2015 are not available,
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MOST
TRUSTED

LITE INSURANCE
PROVIDER
LV=

Retirement Solutions

The retirement business has continued to grow in
2016, delivering a 7% increase in new business
premium income and a record leve! of operating
profit. We have seen increased new business sales
across almost every product [ine, with pensions
nearing the £1 billion mark, fixed term annuities up
24%, our flexible guarantee bond up 12% and equity
release up 62%. Overall new business contribution
remains strong.

Towards the end of 2016 we took the decision

to stop selling new enhanced annuity business,
following the exit of a number of other providers
in the market. This decision was driven by the low
interest rate environment and the high capital
requirements of Solvency Il. We felt that whilst
enhanced annuities remain the right solution for
certain individuals, we could not offer them at a
competitive enough rate to avoid any potentially
adverse customer outcomes.

We have continued our strategic investment in our
syslems and processes, with greater adoption

by financial advisers of both our new business

front end, Retirement View, and of our Retirement
Account proposition as blending gains more
traction in the market. In addition we have been
focused on improving efficiencies within our back-
office operations, and both customers and financial
advisers should feel the benefit of this over time.

In an environment where customers are
embracing their freedoms of choice for saving

and their income in retirement, we continue to
develop a range of complementary expert advice
propositions. Our goal is to ensure we can help
consumers access affordable and convenient
professional help, in what for most are complex
decisions, to enable them to secure good
outcomes tailored to their needs and preferences.

Our Retirement Advice business grew by 25%,

both through direct marketing, supporting our
heritage customers and in 2016 opening up new
corporate solutions distribution, securing deals
with a number of partners who recognise the
importance of offering their customers direct
access to regulated advice. With the support of
Wealth Wizards, the company in which we have
had a majority stake since August 2015, our
ground-breaking low cost robo-advice solution {LV=
Retirement Wizard} and our new Pension Compass
service for customers considering the suitability
of transferring some or all of their defined benefits
into more fiexibie retirement income arrangements
are gaining real appeal and firmly evidence

our distinctive ability to deliver modern advice
solutions for today's market.

We continue to focus on developing our market
leading propositions and, with continued high
levels of customer satisfagtion, remain confident
that we can continue to challenge the industry to
ensure customers the best possible outcome for
their at-retirement income.

Protection

Growth in our protection business was underpinned
by sales of Critical lliness and Term Life which both
achieved double digit sales growth. This includes
our highest ever financial adviser performance

and further growth in LV= Business Protection,

our proposition for small and medium business
owners. Qur participation in the whole-of-life
protection markets was substantially curtailed in
2016 as a result of the current extended low yield
environment.

To support our goal of providing good quality
propositions at a good price, we have made
significant investment in transforming our
protection business through the launch of
Fastway, our new quote and apply system. Fastway
combines the benefits of technology with the
expertise of our people, providing a faster and
mere intuitive application journey and enables
maore clients to be covered quicker. This has heen
very well received by financial advisers and is a key
driver of our increased sales velumes and

cost control.

Qur core ambition to deliver financial protection to
more people across the UK has led 1o the launch of
‘Protection Heartland’. This enables us to further
extend our intermediated fcotprint by working
closely with like-minded protection firms to foster
innovation and collaboration,

Through our comprehensive staff training we now
resolve even more customer requests straight
away, and this has all been achieved whilst
delivering the strong service befitung of the UK's
Most Trusted Life Insurer (Moneywise 2016). and
a 5 Star rating in the Life & Pensicns Financial
Adviser Services Awards (201.1-2016).

Looking ahead

Our agility and understanding of the needs of our
customers enables us to react quickly to change in
a challenging market.

Across our retirement and protection businesses
financial advisers will remain our primary
distribution channel and we are making smart
investments in digital solutions to make it easier
for them to do business with us while at the same
time reducing our costs.

In a changing financial world, our approach remains
consistent; earning the trust of our customers and
members by providing good value backed up with
great values.
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Cood, value, great values

We want our members to have access to good value, transparent products, Shopping around at retirement
is vital so when the Treasury introduced a 1% cap on pension exit fees for the over 55s, we were the first
provider to pledge that we would cancel exit fees altogether, This means that our members have the
freedom and confidence to switch to another type of product or a different provider without incurring any
penatties.

We lead the way in the Robo-Advice market with the innovative and ground-breaking online system we
call Retirement Wizard. Retirement Whzard is the first online regulated advice tool in the UK that offers
customers a full retirement advice report for just £198. It offers all the benefits of speaking to a financial
adviser but through a fully online journey with a series of complex algorithms powering the solution, at a
much lower cost.

Ari clderly customer, whao later sadly died
Children’s claims are always tragic. Just seven months frome dementss, biad becn i contact wth us to
atter they had started their policy. our customers’ put an ond to hor policy, When her fanul, potin
daughter was severely injured in a road traffic accident. touch to tell us that she had passed away, and 1o
The claim was received some years after the policy had cashn the policy. we real that ot customer
lapsed as the parents were unaware their daughter had nnt understond e repact of her actions,
was covered under the policy. \We decided to pay the We dogregaraee the histonical cancellation ans
claim and we are sure this offered some real financial prac eeded 1 pay out under the policy.
assistance for the family.

vodey 23nens

8IUBLIGA0T

RIUNOOSY IND

We do not Just pay ciams, Helping our mcome
protection custometrs back to work 1s preat for
their overall well-being and senso of purgose,
Qur rehabiination adviscr makes sure that clamnants
get all the supnort they need. This could be through
helping them to access medical specialists, working
through a return to work plan o1 support transitioning
into a different role. Knowing that they dare not alone
often nspires custamers back inta the work-ptace
and society soaner,

“ I am in my third week hack
on full duties after my

opcration. The graded return to
work plan that you arrangead worked
perfectly. You also kept me ona
level pathway. Without your support
| would have been off work for

twelve months, rather than ’
seven months.

Mr W, Andover
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Heritage Review

Results 2016

£m 2016 2015
Underlying operating loss {13) {3)
Model and valuation changes (22) 91
Qperating {loss)/profit {35) 88
Short-term investment fluctuations and related items* 21 11
Cenirally managed costs 2) -
Gain arising on Teachers acquisition 3 -
(Loss)/profit before tax {13) 99

* Shooterm rtvesmire et Auctuatoms and 1o Tated e ustains the ‘i e mipae® 0f fan Jedcted 2o s polioy asset st s and the RNPFN
fund totulhing £42 mull an 2019 £u | raihen)

The heritage business includes ordinary branch
and industrial branch with-profits policies along
with some non-profit business and it also includes
with-profits and unit-linked business acquired
from the Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses
(‘RNPFN"). The with-profits policies are a mix of
both unitised and conventional business. Sales of
the few open categories in 2016 were £8 million
on a PYNBP basis (2015: £9 million). Total policies
in-force are 651,000 of which 593,000 are with-
profits and reserves are £5.3 billion.

In the first half of 2016 Teachers Assurance was
brought in as a ring-fenced fund within LV=. This
introduced a further 55.000 policies, adding
approximately £750 million to the group Statement
of Financial Position.

Heritage operating loss of £35 milhon (2015:

£88 million operating profit) is driven by adverse
model and valuation changes of £22 million (2015:
£91 million favourable) and additional payments
made to ensure policyholders are treated in line
with the Principles and Practices of Financial
Management (PPFM).

Adverse mode! and valuation changes of £39
million (2015: £69 million favourable) refates

to the methodology used to value the liabilities
for OB pension policies, which was adjusted
during both years 1o reflect a change in the basis
used to calculate the amount payable when the
policyholder elects to take the proceeds from the
policy as cash rather than as an annuity. There
has been uncertainty around this following the
pensions freedom legislation which has required
refinement over the last two years. This was
partially offset by £20 million of unit cost savings.

Continued cost control has ensured that costs are
being managed n line with the predicted run-off of
the business.

The main with-profits fund achieved an investment
return of 14.5% for the year. Whilst the fund
marginally underperformed against the benchmark
for the year by 1.0% it is 0.8% above benchmark
over the last five years,

We have completed our analysis of the Finangial
Conduct Authority {FCA) review into the treatment
of long-standing customers, whose policies are
no longer being actively marketed. This will result
in some changes to our communications ang
operational procedures as we consider the FCA
‘best practice’ recommendations.
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Cood, value, great values

Heritage with-profits pay-outs and industry comparison

Recent maturity and surrender values for LVFS with-profits policies show that LV= continues to perform
strongly, exceeding median pay-outs for all but one of the policy selected calegories and achieving top
quartile pay-outs in ten of the twelve categones, when compared against industry pay-outs.
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Pension {single)

Notes

1.The pay-ouls sre based on the following policies
+ Endowmeni — Policyholder aged 30 next birthday Al entry. monthly premiuom of £50, matwing 1 Februsry 2016
- With-Profits Growlh Bond = An investment of £10.000 as st 1 Novernber 2016.
- Pension {regular) - Pokcyholder retining at sge 65 monthly premium of £200 maturing 1 January 2016,
+ Pension (single} = Policyholder retinng Al age 65 an wivestment of £10,000, matuning 1 Janysry 2018,

SIUNOY N

2. The indusiry pay-outs are laken from pasi parformance suiveys and relate 1o maturises and bond surtenders dunng 2016 The sources aie
- Endowment — Money Management survey published April 2016
+ With-Profits Growth Bond - Money Mansgement survey published Jonuary 2017,
+ Penglon (regular) - Money Management survey publiished March 20186,
+ Pansion (single} - Money Managerment sutvey pubbshed March 2016

We achieve top
guartile payouts in

10 of 12

benchmarked categories
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T
Risk
Management

The effective maragement of
the. risks we accept supports
L@ the deﬁ't/erly of our strateql
s and protects the value that
ye create for members.

In operating in the life, general insurance and
heritage sectors, LV=takes on a range of risks that
need to be understood and well managed. These
risks arise from the type of products we provide,
the commitments we make to our customers, and
the general environment in which we operate. 3. Arisk governance culture which encourages all
LV= employees to engage actively in risk
management through the operation of group-
wide risk policies, standards and procedures.

2. Arisk management system that is used
to identify, assess and manage the risks
in accordance with the risk appetite
framework; and

Qur approach to managing our risks

The effective management of the risks we accept

supports the delivery of our strategy, protects the
value that we create for members, and helps us to
identify oppertunities where we can make better

Our risk appetite framework
The value of the business comprises the net

use of our capital.

Our risk management approach has the following

core components:

1. Arisk appetite framework which sets out the
type and amount of risk the group is able and
willing to accept;

Value
of the
Business

value of the assets and liabilities {'Balance Sheet
Value') plus its brand and reputation {'Franchise
Value') and therefore the risk appetite framework
is focused on safeguarding these value drivers by
aligning risk to them.

Balance
Sheet
Value

Franchise
Value

Risks to the
Value of the
business

» Loss of reputation

« Lack ot loss
of capability

+ Fallure to meet
stakeholder
commitments

+ Value of Capital
Resources falls

« Increased Capital
Requirement

« Llquidity

Risk Appetite
statements tor risk
of loss of balance
sheet value

Risk Appetite

statement for

risk of loss of
franchise value



Risk Management 49

As a result of this approach the board has approved the following five risk appetite statements:

- - -7

Financial Strength
{B.once S0t el

- . [
—_— —— y

S&P A’ rated firm.

LV== will hold a level of capital surpius that 1s equivalent to being assessed as an

tV— has no appelte to breach the regulatory Mirimum Capital Requirement {MCR} and 1s

Solvency Strength
{Bisivtyor =t e}

Operational Liquidity
1Bilance Sheet vilue

Reputation & Capabliity
{Franchise value}

Stakeholder Commitment
{Franchise value}

These risk appetite statements are supported by:

Risk preference statements which qualitatively set out
the risks we believe we are capable of managing in order
to generate a return, the risks we can support but which
we share with third parties, and the risks we seek to avoid
or minimise; and

Risk limits (or tolerances) and triggers which quantify
specific decision points, chiefly to provide an early warning
to initiate actions which should ensure the risk appetite
boundaries are not breached.

Our risk management system
The risk management system is comprised of four core steps
as detailed in the foliowing figure:

*

L Risk
Management

"System -,

Identify: Risk identification is carried out on a regular basis,
including as part of the business planning process and

any major business initiatives. The process draws on a
combination of internal and external data and considers both
normal conditions and stressed environments. Risks are
recorded on a business-wide risk register.

Assess: We measure risk on the basis of the capital we

believe we need to hold (as well as other bases if appropriate).

This supports our assessment of their significance relative to
the potential return that can be earned from taking the risk,
and therefore enables us to appropriately direct resources to
their management.

only prepared to breach the Solvency Capital Requirement {SCR] in the event of severe risk
stresses or scenarios and therefore targets holding addiional capitet above its SCR to
protecl ageinst such events. For year end 2016 this target was £470 midlion.

Lv.- wili hold sufficrent hquid capital resources to ensure it can meet s operational iquidity
requirements in both normal and stressed circumstances. The target liquidity buffer to
protect afainst stressed conditions is £350 milion.

LV-- will seek to avoid nisks that matenally impair its reputation, while ensuring that
its treatment of customers and its operational capabilities are designed (o deliver
fairr customer outcomes,

LV= will, after 8 £100 milion stress, and over a cumulauive three year period, amm to
generate sufhcient profit after tax to meet its planned mutual bonus and debt interest
payments without recourse to retained earmings,

LV= has an internal capital model that calculates the amount
of capital required in respect of each risk. This assessment
is performed at an individual risk, business line, entity, and
group level and is based on the level of capital we would need
to hold to survive an extreme risk event (assessed as being

a 1 in 200 year event). The calculation is then adjusted to
recognise any imter-relationships between all the risks within
LV=to determine a group-wide capital requirement. This
model is then used to support the calculation of the group’s
own solvency assessment and the regulatory required level
of capital; where these differ a reconciliation is produced and
considered in detail by the board.

There are some risks, such as liquidity, strategic and
emerging, against which risk capital is not held and which are
therefore excluded from the internal capital model. These
risks are assessed against measures agreed by the board
that are aligned to the risk appetite statements.

Controk: Regular monitoring of the key risks is performed

to ensure that the risk management and mitigation
approaches applied {accept, avoid, transfer, control) are
effective. Monitoring includes reviewing {a) our risk exposures
against the applicable appetites, and (b) key risk indicators
against operating and financial risk limits and tolerances,
Early warning indicators are monitored as triggers for
management decision, such as putung into effect pre-
prepared contingency plans. We monitor the effectiveness

of controls in place to manage operational risks, including
compliance with the group’s policies and minimurn standards.

Report: Risk reporting is captured in the quarterly Group Risk
Information Pack and through regular reports to the board and
the Risk Committee by the chief risk officer. The content is
focused on:
— The current and projected risk and solvency profile
of the group;
- The output of the most recent stress testing and
scenario analysis;
— A review of the current and projected performance
against risk appetite;
— A review and impact assessment of the principal risks;
— Analysis of risk experience and risk events; and
- The performance ratings captured by the conduct
risk dashboard.

AIUBLINAD
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Selected board

committees
¥ Group Executive Risk
: Committee
: Selected
N executive
committees

Risk &
Compliance functions

Our risk governance

Our risk governance framework operates through group-wide risk
policies and business standards, the risk governance structure
set out above, and clearly defined roles, respensibilities and
delegated authorities.

The figure above sets out the summary governance framework
that was in operation during 2016.

In this framework the board retains primary responsibility

for strategy, performance management and risk control and

it has therefore established the Risk Committee 1o assist

in providing leadership, direction and oversight in respect

of the group’s principal risks. The board delegates day-to-day risk
management to the chief executive, who allocates operational
aspects to executives within the group through delegated
authorily mandates. Line management in the business 1s
accountable for risk management, which together with the
risk function and internal audit form our three lines of defence
of risk management.

+ First Line: Business operating functions which includes
praduct development, underwriting, sales and distribution,
customer service, claims handling, finance, investment and
capital management, IT, human resources and legal.

The first line is accountable for the management of all
risks relevant to the business of the function or area and
the management of this is facilitated through executive
committees and the Group Asset and Liability Committee,

s Second Line: G}oup risk management function which afso
includes regulatory compliance and group financial crime,

The second line is accountable for providing objective
challenge and oversight of the business’ management of all
risks and for developing and maintaining the risk management
framework. The management of this is achieved through

the operation of the Group Executive Risk Committee and
business/support unit risk committees which monitor and
keep risk exposures under regular review,

These committees are supported by the chief risk officer,

who has responsibility for establishing and embedding a
capital management and risk oversight framework and cuiture
consistent with our risk appetite that protects and enhances
the group's balance sheet and franchise value.

Internal Audit
function

1 - T
Risk ' Andit [ nvestmant l thprofits (B ermunaration
ommittes ommittee onimittes ommittes JEEUE-ommittes

committees

L eedrevtatoncas?

Actuarial
function

In addition through the group compliance function the chiefl
risk officer provides verification of compliance with regulatory
slandards and informs the board. as well as the group's
management, on key regulatory issues affecting the group.

» Third Line: Group internal audit function.

The third line is accountable for providing reliable independent
assessment and reporting 1o the Audit and Risk Committees,
board members and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and control
frameworks operated by the {irst and second lines of defence.

Risk Policles

Qur risk policies set out specific requirements for the
management of the principal risks of the group along with the
tisk management framework that must be followed. The chief
executive along with the business and support unit directors
annually confirm to the board that they have implemented the
necessary controls to evidence compliance with the required
systems and controls set out in these policies.

Risk Culture
A core component of effective risk governance is the risk
culture within LV=_ This culture i$ reinforced through our staff
having clear roles and responsibilities, the right skills and
capabilities, and the appropriate incentives and rewards.
We strive 10 embed a risk-aware culture and values in our
business in three main ways:
s by the leadership and behaviours demonstrated
by management;
» by building skills and capabilities to support management; and
¢ by including risk management (through the balance
of risk with profitability and growth) in the performance
evaluation of key identified individuals.
The remuneration strategy at LV=is designed to be consistent
with its risk appetite, and the chief risk officer advises the
Remuneration Commitiee on adherence to our risk framework
and appetite.
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The principal risks to which LV=is exposed

The principal risks to which LV= is exposed have not changed significantly during 2016, and are detailed in the tables below

in four broad groupings:

» Product specific risks;

» Financial market risks;

s Operational risks, and

¢ General environment {strategic and emerging) risks.

The table below sets out a description of each risk, the board's preference for each risk {1s 1t a risk we look to accept, avoid, transfer
or control), and the nsk management in place o control the rnisk. The largest three risks are: Life and health insurance longevity risk,
general insurance reserving risk and credit risk from investing in fixed income assets.

Product Specific Risks

Life and health Insurance risks arise principally from the sale
of our protection and retirement products. The group aiso
has a significant exposure to longevity risk from its in-force
Heritage portfolio and the Staff Pension Scheime. The most
material risks in the Group are:

» Longevity (top three rsk} « Mortality

+ Morbidity s Persislency

* Expense

in determining the price of our protection and retirement
products and when reporting the results of providing these
products we need to make a number of assumptions on our
customers longevity, mortality, and/or morbidity.

in addition, we nead to assess how long the customer will retain
the product with LV= (persistency risk) and on the expected
costs of providing and supporting the product and our customer
(expense risk).

The risk to LV= arises from the actual cutcome being different
to our assumptions.

General insurance risks arise principally from the sale of our
molor, home, and commercial insurance products. The most
material risks are:

* Premium + Reserve (top three risk)

s lLarge loss s Natural catastrophe

In desighing and pricing our general insurance products we
make 3 number of assumptions about the expected number
of claims, the average cost of each claim, and the average
premium we will receive (together these rnsks are defined as
premium risk).

We zlso assess each year the expected level of claims we will
have to pay based on events which have already occurred but
where claim settiement remains outstanding (reserve rnsk).

We also make assumptions as to the number and average cost
of motor insurance claims with a value greater than

£1 milhon and also the number and average cost of those

that will be settled not as a lump sum but by regular payments
for the remainder of the policyholder’s life {large loss risk).

LV= may also be exposed to claims arising from natural
catastrophe events (e.g. extreme weather) and an assumption
is made as to the number and severity of such events

(natural catastrophe risk).

In all the above instances the risk to LV= arises from the fact
that the actual outcome will be different from our assumptions.

Risk Preferm}i

We will take iife and
health insurance risks
where we have the
appropriate core skills
in pricing, underwriting
and reserving.

We accept mortality,
and morbidity risks
as they diversify well
{i.e. have little or no
correlation) against
othar risks we ratain,

Longevity, parsisiency
and expense risks are
unrewarded and will
generally ba reduced
toaslowalevelasis
commarcially sansible.

We will take general
nsurance risks

where we have the
appropriate core skiils
in pricing, underwriting,
and reserving,

We accept a leve! of
general insurance risks
as they diversify weil
against other risks we
retain. Above appetite
level, risk is transferred
through reinsurance.

Risk MW'

Risk appetites set 1o limit
exposures Lo key life and
health insurance risks;
Extensive use of data,
financial models and
analysis to improve pricing
and risk selection;
Product design that ensures
products and propositions
meet customers’ needs;
Use of reinsurance to
transfer some of the
longevity, mortality. and
morbidity risks

to other insurers; and
Documeniad clalms
managemsnit phllosophies
and procaduras.

Risk appetites set to limit
exposures to key general
insurance risks;

Extensive use of data,
financial models and
analysis to improve pricing
and risk selection;

Clearly defined delegations
of underwriting authority
with individual limits;
Product design that ensures
products and propositions
meel customers’ needs;
Documented claims
management procedures;
and

Use of rensurance to reduce
the financial impact ¢f a
catastrophe and manage
capital.
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Financial Market Risks

WA S — .

Credit risk (top three risk) arises from investing in fixed income
assets (government and corporate bonds) where there is arisk
that the bond may fall in value.

We invest in fixed income asseis in order to match our liabilities
10 certain policyholders (principally holders of annuities but also
holders of certain heritage and general insurance policies).

The risk to Ly= arises from changes in the value of the asse&ts
(e.g. driven by company/secior downgrades, reduced market
liquidity) which are not reflacted in the value of the underlying
policyholder liabilities.

Other investment risk arises as part of our general investment
performance and product pricing, The most matenal nsks are:
= Equity price

= Property

+ Interestrate

The risk to LV= anses from the performance of the investments
being different from that agsumed in the planning and pricing
processes.

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility thal we are unable to
reallse sufficient cash 1o be ahle, aithough sofvent, to meet our
commiitments 1o customers or third party partners when they
Tall dus or can only secure tham at an sxcessive cost. This may
arise alther bacause of Lhe nature of the investments held or
adverse markst conditions,

Counterparty risk arises from the holding of iInvestment assets,
hedging risks assoclated with certain invesiment assets,
reinsuring certain product related risks to third parties, and
from normal trade credit such as brokers and premium finance.

The risk to LV= is that a counterparty defaults on its obligations
or fails to meet them in a timely manner.

We will take credit risk as
we believe we have the
expertise to manage it.

As an insurer, we beneiit
from being able to invest
for the long-term due

to the relative stability
and prediciability of our
cash outflows.

We actively accept some
market risks as part

of our Investment and
product strategy.

We have a hmited
appetite for interest rate
and inflation risks as

we do not believe that
these are adequatety
rewarded. These

risks are controlled or
transferred through risk
management aclions.

Liquidtty risk is avolded
bacause we have no
appeilie for not mesting
our commitments.
Tharelore sufficiant
liquid Ainancial rasources
are reiained to mest
paymants in bath normal
and stresssd markst
conditions.

In our fe business we
seek the additional
return that is provided
by Hliquid assets, where
this matches the term
of our annuity habilities.
This results in accepting
some counterparty

risk (e.g. m commercial
and equity release
mortgages).

We have limited appetite
for other counterparty
risk, but accept this risk
selectively to optimise
risk-adjusted returns,

Risk appetites set 1o limit
overall level of credit risk;
Credit limit framework
imposes limits on credit
concentration by issuer,
sector and type of
Instrument;

[nvestment restrictiohs

on sovereign and corporate
exposure io some
Eurgzone countries;

Credit risk hedging: and -
Specific asset de-risking.

Risk appetites set o

it exposures to key
market rnisks;

Aclive asset management
and hedging by the

group Investment
management team; and
Asset and liability matching
limits to manage the impact
of interest rate changes.

Risk appetite set io ansure
mindmurm liquidity ratlos are
malniained in normal and
siressed market conditions;
Agsai liability matching

to ansuee cash flows are
sufficlent to meat Kabillties;
and

Limitations on the (evel and
qualtty of collatarad that can

_ behsld in respect of hadging

ATARZEMAnts.

Risk appetite set 10 limit
counterparty exposures
and concentrations,
Investment restrictions

on sovereign and corporate
counterparty exposure to
some Eurozone countries;
Investment restrictions

on aggregate and fund credit
quatity; and

Specific controls to
manage exposure

to asset counterparties
and reinsurers.
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Operational Risks

Operational risk arises from all aspects of running the
business. The principal categories of operational risk
for LV= are:
e Fraud and crime « Financial processes
+ [nformation security  + Business interruption
» legalandregulatory « Customer/conduct
* Peqple, processes, * Outsourcing
and IT systems

In order to process targe volumes of transactions, we are
dependent on various IT systems end platforms, across
numerous and diverse products. We also operate under the
ever-evolving requirements sei out by different regulatory and
legal regimes {including tax), as well as utllising a significant
number of third parties to distribute products and to suppoit
business operations.

Our IT, data management, complignce and other operational
systems and processes incorporate controls that are
dasigned to manage and mitigate the operational risks
associated with our activities. This includes threats such

as computer viruses, attempts at unauthorised access,
fraud and cyber-securlly attacks,

The rigk to LV= geours through the losses 1hat could occur
if the intama) control framework to manage thesea core businass
processes fails,

General Environment (Strategic and Emerging) Risks

LV= is exposed to a number of strategle and emerging risks
that wilt typically be driven by one of or a combination of the
following environmental factors:

s Pgiitical events

Environmental changes

Social and welfare changes

Technelogy change

Legal changes

Economic events

We assess these risks from two perspectives:
1. Do they change the markets we operate in such that
they become incompatible with our strategic objectives.

2. Do they limit LV= from operating effectively in its
chosen markets and therefore cause a review of its current
business model.

Risk Prefeﬂ

Operational risk is
avoided by reducing it
toaslowalevelasis
commercially sensible,
on the basis that taking
operationatl risk will
rarely provide us with an
upside, and operational
failures may adversely
impact our reputation,
impairing our ability to
atiract new business, or
tead {0 poor customer
outcomes.

& : 1. h

The board operates a
comprehensive risk
management system
{0 help the business
control these inherent
risks of operating in
its chosen markets,

The risk management
system is designed to
help the board identify,
assess, and manage
such risks as soon as
they become a realistic
threat to the group.

Assurance activity and
information on the
operation of the controls
from management, internat
audit and risk functions,
supported by operational
risk and audit registers and
first ine cortrol logs;
Attestation process that
reporis to the board on the
efifectiveness of conirois;
Risk reporting and root
cause analysis processes
inraspect of afl reported
operational logses;
Significant investmant. in
financial crime and fraud
management resources;
Scenario based approach to
determine the appropriate
level of caplial to hold for
opearational risks;
Considaration of how
oparational risks might
materialiga in a stregsed
gituation (for axample a
catestropha) in addition to
day-to-dey normaiity; and
Monitoring and reporting
on tha impact of our
operstionsl processes on
our customers.

Reguiar review of emerging
risk registers;

Scenario, war-gaming, and
workshop sessions with
internal/external experts;
Stress testing analysis
and assessment;

Oniy taking risks the group
has the ability to understand
and manage;

Annual business planning
and strategy cycle with
regular review of key

risk indicators; and
Controls to minimise

risk concentrations.
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General Environment (Strategic and Emerging) Rlsks continued

The general environment tisks that LV= is monitoring include:
« Climate change - potentially resulting in higher than
expected weather-related claims and inaccurate pricing
of general insurance risk.

» New technologies - failure 10 understand and react to
the impact of new technology and its effect an customer
behaviour and how we distribute products.

« Regulatory change - our businesses face considerable
regulatory change as a result of Solvency I, our corporate
structure as a mutual and developments in regulation
refating to customer outcomes and value for money,
which could affect how much capital we hold, how we
operate and how we séell and distribute our products.

e Political risk — The government in the UK incentivises
long-term saving and ptivate pension provision through
tax benefits, while also providing an alternative through
state provision. In some markets there are (or could be
in the future) restrictions and controls on premium rates,
rating factors and charges. Any change in public policy
could influence the demand for, and profitability of, our
progucts.

» Brexit —the decision by the UK to leave the European
Union is expected o have a range of regulatory, political,
and economic implications. LV= has performed a detailed
assessment of the risks and continues to closely monitor
developments. However, as a UK focused business with
no European sites or employees the impact on LV=is not
expected to be significant.

s Cyber crime - criminals may attempt to access our iT
systems to_steal or utilise company and/or customer data,
or plant malware viruses, in order to access customer or
company funds, and/or damage our reputation and brand.

Prolonged low interest rate environment — if current
low interest rates continue for a prolonged period it will
adversely affect the margin we can earn between the
returns we can offer customers and the return we earn
on our investments, as well as the attractiveness of
the returns we can offer Lo new customers.

New and emerging latent claims - new claims on policies !
written a long time in the past may arise as a result of court

judgements extending liability, new legis!ation,

new historic evidence and interpretation, emerging medicat

science on health effects of long-term exposures to

chemicals ete.

Medical advances and healthier life styles - medical
advances and healthier life styles may increase life
expectancy of our annuitants and thus future payments
over their lifetime may be in excess of the amounts

we currently expect.

Pandemics, new diseases and antibiotic resistance -
the adverse impact on mortality could adversely affect
the profitability of our life protection products and might
also disrupt our operations.

Big Data - failure to keep pace with the use of data
to price more accurately and to detect insurance
fraud could lead to loss of competitive advantage
and financial losses.

Changes in customer behaviour - changes in the legal
environment or as a result of advances in technology

may change the rates at which customers exercise options
embedded in their contracts or enable them

to take advantage of additional information available to
them to exercise options in a way that is adverse to us.
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The board assessment of our risks and risk
management processes

Assessment of the risk and control environment

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s risk and
control environment and to support its management of risk the
board utilises Audit and Risk Committees. The Audit Committee
is responsible for monitoring the internal control framework,
which ensures the risks accepted are managed within risk
appeute, and the Risk Committee is responsible for the effective
operation of the risk management system.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee receives regular reports from the group
internal audit director which set out the results of the audits
performed in the period since the last meeting. These reports
highlight in particular significant control weaknesses or failings
along with the recommended action to improve the control,
and common or systemic themes arising from audils across
the group. This reporting enables the Audit Committee to gain an
understanding of whether the internal contro! processes

are operating as expected and to report on this assessment

to the board.

An overview of the activity of the Audit Committee in 2016
is set out on page 82.

To support this activity the chief executive and his direct
reports make an annual attestation and associated exception
report to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the

risk management system and controls being operated,

The attesiation process is led by the chief risk officer.

The attestation provides the following assurance to the

committee, along with any material exceptions:

+ All material risks and controls have been identified, assessed
and managed;

= Appropriate systems and controls have been implemented,
which are adequately designed to manage the group's risk
exposures and are capable of detecting. preventing and
limiting fraud and error;

+ All reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that all
material risks and key contro!s for business units, including
all types of principal risks (i.e. strategic, financial and
operational), have been identified, assessed and recorded,
atong with the associated key controls;

+ Alirisks outside of risk appetite have been identified and have
appropriate mitigation plans in place to bring them within
appetite; or they have been formally risk accepted,
or they are included in the exceptions report;

+ An assessment of the internal control environment within
each area of the business has been performed;

« Adequate controls are in place to mitigate identified risks;
+ Allrisks are owned and undersinod;

s All material control weaknesses that management are
aware of are listed in the exceptions report; and

» There are no material areas of non-compliance with
group policies.

Risk Committee

The principal role of the committee is to assist the board

in discharging its risk oversight responsibilities by.

+ Focusing on current risk exposure, future nsk strategy
and the embedding and maintenance of an appropriate
culture in relation te the management of risk; and

« Providing assurance 10 the board on the effectiveness of risk
management and of the risk management framework of the
group and acting as the main conduit between management
and the board on risk matters.

In support of this the committee receives a regular report
from the chief risk officer on changes in the risk profile,

the performance against risk appetile, material risk events,
and the operation of the risk management framework.

The Risk Committee also reviews at each meeting the
principal risks of the group and their assessment against
the board's appetite for such risks. A summary of the activity
of the Risk Committee is shown in the table overleaf.

Board assessment

Based on the reports of these committees, the attestation
from management, a detailed review of the exceplions report,
and any additional reviews undertaken by the board itself,

the directors make their assessment of the effectiveness

of the risk management and internal controls systems and
this is provided in the Directors” Report on page 90.
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The main areas of focus for the Risk Committee in 2016 are set out in the table below:

Oversight of the
principal nsks
of the business,

Oversight of the
operation and output
of the Stress Testing
and Scenario Analysis
(STSA) Framework.

Monitornng the
investment risk
activities performed
by the group Asset and
Liability Committee
(ALCO).

Oversight of, inciuding
assessment and
challenge of, the

risk menagament
framework.

Reviewing
performance against
risk appetite and
proposing changes

1o risk appetite
statements and limits.

Ovarsight of

sl regulatory
compliance matlars,

Oversight of the
group’s conduct
risk framework

and dashboard.

Overaight of the ORSA
procass snd ravisw
of the ORSA report.

Assessing the
group's recovery and
resolution plans

Assessment of
{he effectiveness
of the committee.

Ation T yed

AF v 5
One-to-one interviews with the managing directors of the general insurance and life businesses,

the chief executive, the group finance director, the chief information officer and the group internal
audit director,

Receiving regular reports on the information security risk and control envirenment.

Reguesting and receiving risk based “deep drll™ reports into principal nisks including longewity,
credil, emerging, and advice nshks.

Through the QRSA process regular challenge on the strategic and emerging risks that could impact
the business model, including capital, hquidity, and regulatory nsks.

Agreeing STSA plan for the vear.
Chellenging and advising on testing to be performed as part of the business plan.
Reviewing the results of testing as part of the review of the business plan.

Challenging the associatad mitigating actions under siress and the ability of Lhe group to recover
within rigk appetite in a sufficiently Uimely manner.

Reviewing a quarterly ALCO report from the group finance director, who chairs the group ALCO.

Reviewing and challenging the risk management and hedging strategy for financiat market risks in
particular, including commissioning an external review of hedge effectiveness.

Review of the principal risks of the group.
Regular reports recetved from the chief risk officer.
Approval of risk policies. :

Commissioning an axternal review of risk effectiveness across the group and inftiation of 8 Risk
Developmeant Programme to support the ongoing development of risk capabllity in LV,

Requesting and raceiving a review of hedgae afisctiveness
Review of risk appetite statements and associated risk strategy principles,

Chalienging the appropriateness of the risk limits and tolerances, especially for capital surplus
and liquidity.

Regular reports received from the chief risk officer.

Review of the capital management framework,

Reguiar reporis received from the haad of group compliance.

Regular reports received from the chief risk oficer and the head of group compliance,

Detailed review of the product governance and conduct arrangements operated by the business
units.

Reviewed reports prasented by the chief risk officer on the proposed QRSA process.
Input and chaliengs 1o tha quartarly and il year ORSA reporis.

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Recovery Plan and in particuiar its alignment with revised risk
appetite limits as the group looks to transition to an Internal Model.

Challenged the Resolution Plan of the group to ensure 1t was fully understood and embedded into
the underfying business processes.

Performed s review of the members and attendees on the committee's effectivenass.
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Assessment of the principal risks

The board has responsibility for assessing the principal risks

of the group and whether the associated risk management and
internal control systems are capable of ensuring that these risks
can be managed without materially threatening the business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. Where in
extreme scenarios it is assessed that the principal risks could
provide a threat then the board has responsibility for ensuring
appropriate plans are in place that enable, with reasonable
expectation, the group to continue in operation and to meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period of review defined in the
Directors’ Report.

The board, with support from the Risk Committee and the chief
risk officer, undertakes a regular and robust assessment of the
principat risks, This assessment js a central component of the
Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (QRSA) process in operation
across the group, which is shown in the figure above.

The ORSA process comprises the activities set out in this figure,
with each comprising a number of established processes within
LV=, such as the regular identification and review of the principal
risks and the current and future assessment of the solvency and
liquidity of the group. The output of these processes is detailed
within regular management information and reports-presented
to and considered by the board. The board reviews these records
and documents as they become available, and this forms the
basis of the ongoing ORSA assessment.

The ORSA is not a one-off process — the activity lakes place
throughout the year, with the latest assessment set out in

a quarterly report as well as the annual ORSA report, which is
normally produced foliowing completion of the business plan
process in December.

e )

Governance

As part of the ORSA process the board and the Risk Committee
have undertaken the following activities during 2016 to identify
and assess the principal risks both in 2016 and over the next five
years, along with their associated impact on solvency

and liquidity:

e Apreed a programme of stress testing and scenario activity

to be performed in accordance with the group’s stress testing

and scenario framework, This includes the following specific

scenarios performed with a particular focus on financial
markets, general insurance and longevity risks as part of the
business plan review and assessment, all of which have been
estimated to reflect a 1 in 200 year risk event:

- An economic downturn scenario that has been taken from
the Bank of England stress testing exercise 2016. In this
scenario global growth disappoints materially, triggering a
severe and rapid deterioration in market sentiment globally
and driving a significant flow of monies into safe haven assets
during 2017 resulting in a fall in equity markets, wider
credit spreads and a fall in government bond yields; and

- Researchers find an effective treatment for a prevalent
cancer early in 2017. It either saves or materially prolongs
lives of those diagnosed, requiring life insurers to
materially increase the amount of capital they hold against
longevity risk. This new treatment is then fast-tracked into
the National Health Service ensuring it can be applied to
the majority of the UK population.

In addition the board has assessed the resilience of the
business plan under a number of individual and combined
stresses at both a group and entity level. These stress tests
covered changes in corporate bond spreads, changes in

the level and profile of interest rates, changes in the price

of equities, as well as the impact of achieving alternative
volumes of business sales. Stress tests included a downturn
in the motor insurance market leading to adverse combined
and loss ratios in 2017, with sub-business plan trading
performance in 2017-2018 which in turn reduces funds under
management and therefore the level of investment income

in 2017-2019. This scenaric is designed to test the group’s
resilience to general insurance risk including reserve risk,
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Assessment of the principal risks continued

= Reviewed and updated the risk appetite statements and risk
limits for the risk dimensions set out on page 49;

« Reviewed and challenged in detail the register of financial
market, insurance, operational, strategic, and emerging risks
and agreed which of these are the principal risks of the group.
This process includes an assessment of the impact of the
risk, the current and prospective opportunities to mitigate
the risk, and the controls in place to manage the risk;

= Performed an in-depth review of the product risks of the group
as a result of the product portfolios, including their impact on
customers, This covers both current and past products and
assesses the governance and decision making undertaken
by management along with an assessment of the level of
conduct risk being taken by the group and the effectiveness of
the associated controls;

* Received a report from the chief risk officer on the impact of
the proposed business plan for the period 2017 to 2021 on
the risk and solvency profile of the group along with the report
from the chief risk officer setting out the results of the ORSA
process operated during 2016, Both of these reports were
considered in detail with the impact on the principal risks,
solvency and liquidity of the group being escalated to the
board;

» Supported the development of a CRO framework to support
the committee and the board in assessing the fong-lerm
sustainability of the busihess model. This included ensuring
sufficient and appropriate actions are identified in accordance
with the group’s recovery and resolution plans.

« Considered an external report commissioned by the Board
Risk Committee on the effectiveness of risk management
across the group and provided insight on the areas of focus
for 2017 and 2018 to therefore provide confidence in the
risk processes applied to identify and manage the group’s
principal risks; and

+ Received a suite of validation reports, including a top-down
report that assesses whether the group’s Internal Model
appropriately reflects all the material risks of the group.

As a result of the activity undertaken by the board and the Risk
Committee the directors confirm in the Directors’ Report that
they have performed an appropriate assessment of the principal
risks Tacing the group. Based upon this assessment and the
associated stress and scenario testing the directers have made
a statement regarding the viability of the group in the Directors’
Report on page 91.

Developments in risk management

During 2017, the risk management focus of the group, and in

particular the Risk Committee will include the following:

« The improvements in the effectiveness of the risk
management framework and system to identify, assess,
and manage the principal risks of the group, arising from
the 2016 review of risk effectiveness;

» The level of customer risk and whether this is fikely to support
the group's aim of ensuring its treatment of customers and its
behaviours deliver fair customer outcomes;

e Assuming responsibility from the Audit Committee for the
board oversight and challenge of the group's risk based
capital model;

» The embedding of the group's Recovery and Resolution Plans;
and

* Robust oversight over the group's principal risks, including
business model risk, cyber risk, emerging risk, interest rate
risk. and counterparty risk.
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Our approach to corporate responsibility means we put our customers at the heart
of our business, look after our people, invest in our communities and care about our
impact on the environment.

To help us focus on those areas where we believe we can make most impact, we have structured our approach around four key areas:
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MM
£61m

prevented in
fraudulent losses

/’ g‘&
95%
of our people say
we are a socially

responsible
company

Business ethics

To build and maintain a sustainable business model and become truly
customer centric we need to build trust and inspire loyalty with our customers.
This means that the way in which we deliver our business is of equal
importance to the products and services that we offer,

We have fostered a culture which is based on openness, honesty. integrity and
fairness, and empowers our people to go beyond what is required 1o meet legal
and regulatory obligations.

Qperating in the financial services sector brings additional challenges and

we focus on educaling our people through mandatory training so they are
equipped to manage issues that are important to our business and customers,
such as bribery and corruption, data protection and financial crime.

Customer satisfaction

Creating happy, satisfied customers makes for good business and wherever
possible we will do our best to resolve any complaints as quickly as possible,
directly with our customers. If they are dissatisfied with the outcome, our
customers do have the ability to address their concerns with the Financial
Ombudsman Service (FOS). This is a free and independent service set up by
Government to deal with complaints arising from the financial services sector.
FOS will conduct a full review of the complaint and make a decision on whether
it should be upheld in the customer's or company's favour.

We want our customers 1o have the best experience possible and we focus on
making sure our service and products are designed to meet their expectations
and needs. By putting our customers at the heant of our business we ensure
that they receive a fair outcome when a compfaint is made, which is reflected
by the number of appeals that were upheld by FOS in our favour in 2016.

-"r - _—T:- |
recelved te FOS *

. ) 2016 2016 :
General insurance 15,175 4% 70%
Life 2,044 3% 82%
Hentage 384 8% 80%
Legacy business™ 1,268 2% 100%
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There are stages in our customers’ lives where they face challenges or
circumstances which lead them to feel vulnerable. Be it through bereavement,
ill health or a sudden loss of employment or disability, there are a variety

of times when additional help and support may be needed in making

financial decisions.

We have built up an approach which focuses on offering flexible products and
services that can be adapted to our customers’ varying needs and developing
skilled employees who can deliver an expert and empathetic experience for
customers in challenging circumstances.

Our ‘customer equality forums® oversee our product and service offering

by providing a central point for the business to escalate issues that could
disadvantage someone because they are from a vulnerable group or situation.
And our ‘vulnerabie customer champions' are skilled employees providing
additional suppert for those facing complex financial decisions. With
specialised training, including expert input from organisations like MIND, our
champions provide second line support services Lo customers in need.
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The CCTV Slam-on

Case study

a4

When Mr Y, a cash-for-crash scammer, put

in a personal mjury claim for himself and s
family he did not realise that his antics were
being caught on camera. After his ¢car was hit
by an LV= policyholder, Mr Y was contacted
and LV= accepted hability for the accident. He
subsequently claimed for himself, his partner
and three children because as passengers,
he claimed that they were all suffering from
soft tissue ijunes. On investigation CCTV
footage revealed that Mr Y had in fact not
been in the car at the ime of the incident

nor had any of his family. After referral to
IFED {the Insurance Fraud Enforcement
Department) the case was referred {0 court
and Mr Y received a six month suspended
sentence and was ordered to pay costs. This
resulted in £27,505 of costs being saved as
a result of our investigation.

Bribery prosecution

Case study

On 20 September 2016 a former LV=
employee was sentenced (o twelve months
imprnisonment for accepting a bribe, aswas a
fermer employee of an accident management
company for the offence ot offering a bribe to
our employee. Their impriscnment followed

a year-long investigation by the LV= special
investigations team into the suspected theft
and sale of LV= thirg party claimant data.

As a result, the rogue LV= employee was
immediately dismissed for gross misconduct
and we reported our suspicions to IFED
supported by seven lever arch files of fully
exhibited evidence. This case was IFED's first
successful bnbery prosecution.

Financial crime

Financial crime has many elements. with insurance fraud representing the
targest priority for the business. tn addition to this, theft of money or other
assets for financial gain and money laundering are alse types of financial crime
that are a priority for us.

Working with organisations such as the Insurance Fraud Bureau {IFB), the
Insurance Fraud Enforcement Department (IFED) and other regulated bodies
we have established a leading counter-fraud infrastructure including specialist
teams responding to policy and claims fraud. In 2016 our approach to
managing financ¢ial crime helped protect LV= from potential fraudulent losses
of £61 million.

Claims fraud is not a faceless crime and impacts consumers at an estimated
cost to policyholders of up to £50* each per year, and the UK more than £3
illion. This type of fraud takes many forms, but it most commonly involves
claims for personal injury.

. ‘ T -

Bribery and fraud

Being transparent and acting with integrity is a core principle of our approach
to responsible business practice, and we do not tolerate bribery, fraud or
any other financial crime. These types of crimes undermine the confidence
and trust that our customers place in us and it is the responsibility of every
employee to ensure they do not engage in these practices,

LV= has invested heavily in interna! training and crime awareness, and

our rigorous systems and controls are designed to detect and prevent this
occurring. Qur experienced special investigations team is responsible for
the investigation of any suspicions or allegations of supplier, intermediary or
employee crime.

Qur 'Speak up’ initiative gives our employees access (o make confidenval, and if
preferred, anonymous reports of crime and other misconduct such as bullying.

Human rights

Every individual has a right to be treated with fairness, dignity and respect, and
our agproach o human nghts ensures that we uphold the rights and freedoms
of individuals and vuinerable groups. We have developed a governance
framework and human nights policy focusing on those most fikely (o be
impacted by our business activities: our employees, people working in our
supply chain and our custemers.

We are committed to upholding the rights set out in the United Nations
Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International Labour Organisation
Standards and the Human Rights Act 1998 among others,

Qur published Modern Slavery Statement details the steps we have taken this
year, to evaluale and mitigate against the risk of modern slavery and human
trafficking. We have conducted a review of our supply chains to identify and
assess potential risks and introduced processes to help prevent and mitigate
against any such risks. At LV= we are commuitted to fair employment practices
in relation to our own employees and have embedded these commitments
within our internal employment policies.
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For our media and lobbying work to
help improve consumer access to
financial advice at retirement

RlUggepieinancisiladvicelean]
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Since the new pension freedoms came into
effect in Apnl 2015, we have been warning
of a deepening pensions “mis-buying”
crisis. We have argued that without beid
policy imthiatives to increase advice take-up
at retirement, a significant UK advice-gap
n the UK's pensions world exists and
thousands of people nsk sleepwalking into
retirement without seeking professional
financial advice.

The Government’s Financial Advice Market
Review {(FAMR} was set up to look at what
could be done to Improve better access to
affordable financial advice at retirement.
With our new online retirement advice
service, LV- Retirement Wizard. which
offers regulated independent advice via
simple online apps, we were well placed to
collaborate on the review.

As part of our input, we conducted
research among consumers to understand
views towards professional advice. The
results showed people were confused
about the various levels and types of
advice availlable.

Of the five clear recommendations LV--
made to Government as part of the review.
three were included in the final report
published in March 2016. Crucially, the
report recommended a clear role for
online advice solutions like Retirement
Wizard. The report’s recommendations
are due to be mplemented dunng 2017
and we are proud of our contribution on
this important issue.

Public poficy engagement

As a leading financial services provider, we seek to take a key role in engaging
policy-makers to inform them on important public policy issues that affect our
business, particularly those that impact our customers.

As a specialist in both general insurance and life and pensions, our views
on public policy are often sought and we believe in sharing our insight and
experience to ensure policy developments are well-informed. We also work
closely with trade associations, such as the Association of British Insurers,
to shape industry-wide responses to relevant public policy 1ssues.

Over the last year, we have been actively involved in a range of public
policy areas, including improving take up of financial advice at retirement,
imptementation of the new pension freedoms, and the growing impact of
fraudulent whiplash claims on car insurance premiums.

Responsible investiment

Cur customers put their trust in us to ensure that their money is managed well,
s0 it is important that we work with investment partners that reflect our values
and subscribe 1o the philosophy that well-run businesses who understand the

need for leng-term sustainability, broadly return better value to investors.

QOur two key investment partners are Columbia Threadneedle Investments
who manage the vast majority of our assets, and BlackRock who manage the
fund for Teachers Assurance members, a mutual business that we acquired
in 2016. They are both signatories to the United Nations backed Principles for
Responsible Investment and are signatories to the UK Stewardship Code on
Corporate Governance,

We empower our partners to make decisions on our behatf that are not solely
based on financial performance. Commonly known as ESG (Envirpnmental,
Social and Governance) factors, they cover issues such as a company’s
approach to human rights, its environmental record and internal governance
structure. These factors are important as they have the potential to create
risks and opportunities that could ulimately impact the financial performance
of an crganisation.

Qur partners operate a programme of active stewardship with the companies
that they invest in. They will engage with business leaders to better understand
a company’s operational processes and policies and will work with the
business when it sees that important issues are not being addressed, using
their voting rights to influence change when necessary,

Our suppliers

LV=is a UK-based insurer and therefore our supply chain is straightforward,
with the majority of our suppliers also in the UK. The largest proportion of

our procurement spend falls into the category of general insurance which is
related 1o UK based suppliers who help resolve home and motor claims for our
customers whether this be repair or replacement of goods, In 2016 LV= total
supplier spend was £1.75 billion.

Driving collaborative and mutually beneficial relationships is at the core of
embedding a responsible approach to working with our suppliers. Our tender
process ensures that we partner with reputable organisations that have the
same values and principles as us. This gives us the confidence that when a
customer interacts with one of our suppliers, they will receive the same high
level of service that they experience when dealing directly with LV=,

It we want organisations to mirror our own values, it is important that we treat
them fairly and with respect, That is why we are proud that we pay our suppliers
in a timely manner which is generally within 30 days, as we understand that
late payment can cause problems, especially for small or medium sized
businesses.

During 2016 we took steps to implement policies and processes designed

to ensure our operations align with the expectations of the UK regulators,

the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential Regulation Authority
{PRA). This means that we now have in place a newly defined business sourcing
process to help identify and provide oversight of supplier relationships that are
most critical and important to us.
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£326m

Total UK
Tax contribution
2015: £270m

Tax

Tax has a significant impacl on our business, (rom the tax regime applicable to the financial results of
the Society and its subsidiaries, to the taxation of our producis and policyholders. We recognise our
responsibility to manage this efficiently and appropriately.

The core principles of our tax policy are as foliows:

= To comply with tax laws and regulations;

+ To manage our tax affairs efficiently and proactively;

* To maintain an open and transparent relationship with the tax authorities; and

« Toundertake tax ptanning to ensure an efficient tax position, but not to undertake planning which may
be perceived as not within the spirit of the law,

Tax governance

The board recognises its responsibility to comply with tax laws and has approved the tax policy, for
which the group finance director is accountable. The head of taxation is responsible for the day-to-day
implementation of the tax policy which 15 also approved and adhered 10 by our subsidiary companies.

Total UK tax contributlon

Our contribution to the UK Exchequer is significantly more than the UK corporation tax that we pay on
profits. During 2016, through our operations and commercial activity, we have paid and collected taxes
totalling £326 million (2015: £270 million). The increase is largely due to two changes made to the
standard rate of Insurance Premium Tax; from 6% to 9.5% on 1 November 2015, and from 9.5% to 10% on
1 October 2016. The composition of the total taxes borne and collected by the group is given below:

2016 £m
b tnsurance premium tax 147
p Employee payroll taxes 74
» Anrunty payroli taxes 73
» Corporation tax 23
b VAT 6
» Business rates 1
P Stamp taxes 1
» Other 1
2015 £m

P Insurance premium tax 88
} Employee payroll taxes 69
P Annuity payroll taxes 72

» Corporation tax 31
b VAT 5
b Business rates 3
} Stamp taxes 1
» Other 1

Tax transparency

The combination of complex legislation and prescriptive accounting standards can sometimes make

it difficult for larger groups to explain the relaticnship between their profits and the tax they pay. For us,
further complexity is added by the fact that we are an insurance group headed by a friendly society. Mutual
insurance business written in a friendly society is not subject to corporation tax on profits in the same

way as insurance business writien in a shareholder owned company would be. Business written in the
Society is exclusively mutual business and therefore, corporation tax payable by the Society only relates
to policyholder tax (tax paid on the net investment return) levied on certain types of business. The usual
relationship between accounting profits and the corporation tax charge does not therefore hold true for the
Society. For the group subsidiary companies, corporation tax is generally charged on trading profits arising
in the year.

There can also be large differences between the tax charge disclosed in the income statement and

tax actually paid to HMRC in the year, disclosed in the cash flow statement. This is partly due to when
corporation tax is paid to HMRC, but also as a result of timing differences between the accounting treatment
and tax treatment of certain items of income and expenditure. These differences are recognised as deferred
tax in the financial statements.

Areconciliation between the tax charge in the income statement and tax paid disclosed in the cash flow
stalement is given below:

- I ——— . ”"
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Tax charge per Income statement 35
Accounuing adjusiments including deferred tax {11)
Tax instalments repayable next year 6
Tax instalments from prior years' charge (repaid)/paid i thisyear n_ 18

Tax paid per cash flow statement 23 31
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90%
feel they have the
opportunity to
ask questions

" ™
L

95%
believe our values
are clear

b w

92%

say we are truly

customer-orientated

NS

Building a diverse workforce

With more than 6,000 employees across 15 sites, we believe that having a
diverse, inclusive and engaged workforce is key to our future success. As the
dermographic of both our people and customers continues to change, a more
diverse set of expectations will emerge. Fostering an inclusive and empowering
culture that values diversity continues to be a strong focus, and is important to
delivering great customer service - a Key driver of business success.

2016 saw the launch of our new careers website which better shows, through
our people, what life is like inside LV=. The site offers a personalised journey
of differing career options. combined with rich social media to bring to life the
day-to-day experiences of our employees. Prospective candidates get a more
authentic view of our culture and values, together with a real life insight into
working for LV=. The website forms part of our wider strategy to reduce the
number of hires that we make through third parties, and we are proud that over
90% of people now join LV= through direct interaction.

Talent management

QOur continued commitment to developing our internal pool of talented and
ambitious people saw us launch our second LV=‘Inspire’ programme this
year. The programme provides the opportunity to gain hands-on experience
in various business units across LV=through a series of rotating placements
lasting between three and five months. Supported by executive sponsors
who provide coaching and mentoring, the programme 1S designed to support
delegates in identifying their key skills and interests and guide them on 1o the
next stage of their career development.

We have also continued to support the growth of our own digital talent and
launched a second intake of digital apprentices. With Bournemouth being
recognised as the fastest-growing digital economy in the UK, we have partnered
with Bournemouth and Poole College in being one of the first financial service
companies to launch the Government backed apprenticeship scheme in digital.
The scheme pravides us with a great opportunity to develop the next generation
of digital leaders for LV= within cur local community. With the new Government
Apprenticeship Levy Scheme coming into force on 1 April 2017 we will continue
to build on this and look at how we use apprenticeship programmes to replace
existing training, complement schemes such as ‘Inspire’ and retrain our
workferce in areas such as compliance.

We know our people do not need to be in an office to do their best work which is
why we now have 6.8% of our people who are home workers; many more work
flexibly, mixing the office environment with heme during the week. This not

only supports our employees’ wellbeing but also enables us to recruit from a
broader talent population and enables a better gender balance in senior roles
across LV=.

Celebrating diversity

Diversity at LV= is not jusl about ticking a box. We are committed to creating
a culture which respects and values individual differences, a place where
everybody feels comfortable being themselves and one where we take
personal accountability in making this happen,

Employing people with differing backgrounds and experiences helps us gain
competitive advantage. It creates a broader talent pool, more creativity

and innovation built on a range of perspectives, leading to better financial
performance and new customer insight.

We received great external recognition in 2016 by being short-listed for

‘The Diversity Award’ at the British Insurance Awards. We were also finalists
for ‘Diverse Company of the Year' at the prestigious National Diversity Awards,
receiving numerous nominations.

\ LV/= has Z"l’q/lf embraced, diversity.
Ttisan et/eﬂ/atag part of the culture here. /7

This year our LGBTQ network celebrated Bournemouth PRIDE 'Bourne
Free'- joining the parade, hosting a stall and putting the iconic PRIDE sash
across the LV= heart outside our head office.
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Our people have bravely been;:gtml
personal stories on our intranet this year,
including Lorraing who has shared her story

of living with Rheumatoid Arthritis

and Osteoporosis:
\\ Ar L= T have been encauraged by my
fine managers to be mare apen with them
and my cc//cagucs and fo make sure
1 fook after myself more. I have been
crerwbhelmed art how bind team members
can be. In my current rofe my work-life
balance is much easier to manage. I can
rew da a feur day week; whifst /m/frg fhe
career I have worked years for. Aayfrg
this support meanrs that when I do have
. an occasional diffeult day or haspital
appeintment, I can flex my day of o
help manage the foad. Tt has afso taught
me that peaple actually do care and by
/kwfrg this level of z‘fcx«l’:iﬁ'tq, Tund/ a/tuau,s
go that extra mite when I can /!

O3
% C
92%

say we support diversity
in the workplace

Women in Finance Charter
We want talented people to have equal opportunities to grow their careers
at LV=and we believe that gender balance is vital to our success.

0On 11 July 2016 we were excited o join 72 firms across the financial services
sector to sign the Women in Finance Charter. A joint commitment by HM
Treasury and the signatories, the Women in Finance Charter reflects the
Government’s aspiration to see gender balance at all levels across financial
services firms and is focused on building a fairer and balanced industry in
partnership with the best businesses in the sector.

As a charter signatory we pledge to continue to support gender diversity.

Our executive team and board endorsed a commitment to increase the
propartionality of women in senior positions. At the start of 2016 we set
ourselves the target to increase the proportionality of senior women at LvV=
to 36.6% by the end of 2016. This was stretching target and we were pleased
to end 2016 at 36.41%.

Wellbeing
We recognise that a healthy happy workforce is more engaged, motivated
and productive. Qur wellbeing strategy focuses on promoting greater physical
and mental heaith, supportling our people to manage stress and build
individual resilience.

We have a number of support mechanisms and great resources available to
our people and dedicated to line managers, including a mental health toolkit
to support our leaders manage employees with mental health conditions.

In 2016 we held a range of activities across National Work Life Balance Week
from mindfulness workshops to free gym classes to mnspire our people o make
healthy lifestyle choices.

Our people’s feedback really validates our approach to wellbeing, our 2016
Engage results show:

83%
of our people think

that LV= cares about
their wellbeing

/\ A
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+5%
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Reward and recognition

We are committed to making sure our people are rewarded fairly through

the regular review of our pay levels to ensure they are competitive both
internally and externally with market rates. We pay all our employees at least
the Living Wage rates of pay. In 2016, the average full time employee salary
was £31,500 (2015: £30,800). In addition to basic pay, all our employees
participate in an incentive scheme which is structured around both individuat
and business perfermance. In 2016 the average bonus was 8.6% of bonus-
able earnings.

All employees automatically become members of the LV= Pension Plan when
they start working for us. They also have access to the LV= Pensions Village
which allows them 10 track their contributions and the impact contribution
levels will have on their retirement plans.,

Last year we refreshed and relaunched oGr flexible benefits platform, enabling
our people to select the benefits most suited to their individual needs and
Ifestyles. Following its launch, 85% of our people have used the platform,

an increase of 20% compared to last year.

Recognition plays a significant part in our employee proposition: we offer a
peerto-peer platform, built on our values, to enable employees to recognise
the contributions of others. Nearly 27,000 e-cards were sent in 2016, and over
9,000 colleague award nominations were received, reflecting our culture of
sharing and celebrating success. We actively encourage our people to make
suggestions to improve our customer experience and business operations
through our intranet platform, with employees collaboratively looking for
solutions to drive our continuous improvement.

Gender pay gap

Under new plans announced by the Government in February 2018, firms with
over 250 employees will report pay differences between their male and female
counterparts from 2018. These guidelines require employers to publish their
gender pay gap using data from April 2017 (which is unavailable as at the
publication date of this annual report and accounts).

Proportionately the split between the overall number of males and females
working for LV=, as at the end of 2016, remained at 53% female/47% male,

no change from 2015. From a job role perspective where a band A is most
Junior and band E most senigr, the infographic below shows the ratio of female
employees in each band:

Band E 18%
Band D 28%
Band C 37%
Band B 54%

Band A 65%




Corporate Responsibihily Report 67

Regional community
committees distributed

£185,000

and helped over

300

charities

Qur people donated

5,699

in volunteering hours, a

68%

increase on 2015

£304,330

fundraised by our people
for good causes

£1,137,003

Community and
member support

P Community investment £531,466
P Community partnerships £158,032
P Community fundraising £304,330
» Member support (see p1l) £143,175

Our role in society goes beyond supplying services and products to our
customers. We strive to make a positive impact in the communities that we
serve —the places where our people and customers live and work.

Community Investment

Our programme of community investment focuses our support so that we are
actively involved in donating both time and money to a variety of good causes
and community projects. Qur aim is to have a lasting positive impact and help
create communities that thrive. In 2016 our community contributions were
worth just over £531,000,

Every office has a Regional Community Committee in place to champion our
commitment - made up of employee volunteers, it is these groups that make
decistons about how best to lend our support. Last year they distributed
£185,000 in funding and helped over 300 good causes across the UK.

Over the last 12 months we have been working with our committees to help
better understand, measure, and report on the impact that we make within
communities. Towards the end of last year we becarne a member of the London
Benchmarking Group (LBG), that works with organisations to help them share
best practice and collaborate on community issues. LBG are working with us

to design a model which will help us more accurately capture our social

impact. During 2017, we will embed the model within our network to use

as a basis of reporting.

We are proud of our long standing tradition of employee volunteering. Our
people love to make a difference by sharing their skills, knowledge, and time
with others. Our "Time-0ff to Volunteer’' scheme offers up to 2.5 days per

year in matched time-off. Volunteering opportunities are a mix of company

led initiatives like Age UK's ‘Call in Time™ scheme, individuals sharing their
professional skills, and department community days, where whole teams can
go out Lo deliver practical support to a local project or charity.

As well as being hugely beneficial to charities, volunteering is of great value to
our business as it enables our people 1o develop personally and professionally,
create dynamic and motivated teams, and leads to a happier workforce,
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Lv= KidZone reunited

184

lost children with their families

r
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when local organisation "Beeston In
Bloom' contacted our Leeds office for help,
our blooming marveilous people jumped
into action.

Based in South Leeds, Beeston in Bloom
is a voluntary group that aims to promote
community pride by improving the local
community environment, Tasked with
improving the iconic *Millennum Garden’
i Cross Flats Park, ten LV= volunteers
undertook path cleaning, hedge trnmming
and weeding to bring the garden back to its
farmer glory.

As a result of the team’s efforts, the
parden was entered into the annual
Yorkshire in Bloom competition and we aré
dehghted that our contribution helped the
garden secure a 2016 gold award.

\\ Volunteering support ss
invaluable for Beeston in Bfoom,
ard it is amazing the difference
that can be made when
businesses like L/~ encourage
their peaple fo come out folerd a

hard in the commurity. ff

Angela Gabriel
Lor it Couney| or ~nd Beasinn in Blnom volunteer

r ™
.
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Community partnerships

Longer term partnerships allow us 10 create strong relationships with charities
and community groups on programmes that are of shared interest. By their
nature they are longer in length and involve more than just financial support.

L= KidZone is one of our oldest partnerships and serves to help keep children
safe along Bournemouth's beaches. With over 100,000 visitors to the seaside
resort every day during the summer months, we work with Bournemouth
council and the RNLI to ensure that both local and visiting families have access
10 a scheme which promotes beach safety. The scheme ensures that o5t
children can be found quickly with the least amount of distress to either parent
or child.

AutoRaise charity partnership

In December we announcad that we had become a platinum partner with the
vehicle repau industry’s charity, AutoRaise. As a car insurer, we Know that our
customers need their vehicles to be repaired to a safe and high standard by
highly skilled people. However, the industry is facing a skills shortage as fewer
young people are entering the profession. AutoRaise is offering the first multi-
skilled apprenticeship and is bringing together repairers. colleges, schools and
suppliers to premote it a5 an attractive opportunity for youngsters.

AutoRaise was an obvious choice for us to support because of the work it
does to promote apprenticeships within the repair industry. With our own
network of LV= repairers we are in a great position to help AutoRaise altract
the next generation of qualfied talent and encourage garages to take on
more apprentices,

\\ This is a charity that 1 could, refate to because it was how
I started, My career many years ago when I became an
apprentice in vehicle repair. /7

Michael Golding, LV= Engingering Manager
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Call in Time

29,820

minutes spent talking to
lonely older people

Dorsetplane puli

Lase stydy

On 29 August at Bournemouth Airport,
forty willing LV-- volunteers took on the
challenge of attempting to pull a 35.000Kg
Boeing 737 a distance of 50 meters in

the quickest possible time. Inspiration
turned to perspiration for our willing team
when they pulled together to raise funds
for the Motor Neurone Disease Association
{MNDA). Touched by a colleague recently
diagnosed with the disease, the team used
brute force to raise thousands of pounds in
donations for the chanty.

\‘ The Plare Puluas a fartastic event.
It was great te wark tegether with
peaple from all erer LU= MMDA is an
amazing charity to rasse money far,
especialiy as ane of cur LY~ family
has beer directly affected bgthe
disease. In tetal we have raied
nearly £3,000, which is an amazirg
achievemert ard something we are alf
realfy preud of. V/4

Emma Donaldson
LV= Direct Life Sales

o
“Yageux

Platinum award

54%

of our employees registered in
our Pennies for Charity scheme

Age UK ‘Call in Time’

Forty of our employees have been making weekly calls over the last 12 months
in support of Age UK's telephone befniending service, ‘Call in Time’. With

over a million older people in England chronically lonely we were keen to lend
our support. And with a workforce which is recognised as delivering industry
ieading levels of customer satisfaction, we felt we had the right people to
reach out to those most in need of persenal contact,

Through Age UK, our employee volunteers are matched to an older person
based on shared interests and hobbies. Once matched, our volunieer and
clder person have a friendly 30 minute chat at the same time each week.
We are dehighted that 2017 will see the continuation of our support with an
increase to sixty LV= volunteers giving up their time to make calls.

\\I am so proud. and 3raz‘efq/ to be a small part of samez‘/)mg
so great. Age UK brings, joy fo not only the older peaple who
are being helped by the charity but afso to those
who volunteer. I

L= employee Croydon

\\ 1t is great speaking to somebody who is not a family member
as they always seem to be busy with work and other things.
T have been down latelly and. really look forward to
Angelds calls. /7

Patricia, on LV= befriender Angela

Community fundraising

Coming together to help those most in need in our communities is something
our people are proud to be a part of, and over the years, as a business, we
have raised funds and donated thousands of pounds to good causes up and
down the country.

Now in our ninth year of support, Children in Need, Sport Relief and Macmillan
Cofiee Morning continue to be the most popular events in our fundraising
calendar. Between them, the charities received £50,000 as a result of our
people's fundraising endeavours. And when we opened the doors of our
Bournemouth call centre 1o the Children in Need telethon event, over 100
volunteers stepped forward to handle calls on their behalf,

Our payroll giving and £ for £ chanty matching schemes encourage our people
to go out and raise funds for causes close to their heart. As a result of their
personal efforts our people raised over £260,000 and unlocked a further
£76,000 in corporate matching.
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Carbon emissions

2016

As a UK company operating in

the financial services sector, our
environmental impacts are small in
comparison to many other businesses.
However, as a responsible business
we are committed to managing the
impacts that arise as a result of our
day-to-day business activities.

Our commitment focuses around
the three areas where we have most
influence — carbon emissions as a
result of our energy consumption,
employee business travel; and our
overall waste management.

Carbon footprint

Ourning 2016 we conducted an audit to help
benchmark carbon emissions across our key
impact areas. We will use 2016 as a baseline
against which we will track our progress over the
coming years.

P Purchased Electricity 0.46
P Purchased Gas 0.05
» Business Travel - Land 0.25
» Business Travel - Air 0.05

{tonnes CO2 equivalent
p/employee)

Energy

With 15 offices across the UK it is no surprise
that the single biggest contributor to our carbon
footprint is our consumption of electricity and gas.
Emissions are generated as a result of the energy
consumed to power our offices, IT equipment and
data centres. Achieving a reduction in consumption
will always be a challenge as factors such as
business growth and changing climate conditions
will impact the amount of energy we consume.
However, over the last three years we are pleased
10 report a positive picture emerging.

Business travel

From Huddersfield to Exeter and Cardiff to Ipswich,
our LV= sites are spread far and wide, And there are
always times when a meeting face-to-face with a
colleague or customer i1s necessary. Where we can,
we encourage our people to use video conferencing
technology to reduce travel, or to look for more
sustainable ways of getting around.

Waste

Since 2014 we have been working across our
business o identify areas where we can reduce
the overall waste that we produce, increase the
proportion of waste that goes to be recycled and
reduce the usage of valuable resources, such
as paper.

We are delighted that year-on-year we have seen
a positive trend emerging; the overall volume of
waste has decreased, and recycling has increased.
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Energy Waste

Energy usage (tonnes CO2 equivalent p/employee) Waste (tonnes}

- #1382

Business travel

Travel {tonnes €02 aquivalent p/employee)

“2016: 10.30

e £2015 o=
§2015%0"35 1

2014: 0.33

2014: L . 91%
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Board

Board Committees

Directors' Report

Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Overview

The following pages outline our corporate
governance framework and our approach
to remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Statement

We comply with
the Financial
Reporting Council's
UK Corporate
Governance Code,
{the ‘Code’)
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{As at 31 December 2016}
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Compliance with the Code for the year
ended 31 December 2016

The beard has adopted a governance structure based
on the principles and provisions of the Code with the
following exceptions during the reporting year:

i. adecision taken by the board te allow the
chairman t¢ be a member of the Audit
Committee, The Audit Committee membership
includes three independent non-executive
directors as required by the Code and the
chairman’s membership of the committee is in
addition to this. The Code recommends that the
chairman may anly be a member of the Audit
Committee in *smaller companies’l. However,
the chairman has recent and relevant financial
experience and makes a valuable contribution
to the Audit Committee. The chairman was a
member of the Audit Committee prior to his
appointment as chairman of the board in 2013.

ii. adecision taken by the board that only the
chairman will offer himself for annual re-election
by members at the Annual General Meeting.
The board has determined that the annual
election of the chairman provides an adequate
means for members (o register concern with
the performance of the board directors who
continue to stand for re-election at least every
three years.

The Society has chosen to early adopt the April 2016
amendments to the Code that are mandatory for
reporting periods commencing on or after 17 June
2016. Details of the Society's re-tendering plans for
its external auditors are outlined on page 85,

Alignment of the board to the group's
culture, values and governance
arrangements

The role of the board is to set the tone from the

top on the group's governance, culture and values
and to be coflectively responsible for the long-term
success of the group. For the board this means not
only ensuring that we comply with all refevant laws
and regulations and ensuring that we have high
standards of internal control and risk management,
but that we run our business with integrity.

The board ensures that we truly live our values
every day, delivering on ‘Green Heart Experiences’
for our customers, colleagues and members,
harnessing the Iatest technologies and building a
business that is sustainably lean and strong. By
doing this the board help ensure that LV= will be
able to make people ‘Live Confident'.

Working as a collective board

Ouring the year, the board comprised a non-
executive chairman, five independent non-
executive directors {fcllowing the appointment of
David Barral in March 2016) and four executive

An par the (ode gr o ny

directors (until the resignation of Mike Rogers in
July 2016) who collectively possess an appropriate
balance of expertise in the financial services
industry, including general insurance and life
insurance, investments, risk and governance. This
ensures a balance of skills, understanding and
perspectives relevant to the group's business. As
members of a unitary board, the non-executive
directors meet, without the executive directors
present. to constructively challenge and help
develop proposals on strategy, The particular
skills and experience that each director brings 10
the board are included on pages 78 to 79 and the
composition and tenure is summarised too.

Changes to board composition
During the year under review, there have been a
number changes at board level:

The board welcomed David Barral as a new non-
executive director in March 201.6. David has

also joined the Investment, Risk and Corporate
governance ang Nomination Committees and

his biography, detailing his relevant skills and
experience, is included on page 79. David has
since been appointed to the Audit Committee and
has chaired the Risk Committee with effect from 1
January 2017.

Steve Treloar joined the Soclety in May 2016 as a
board member and managing director of general
insurance foliowing the departure of John O'Roarke.
Steve has over 19 years industry experience (see
biography on page 78) and his in-depth knowledge
of the general insurance market made him the ideal
person to build on the strong platform that John
O’'Roarke and his team had created.

After 10 years in the role of chief executive, Mike
Rogers resigned in July 2016. Richard Rowney, our
former life and pensions managing director, was
appoeinted to fill the role following a thorough search
process that produced a short-list of excellent
internal and external candidates. The board was
pleased to promote from within to fill the role which
facilitated consistency and stability across the
board as the leadership role was refreshed.

Alan Cook joined the Socety's boardon 1
January 2017 as a non-executive director and
chairman designate. Alan has extensive financial
services experience across insurance, banking
and investment and his full biography has been
included on page 79.

At the Society's Annual General Meeting in june,
Alan will put himse!f forward for election as
chairman, when it is proposed he will succeed Mark
Austen who will be stepping down after four years
as chairman and ten years on the board.

A =g pre aRned Ag thOSE Thal wip De vy FTSE 3703 tre gghawi tha year - ned sfely pr 1o 1ne oo i ag
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Appraising the board's performance

Every year the performance of board members is reviewed both
individually and as a collective. The senior independent director,
with the assistance of the non-executive directors and laking
into account the views of the execultive directors, reviews the
performance of the chairman and the chairman reviews the
performance of all other directors.

During the annual review, each director is also encouraged to
highlight any potential skills gaps or areas of devetopment so
that training can be provided in order to ensure each director's
continued understanding and expertise. The chairman, in

his capacity as chairman of the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Commitlee, reviews and agrees individual training
and devetopment aims with each non-executive director,

Key focus area

Effective challenge

Schedute suffictent time during board meetings 1o allow
thorough challenge by both the non-executive and executive
directors, around proposals and strategic projects.,

Decision-making
Ensure the board receives relevant information in a timely
manner to allow informed debate before a decision is made.

Strategy

Build upon the strategy process by ensuring sufficient
time is allocated on the board agenda to discuss strategic
topics.

Information and support

Continue to make improvements to the form and focus
of board papers 10 assist the board's collective decision-
making and challenge.

Board effectiveness

The Code recommends an externally facilitated review of board
effectiveness at least every three years. In 2015, an externa!
review of the board was undertaken by an independent expert
consultant in the area of board effectiveness, Coletta Tumelty.
Following this review, the board agreed a number of actions which
were addressed throughout the year and built on in 2016.

During the year, the board focused on refining its collective
behaviours within the boardroom with a strong emphasis on
challenge and evidence,

The following 'key areas’ were highlighted and the actions
taken to improve on these areas are outlined in the table below.
QOver 60 senior managers who produce papers for discussion
by the board received training during the course of the year to
encourage them to produce clear and concise reports to enable
effective discussion.

[ Nafdroeiy e

The board will be pro-active when reviewing papers before a
meeting to ensure they have all the refevant information to allow
a thorough discussion duning board meetings and ensure that
the minutes accurately reflect the ievel of challenge raised during
board meelings.

The board will schedule sufficient time in future board meeungs
to allow a thorough discussion of the key points and will schedule
additional meetings if required.

Meetings with management are arranged cutside of board
meetings to facilitate further discussions on strategy, aims and
objectives.

Additional meetings of non-executive directors provide greater
input into the deveiopment of future board agendas.

Continued progress on developing the forward plan for board
meetings and improving board papers, in particular the executive
summaries 50 that these signpost risks, concerns and areas for
discussion to facilitate challenge by the board. Training has been
held for those preparing papers and feedback on the quality of
the papers is provided by the board.

The board strives to continuously develop, coliectively and individually, and will continue to do so throughout 2017.

Voday adawng
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The Board

LtoR

Mark Austen
Richard Rowney
Philip Moore
Steve Treloar

The board ensures that we truly live our values every
day. delivering on ‘Green Heart Experiences’ for our
customers, colleagues and members, harnessing the
latest technologies and building a business that is
sustainably lean and strong. By doing this the board
help ensure that LV= will be able to make people ‘Live
Confident'.

We have a strong, experienced and diverse board with a
good balance of skills.
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LtoR

Alan Cook
Appo nted 1 January 2017

James Dean
Cath Keers

David Neave
David Barral

Caroline Burton

Buday regmrng
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Mark Austen (67) Chairman

Date of appointment: 20 September 2006 (LVFS Board}),

23 May 2013 (chairman}

Experience: Mark qualified as a chartered management
accountant in 1972 and spent the majority of his career at
PricewaterhouseCoopers llp managing their global financial
services consulting business. His broad range of skills includes
advising organisations on their strategies, acquisitions,
operations, HR policies and technology. Mark was previously

on the board of Standard Bank plc, Temenos and Mott MacDonald.

External appointments; Non-executive director of Alpha Bank
London Ltd.

Committee membership; Chairman, ¢hair of the Corporate
Governance and Nomination Commitiee and member of the
Audit, Risk, Investment and Remuneration Committees.
Mark Austen will be stepping down at the 2017 AGM and
Alan Cook will be nominated to succeed him as chairman.

- o

Richard Rowney (46) Chief Executive

Date of appointment: 1 March 2010 (LVFS Board), 28 July 2016
(chief executive)

Experience: Richard spent 14 years at Barclays Bank holding a
number of senior positions across corporate and retail banking
including overseeing integration of the Woolwich and Barctays
retail banks, Since joining Lv= in 2007 Richard oversaw the
creation of the operationa! support areas including the rebrand
to LV= and the in-sowrcing of our IT and HR functions. Richard
was appointed managing director of life and pensions in 2010
and has led the transformation of this business to create one
of the UK's leading protection and retirement specialists,
including the acquisition of Wealth Wizards in 2015.

External appointments: Board member of the Association of
British Insurers.

Committee membership: Member of the Investment and
Corporate Governance and Nomination Commitlees and a
Director of various LV= group subsidiaries.

Philip Moore (57) Group Finance Director

Date of appointment: 10 November 2010

Experience: Having held executive positions at several leading
finaneial institutions both in the UK and abroad, Philip's career
in finance has spanned over 30 years. His particular areas of
expertise include actuarial and capital management, mergers
and acquisitions and risk and asset management. Philip was
finance director and subsequently chief executive at Friends
Provident until 2007 and chief risk officer and group finance
partner at Pensions Corporation lip between 2008 and 2010.
External appointments: Trustee and chairman of the finance
committee of the Royal British Legion. chair of governors at
Aylward Academy. Audit Committee chair of Towergate insurance
until 31 March 2017.

Committee membership: Member of the lnvestment Committee
and director of various LV= group subsidiaries.

Steve Treloar (48) Managing Director

of General Insurance

Date of appointment: 5 May 2016

Experience: Steve joined LV= from Aviva, where he was most
recently managing director of personal lines. He led the
development of the Aviva UK Digital business, and was an
executive member of both the General Insurance and Life
husinesses, He also built the QuoteMeHappy.com business
from the ground-up. He has extensive experience in the core
insurance disciplines of pricing, underwriting and claims. and a
keen interest in digital developments, Prior to this he has held a
number of senior roles at Aviva and RBS Insurance, where he ran
their Motor Insurance business, over a 20 year career.

External appointments: Chair of the Association of British
Insurers Property Committee.

Committee membership: Director of various LV= General
Insurance subsidiary companies.

James Dean (58) Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment; 26 July 2012

Experience: James is a chartered accountant and is recognised
as an expert in insurance accounting having spent much of his
30 years' experience in audit and advisory roles. As a senior
partner at Ernst & Young llp he dealt with clients such as AXAUK
ple, Prudential plc, Legai & General Group ple, RSA Insurance
Group plc and Aviva plc, serving on boards outside the firm
including as chairman of the ICAEW Insurance Committee.

He is also a fermer global IFRS leader for the insurance sector
of Ernst & Young lip.

External appointments: Non-executive director at Rathbone
Brothers plc. Chairman of the Stafford Railway Building Society.
Committee membership: Chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Risk and Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committees.

As the senior independent director, James provides a sounding
hoard to the chairman and is available to members if they

have concerns which contact through the normal channels of
chairman, chief executive and other executive directors has
failed to resolve or for which contact is inapprogriate.
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Caroline Burton (67) Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 9 September 2011

Experience: Caroline has a life insurance background and is a
highly experienced figure in the asset management industry
having spent 26 years with Guardian Royal Exchange plc, where
she was in charge of investments from 1350 until 1993. She
acts as a pensions and business adviser for a number of pension
funds and charities and her expertise puts her in good stead to
monitor the management of LV='g assets,

External appointments: Non-executive director of BlackRock
Small Companies Investment Trust plc.

Committee membership: Chairman of the Investment Committee
and member of the Audit, Remuneration and Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committees. A non-executive
director of two subsidiary companies of LVFS,

/ ;
>

Cath Keers (51) Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 14 December 2010

Experience; Cath brings a wealth of retail industry expertise to
the LV= board with over 20 years marketing and sales experience
having worked at BSkyB Ltd, Next plc and Avon Cosmetics Ltd. In
2008 she won a lifetime achievement award for her outstanding
impact during her career at 02. where she was customer director
in charge of refocusing the orgamisation’s customer strategy.
External appointments: Non-executive positions at Royal Mail
Group and Talk Talk Group.

Committee membership; Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the With-Profits and Corporate
Governance and Nomination Commitlees.

David Neave (57) Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: 1 June 2013

Experience: David has 35 years of experience in the general
insurance industry, with a particular specialism in personat
lines and technical expertise in a range of functions including
underwriting, claims and partnerships, David held various roles
at RSA including managing director of corporate partherships
and claims services director for the overall UK business. Most
recently he was managing director of general insurance for the
Co-operative Banking Group Limited, and has been chairman

of the Insurance Fraud Bureau and the ABI Financial Crime
Committee and a director of the Motor Insurers” Bureau and the
International Co-operative and Mutual Insurance Federation.
External appointments: Non-executive director of FirstPort
Ingurance Services Limited and a member of Accenture’s
Insurance advisory board.

Committee membership: Chairman of the Risk Committee and
member of the Audit, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
and Nomination Committees during 2018. (Member of the
Risk, Remuneration and Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committees from 1 January 2017). A non-executive chairman of
two subsidiary companies of LVFS.

! 4 -

David Barral (55) Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment; 7 March 2016

Experience: David has had a 35 year career in financial services
and joins us from Aviva plc where he was the chief executive of
UK and Ireland life insurance, the largest business unit within
the Aviva group. Previous positions include sales director,
marketing director and chief operating officer. David brings a mix
of strategic, transformation and operational experience with a
strong focus on customers, risk and governance. He is a former
chairman of the ABI Retirement and Savings Committee.
External appointments: Director of Virgin Wines and also a
regular contributor to Speakers for Schools, the independent
education charity.

Committee membership: Member of the Investment, Risk and
Corporate Governance and Noemination Committees. (Chair of the
Risk Commitiee and additionally member of the Audit Committee
from 1 January 2017).

—a

Alan Cook (63)

Date of appointment: 1 January 2017

Experience: Alan has extensive financial services experience
across insurance, banking and investments. Up untl 31
December 2016 was senior independent director of Sainsbury’s
Bank and on the board of MetLife Europe. Previously Alan

has served as chairman of Insh Life Group (previously part of
Permanent TSB group) and the Highways Agency as well as
being a non-executive director at the Department of Transport,
Financial Ombudsman Service and the Office of Fair Trading, As
an executive, he has also been managing director of Post Office
Ltd, CEO of Nationa! Savings & Investments and chief operating
officer, UX and Europe of Prudential Assurance. Alan has
worked with ‘Action for ME’, the UK's leading chanty supporting
sufferers of ME/CFS.

External appointments: Chairman of Permanent TSB group in
Dublin, chairman of the University of Bedfordshire.

Committee membership: Alan will offer himself for election as
chair of the LVFS board at the Society’s AGM in June. At which
time, Alan will also become chair of the Corporate Governance
and Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit, Risk,
Investment and Remuneration Committees.

Out-going directors

Mike Rogers {52) Former Chief Executive

Date of appointment: 5 June 2006

Date of resignation from LVFS Board: 28 July 2016

External appolntments: Non-executive director for RBS Group.

John O’Roarke (52) Former Managing Director of
General Insurance

Date of appointment: 23 November 2011

Date of resignation from LVFS Board: 5 May 2016
External appointments: None
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Terms of Appointment

The terms of appointment for the non-executive
directors are available for review, upon request,
from the Society's registered office and before the
Society's AGM.

External Commitments

Executive directors may be invited to become non-
executive directors of other companies. subject to
the agreement of the Society. These appointments
provide an opportunity to gain broader experience
outside LV= and therefore benefit the Society.

Board committees
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Establish values, cullure and
ethics. Appointment and removal
of directors, All financial and
strategic matters. Mergers,
acquisitions and disposals.
Monitor board commitices,

Providing that appointments are not likely to lead
to a conflict of interest, executive directors may
accept non-executive director appointments and
retain the fees received.

Each executive director’'s external commitments
are listed above. All non-executive directorships
have been approved by the board and are deemed
not to conflict with the Society's business. Each
executive director retains the fees received from
the external appointment. Details of such fees are
made available on page 99.
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Each committee is provided with sufficient resources to undertake its duties. A full list of duties and the
activities undertaken during the year can be found on pages 81 to 88.

The terms of reference for the board committees are reviewed each year and published on our website.

They can be viewed at LV.com/boarddocs
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Strategy and

planning

Appointment

and removal
of officers

Board membership and attendance in 2016
In 2016 the board met 11 times for formal board meetings, three times on an additional ad-hoc basis to
discuss Solvency Il requirementis and twice for strategy and planning sessions.

In 2017 the board expects to meet at least ten times and to have two strategy and planning sessions.

Against each name in Lhe table below is shown the number of meetings at which the director was present
and the number of meetings that the director was eligible to attend.

% of
attendance
Formal meetings held: 11 of meetings
Eligitle to Meetings cligible to
attend* attended atlend
Mark Austen 11 100%
Caroline Burton 11 11 1004
James Dean 11 11 1004
Cath Keers 11 10 91%
Philip Moore 11 11 100%
David Neave 11 11 100%
Richard Rowney 11 10 91%
Oavid Barrai* 9 ) 100%
Steve Treloar* * 7 7 100%
John O'Roarke** 4 3 75%
Mike RogersA+ 6 6 100%
E-feam® [ oy oter b dasg Pt Y bt b er Peli ey boret La The l ar L P me
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Re-election and retirement

Under the Society's rules all directors are required to stand for re-election at least once every three years,
Richard Rowney, Philip Moore and David Neave will be offering themselves for re-election at the Society's
2017 AGM.

As Mark Austen has served as chairman for four years. Mark has decided to step down following the 2017
AGM at which time Alan Cook, the chalrman designate, will offer himsel{ for etection, Further details of
Alan’s suitability and expertise can be found within his biography on page 79,

Matters reserved for the board
There is a clear list of matters which only the board can decide on; other matters are delegated to the chief
executive. Matters reserved for the Society’s board are outlined in the table below.

The board ensures that directors, especially the non-executive directors, have access to independent
professional advice where they judge it necessary (¢ discharge their responsibilities as directors and have
access Lo the advice and services of the company secretary.

establishing the tone from the top for values, culture and ethics;

determining and overseemng delivery of the group’s strategy,;

approval and monitorning of long-term strategic plans and objectives; and

approval and monitoning of the group annual busimess plan for the coming five years.

appointment and removal of the Society's chairman, deputy chairman (if appointed), semor
independent director, company secretary, group chief executive, ctuef mnvestment officer, chiefl
risk officer, with-profits actuary and actuanal function holder and directors of the Sociely and its
subsidiaries.
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Financial

matters

Mergers,
acquisitions
and disposals

Governance

Approval of:

capital or revenue expenditure exceeding £5 million or greater than £2.5 million where this
expenditure 15 over the agreed budget, or any expenditure deemed to be outside the normal course
of business;

the annual bonus declaration;

recommendations, if any, to the Financial Condition Report;

the Valuation Report and the Annual Report; and

Solvency il financral reporung, including approval of the ORSA, the Internal Model and its embedding,
Risk Appette Statements and Systems of Governance as recommended by the Risk and Audit
Committees.

mergers, acquisitions and disposals either by the Society or any of its subsidianes with a value
greater than £5 million; and
approval of mergers, acquisitions and disposals and overseeing effective integration.

Approval of:

the Notice of AGM iincluding reappointment of auditors), any proposed amendments 1o the
memorandum and rules and related decumentation in connection with the AGM;

the Notice of the results of the AGM and any resolutions to be raised at the Member Panel where there
was d sigrficant vote against;

approval und penodic review 1o discuss specific policy statements as the board may determine from

and

compliance .

» the membership of board committees;

» the terms of reference of board committees, subsidiary company boards and the Executive Asset and
Liability Matching Commuttee; and

« policy changes in pension entitlement and staff pension scheme funding.

any political donations (none made),

Audit Committee

The Audit Commitlee is required to meet at least three times a year,
in accordance with its terms of reference, and has an agenda linked
to events in the group's financial calendar including approving any
press releases to the market on financial reporting. During the year,
the committee met ten times which included approval of all quarterly
financial and trading disclosures. The committee is expected

to meet at least six times in 2017. Details of each member's
attendance is provided below:

. Attended % of
SCthu'ed mecungs 10

James Dean* 9 90%
David Neave”® 9 0%
Caroline Burton 10 100%
Mark Austen 10 100%

¢ Ch—rraftne Cow mulbes
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The company secretary acts as secretary to the Audit Committee,
Other individuals may be invited 0 attend all or part of any meeting
as and when appropriate including, but not limited to, the chief
executive; the group finance director; the internal audit director; the
chief risk officer; the group financial controiler and the group chref
actuary.

The external auditors (PricewaterhouseCoopers lip {(PwC)) attended
all of the committee's main meetings in 2016, except when their
own performance was being reviewed.

time to tme mcluding principal nsk policies (except those delegated to the Risk Commuttee);

The board considers that all the members of the committee are
independent (with the exception of the chairman, Mark Austen, due
to his length of tenure) and bring significant and relevant skills and
experience to the function of the committee, All members undertake
induction training and continuing professional development, James
Dean, in particular, as the chairman and a former senior partner at
Ernst & Young |Ip, has the requisite ‘recent and relevant financial
experience’, as recommended by the Corporate Governance Code.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include all the
matters required under the Corporate Governance Code and follow
FRC guidance. Compliance with the committee’s terms of reference
is reviewed annually to ensure the committee has discharged all of
its responsibilities through the year.

The primary purposes of the Audlt Committee are to:

s Review the effectiveness of the group's internal controls and risk
management systems alongside the work of the Risk Committee;

¢ Review the models and governance underpinning the Internal
Mode! application made by the group in the first quarter of 2017,
including validation testing;

« Review the Solvency |l regulatory returns and recommend
submission to the PRA;

+ Review the financial reporting process and outputs se asto
ensure the balance, transparency and integrity of published
financial information and the group’s process for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations affecting financial
reporting;

» Reviewthe effectiveness of the internal audit function (whose
remit covers all risk classes); and

+ Review the effectiveness of the external audit process (the remit
for which is external reporting matters) including the appointment
and ensuring the independence of the external auditor and the
use of the external auditor for non-audit work,
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Significant issues addressed by the Audit Comimittee during the year

The Audit Committee pays particular attention 1o matters it considers to be important by virtue of their impact on the group's solvency,
resulis or remuneration of senior management, or the tevel of complexity, judgement or estimation involved in their application on the
consolidated financial stalements. The main areas of focus during the year are set out in the following significant issues table below:

-Ares of focus ) 1 Audit Committee action In yvear 4 Conclusion / outcome

Goodwill

The zppropr.ateness of the £220m
carry.ng valie of Fopowil] that we huld on
our Statement of Fiizne 2) Positior.

The cannrittee bas reviewed the resuite of
the anrusl 'mprirment assessment witck
cempares the recoverable amount 2f amst
the earryins vatue for both the general

Psurance and life husinesses as scpprate

The cormittee has concluded that
methodolnties used to moasure
the vatue of goodw.ll hetd on the
Statement of Financial Position
are apprepr.ate. Results of these

cash generating uns, Cons deration nas been
£oven to the sppropriatencess of value in use
cateulat.ons, including di-count rates apphed.

calculations cen! rnied that carrying
values were supportabie and
therefore no add tional impa:nnert
was reqgitired.

The cormmitice s satistied tnat
approprate assumplions bave
been usedin calrulating the
remeasdtement ¢f the pes.on
schemes,

The committee has cunsidered the
assumrplions used for calcuiating |1AS

19 remeasurement of detmed benetfit
schemes’ and approved cranses made where
approprate.

Penslon scheme accounting

The methodulogy and 2ssumptions ueed
for account:ng far the sroup pens:on
schemes; the ret pension bene’ it asset
comprises:

e VWscheme £114masset

s Qcrhan: scheme £20m asset

o Teachers £n:im asset

as at 31 December 2016.

The corrmittee agrees that the
pens.on bergt t assel assoac.ated

The comir:ttee aiso considered whether it was
apprupndate to recognse the penstion benefit
asset fur the penson schomes by rov. ewing w.th each scheme s recoverable and
the recoverability of the asset in necordance that it is eppropriate to recoprise the
with IFRIC 14 "The Limit on o Det.ned Beneht asset.

Anket’,

The commiiise concurs with
management’s conrclusion that
the transacl.on1s a busimess
combnation,

The goemnttee has rev.ewea nanafement’s
repert ont the assessment of the transacton
as @ husiness combination in accordance vath
IFRS 3.

Teachers acqulsition
Applicat:on of IFRS 3 'Busness
Combinations”.

Estimation of the g4'n uh acquisition: of

£3m arising and far value of intana.bles The commtlee nas overseen the estimation The commities 1s satrishied with the

Joardog v oaong

[ TOMETL PG )

of £10m. and judgement made by nianagement valuation of the gain and intangibies
reparding the far value of the gain and ansing on acquisition of the
imtangihies, including the Present Value of in Tearhers business.,
Force business IPVIF; arsing on acguisitian.
R
NMPTL SIPP transfer The comimuttee has reviewed the teports The commuttee s satistied that

The adimirustrator of the LV= and
Tomnrrow Personad Pension schermes
has been transferred from NMPTL to
LVES 1n order to simplify the reporting
and capital structures.

As g result, administrative charges and
expenses assocated with SIPP business
now anse wittun LVFS,

OB penslon cash benefits

The bas:s for the valustion of OB
Pernswns benehits, when taken as & cash
settlement rather than an annuity, has
beern reassessed following feedbach
from the Financial Conduct Authornity
{FCA.. T change redused heritape
operating prohit by £80m.

by management und external advisors

regarding the change i1 accountng treatment

of §IPP business lollowing the transfer

ot the adriimsstration to LVFS, Thus brings
the accounting for SIPP business in hine
with existing business wrntler inthe LVFS
Statement of Financial Positien,

The commuttes reviewed the FCA's report

regarding the valuation bas:s for OB Pensions

that are cash communte d.

Manupement’s investigativn and proposed
chatigie 10 the valuation bas s has been
assessed by the cominttee.

management have reached the
appropriate conctusion regqarding
the accounting for SIPP busingss
under the new administration
structure.

The commitiee has approved the
response 1ssued 1o the FCA and
are satistied that the new valuation
basis 1S approptiate,

S NG
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Area of focus Audit Committee action in year Conclusion / outcome
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Changes in unit costs

The calculation of the insurance contract
hzbiiies 1s 'mpacted by changes in unit
costs. A review of the methodology hus
been performed in 2016.

Other key life assumptions

and methodology matters

The calculation of the group's long-term
nsurance contract halnlibes requires
other assumptions in addition to those
above to be made for future expenence.

Estimate of general insurance contract
liabilities (PPOs)

Durning 2016 there was a change in the
underlying assumptions used to value
claims reserves for claims which settle
via penodic payment orders (PPOs] to
reflect updates n the yield curve and
discount riate.

Estimate of general insurance contract
liabllitles {(Lump sum personal injury
settlements) In February 2017 the
Ogden discount rate used in valuing ump
sum personal injury settlements was
reduced from 2.5 to minus 0.75.~,

Qur ¢claims reserves were updated to
reflect this change.

S, oe, N
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The commitiee reviewed the change in

unt costs, which reflected an update to
methodology and the development of the
business, and d.scussed w.th management
the validity of this approach.

The proposed urnit costs were reviewed aga nst
the 2016 sctudl costs and the expecied costs
from the 2017-2021 business plan, These
camparisons supported the approcch adopted.

The committee reviewed reports fram
management proposing a number of changes
to the calculation of the long-term insurance
contract hahilities. The committee considered
industry dati and has also reviewed the
benchmarking prov:ded by the external auditor,

As a result of this the committee agreed a
number of changes to the calouiation of the
longi-term insurance contract labiliies. These
included proposed changes to the mortihty,
morhidity and persistency assumptions for
certain products so as to reflect more closely
the emerging expenence. This included an
update 1o OB pensions lo reflect increases in
the level of cash commutation.

The committee has reviewed management’s
findings regarding an investiagation :nto the
appropristeness of the assumptions used to
vilue PPOs,

The committee reviewed the changes
proposed by manapgement to update the
methodology and assumptions.

The commuttee reviewed the new tevel of
claims reserves proposed by manapement
following the Ogden rate chanple
announcement taking into acrount the
estimated ympact of the changle and the
uncertainty sround this estimate.

The committee are satisfied
that the charges nunt cost
methodelogy implemented by
menagement are appropreate.

The committee concurred
with management as to the
reasonableness of the
revised assumptions,

The committee was satisfied with
the changes adopted regarding the
methodology for reserving for PPOs.

The committee was satisfied
that the increase in claims
reserves put forward by
management was reqasonable.

Standard Formula opening balance sheet
Insurers were required to provide an

inital regulatory return to the PRA onther
Solvency Il day 1 opening batance sheets.

Audit chairs were also required to provide
a letter to the PRA confirming their comfort
over the fims’” Transitional Measures for
Technical Provision {TMTP).

Solvency Il Internal Model validation
As a result of LV="s intention to move to
its own Imternal Model, which 15 subject
to regulatory approval, a regular cycle of
madel validation has been undertaken,

1

—

The committee engaged PwC to provide a
review and recommend report on elements of
the 2015 yeur end Solvency Il results.

The commitiee reviewed the Solvency I}
opening balance sheels.

The commutiee reviewed the report findings,
providing challenge over the 1ssues dentified. All
rratenal issues were addressed and considered
by the commuttee in Becember 2016.

The committee provided oversight and
challenge over the results of validation testing
which covered all of the matenal components
of the Internal Model and the systems of
governance operated across the group.

The commitiee accepted the report.
The Audit chair provided a letter of
comfort to the PRA regarding the
openmng balance sheet Transition
relief.

The commitiee recommended to the
bozrd approval of the day 1 Sotvency i
opening balance sheetsin May 2016,

The committee concluded that
model validation had confirmed that
the results produced by the Internal
Model appropriately reflected the
nisk profile of the group and that
LV-- met the technical standards
required of Solvency !l internal
Model firms.



Corporate Governance Report

Audit Comymittee action in year Conclusion / outcome
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Solvency Il Internal Model application
LV intends to move to use of iIts own
Internal Model which requires LV=to
make a formal apphcation to obtdin
regulatory approval. The Internal Model
apphcation for the group was made in
the first quarter of 2017,

The committee pronwided detalled review

and challenge to support the LVGIG ana

LVFS boards. Focus for the Internal Model
application was placed on covenng the internal
Model pol.cies and design, risk calbrations
and results. The commitiee also reviewed the
Internal Model validation plan.

The committee recommended to
the LVFS and LVGIG boards that
they should proceed to submission
of the Internal Model applcation to
the PRA.

Summary of key activities during 2016 by which

the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities:

Intemal controls

» Considered the annual atlestation and associated exception
report regarding the effectiveness of the risk management
system and controls being operated (for more details on this
process see page 55); and

+ Reviewed the arrangements through which employees can raise
concerns about possible irregularities retating to financial reporting
or other matters including reviewing all whistleblowing reports.

Financial reporting

¢ Anzlysed and scrutinised the key accounting policies, judgements,
estimates and actuarial assumptions with management, the
external auditors and the actuarial function holder,

* Reviewed procedures for deabng with any complaints regarding
accounting, reporting, internal control or auditing matters;

+ Considered management’s review of the going concern status
of the group, ensuring that appropriate capitat and liquid assets
are in place to allow the group results to be reported on a going
concern basis;

« Monitored the financial results communicated to members,
including the Annual Report,;

« Reviewed and recommended all externai financial reporting
for the Society (including press releases and any interim
announcements put onto the regulatory news service of
the London Stock Exchange) to the board (or the Disclosure
Committee) together with supporting narrative, ensuring
estimates, judgements and reporting issues are considered so
that there is appropriate balance, transparency and integrity of
information contained in the Annual Report; and

+ At the request of the board, the committee ¢onsidered whether
the 2016 Annual Report was fair, balanced and understandable
and whether it provided the necessary information for
stakeholders to assess LV="s position, performance, business
model and strategy. In reviewing the Annual Report the Audit
Committee has concluded that this was the case.

Solvency Il

s Qversight of Lv="s successful transition onto the Solvency |l
regime from 1 January 2016, reporting using the Standard
Formula approach to determine its regulatory capital. The group
received approval to use the Volatility Adjustment and Transition
from 1 January 2016; and

» Since that date the PRA has approved LV='s application to
use Matching Adjustment on part of our annuity business and
also further recalculations of Transition. The Audit Committee
supported these applications by providing review and challenge.

Internal audit

« Reviewed on an ongoing basis the internal audit plans for 2016
and 2017 to ensure they reflected the priorities in the group's
plans and were derived from a risk-based assessment of the
business and a review against the group’s risk profiles. Changes
to the group internal audit plan were reviewed and approved on a
quanterly basis;

» Ensured that internal audit reports were reviewed and significant
findings were appropriately acted upon by management;

Met privately with the interna! audit director;

s Approved the Audit Charter, which is available on our external
website;

* Concluded that the miernal audit function was performing well
and was sufficiently resourced with continued access to suitable
external consultancy resource where necessary,

« QOversight of an annual programme of internal quality assurance,
which had been completed in order to continue to enhance the
effectiveness of the function; and

« Confirmed that the internal audil dwector’s independence had
been maintained.

External audit

+ The committee reviewed an evaluation of the effectiveness
of the external auditors, which was prepared by internal audit
using input from across the group. Key stakeholders involved
in the 2015 year-end audit process were interviewed and/ or
completed a questionnaire to evaluate the effectiveness of
the external auditors’ processes and key individuals, and also
to identuify opportunities to enhance the effectiveness and
added value from the external auditors. Areas assessed were:
expertise, communication, team, and dehivery. The committee
concluded that the external auditors were effective and
recommended the reappointment of the external auditors for a
further one year term, agreeing the terms of engagement, scope
and audit fee for the forthcoming period;

* PwC have been the group’s auditors since 2008. Legislation
regarding audit firm rotation now requires that the external audit
contract be put out to tender at least every ten years. In view
of this, the committee has initiated the audit tender process
which will conclude during the course of the coming year, with
appointment subject to member approval at the 2018 AGM;

» Reviewed the policy for and monitored the use of the external
auditors for any non-audit related work to ensure their continued
independence was not prejudiced and to ensure that the
provision of such services did not impair the external auditors’
objectivity. Any engagement above £100,000 requires prior
approval by the chairman of the Audit Committee and must be
reported to the commitlee at its next meeting.

« Total fees paid to or invoiced from the external auditors were
£3,101,000 which includes £1,500,000 for the statutory audit
of the Society and its subsidiaries. £1,223.000 relates to audit
related assurance services including the audit of Solvency |l
regulatory returns, and £378.000 relates to non-audit services
which accounts for 12% of the total fees;

+« Reviewed and approved the external avditors’ proposed audit
scope and approach for the current year as set outin its 2016
audit plan, in the light of the group’s present circumstances and
changes in regulatory and other requirements;

Discussed with the external auditor any audit problems
encountered in the normal course of audit work, including any
restrictions on audit scope or access to information as part
of ensuring that significant findings and recommendations
made by the exlernal auditors and management's proposed
response were received, discussed and appropriately acted
upon; and

+ Met privately with the external auditors, PwC.
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Committee's effectiveness

The committee reviews its own effectiveness annually and,
during the year, this review was led by the committee’s chairman,
The committee also reviews the effectiveness of each meeting
prior to conclusion 1o ensure continuous improvement,

Achievements in 2016

Approved the Solvency Il submissions and application for
Transition,

Approved the application for Internal Model reporting under
Solvency Il.

Qversaw the acquisttion of the Teachers Assurance business
and approved the associated financial reporting of the
transaclion.

Oversaw sigmficant transactions and changes in assumptions
in the year; including the NMPTL SIPP transfer, changes m
assumptions for unit costs, OB pension cash benefits and
equity release methodalogy.

Reviewed and challenged the appropriateness of the
assumplions used by management to value Peniodic Payment
Orders {PPOs), resulting in an update to the methodology to
reflect the changes in yield curve and discount rate.

Priorities for 2017

Continued facus on the areas authned in the significant issues
table on pages 83 1o 85.

Review and approval of Solvency Il Internal Model
submissions.

Consider the impact of the FCA review published with regards
to the treatment of long-standing customers, whose policies
are no longer being actively marketed.

Approve the decision to change the segmental reporting to

reflect the change in budgeting and reporting of the retrement
and protection life businesses.

Review the new insurance contracts standard. expected to be
issued in 2017.

Oversight of the external audit tender process.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee met five times during 2016 and is
expected to meet six times in 2017,

The committee is made up of four non-executive directors and
each member’s attendance is provided below:

Scheduled meetings 5 | Meetings Attended Y% of

Meetings attendance

Cath Keers* 5 5 100%
Caroiine Burton 5 5 100%
Mark Austen 5 . 5 100%
David Neave? 3 2 67%
: ;4. :‘l: T et 1 v 29

Other attendees include the HR director, head of reward, the
chief executive and the chief risk officer, who atiend by invitation,

The role and princlple activities of the committee

On behalf of the board, the committee determines:

» The group's policy on executive remuneration; and

+« The specific packages for each of the executive directors and
certain senior managers, including the group-wide incentive and
bonus schemes.

More details of the group's policy on executive and senior
management remuneration, and the activities of the committee
during the year are set out in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration on pages 94 to 107,

The Risk Committee

The Risk Committee met four times in 2016 and is expected
to meet four times in 2017. The committee is made up of four
non-executive direclors and each member's attendance is
provided below:

S Attended %of

David Neave* 4 100%
Dawid Barral® 3 75%

James Dean 4 100%
Mark Austen 4 100%

et the (o el g 2016
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Other attendees include, but are not limited to
the chief executive;

the group finance director;

the chief risk officer;

the internal audit director;

the head of compliance; and

the group chief actuary.

The role and princlple activities of the committee
The principal role of the committee is to consider the risks faced
by LV= and advise the board.

More details of the.group's policy on risk management, and the
activities of the committee during the year are set out in the Risk
Management section on pages 48 to 58.
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Investment Committee
The Investment Committee meets at least twice a year. It met
three times in 2016 and is expected to meet four umes in 2017,

The committee comprises three non-executive directors,

two executive directors and the group chief risk officer.
Representatives from the group's asset manager, Columbia
Threadneedle Investments, the group chief investment officer
and the group chief actvary are regular attendees who attend
by invitation. Details of each member’s attendance is
provided below:

Attended % of

Scheduled meetings 3 | Meetings

Meetings | attendance
Carohine Burton* 3 3 1007
Mark Austen 3 1 334
Philip Moore 3 3 100%
David Barral** 2 1 50
Mike Rogers” 2 1 50¢
Richard Rowney* 1 i 100+
Steve Haynes*** 3 3 100%
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The role of the committee
It is responsible for:

+ Developing, recommending and overseeing the investment
strategy for the group, aligned to its business and risk
strategy;

s Monitoring and reviewing the operational performance of
Columbia Threadneedle Investments covering its refative
investment performance against mandates set, service
levels, contract terms and conditions including its charges
compared to alternative providers; and

» Invesiment activity undertaken by management including
the oversight of the group’s Asset and Liability Committee
{ALCO) delegated activities and effectiveness of decisions
and actions.

Princlpal activities undertaken in 2016
During the year, the committee undertook the following activities:

* Reviewed counterparty risk and compliance with the
counterparty policy;

« Monitored the effectiveness of the derivative portfoho and
investment performance portfolio;

» Discussed credit exposure and proposed aclions;

» Reviewed the Sociely’s with-profits investment strategy
benchmarks in comparison to peers;

* Discussed Columbia Threadneedle Investments’ performance
including compliance with delegated authorities: and

» Evaluated the performance of the committee and individual
members, ted by the chairman.

With-profits Committee

The With-profits Committee meets at least four times a year.

In 2016 it held five formatl meelings and four ad-hoc meetings.
It is expected to meet five imes in 2017. The committee
comprises one non-executive director, an independent
chairman, two independent members and the managing
director of our retirement solutions business. The chairman has
extensive and relevant industry experience and was formerly
CEO of Potice Mutual and holds a number of other non-executive
positions. Details of each member’'s attendance is

provided below:

Attended % of

Scheduled meetings 5 | Meetings

eligibleto | Meelings attendance
attend
Cath Keers 5 5 100%
Graham Berville®* 5 5 1000
John PerkgA* 5 4 80u
Steve Sarjant? 5 5 100%
lan Blanchard** 4 4 100y
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Changes to the composition of the commitiee

lan Blanchard joined the commitiee following the acquisition

of the business of Teachers Provident Soclety Limited in June
2016 and the transfer of the Teachers’ with-profits business to
a ring-fenced fund for the benefit of those policyholders. lan has
extensive knowledge of the Teachers business having previously
held the position of finance director of Teachers.

The role of the committee

The committee's role in respect of the LV= and Teachers with-

profits funds is to:

+ Advise the board on its views on the interests of with-profits
policyholders;

* Bring independent judgement to the assessment of
compliance with the statement of Principles and Practices of
Financial Management;

« Monitor how any competing or conflicting interests between
different groups of pohicyholders are resolved; and

e Provide advice to the board on any other matters within its
terms of reference.

The committee can engage external professional advisers to
assist in delivering its objectives effectively. It also draws on
the expertise of the with-profits actuary. Input is also provided
by the life chief actuary and the group chief actuarial services
director, who attend meetings by invitation.

Principal activities undertaken in 2016

During Lhe year, and in addition to its core responsibilities.

the committee undertook the following activities:

s Revised its terms of reference following the transfer of the
Teachers with-profits fund and reviewed its effectiveness
against the revised terms of reference;

» Welcomed a new committee member and ensured a thorough
induction plan was undertaken;

+ Continued with an on-going programme of improvements to
with-profit member communications;

« Considered the impact on with-profit members following the
transfer of the Teachers with-profits fund and several other
strategic initiatives;

« Continued to monitor the outcomes from the legacy product
review programme and considered any proposed remediation
and improvements;
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= Commissioned an independent external effectiveness review
and shared the key findings with the board; and

« Completed a review of the investment strategy for the main
with.profits fund and oversaw its implementation.

Executive Committee

The chief executive ¢hairs this weekly cormmitiee meeting to
monitor our business performance. It also meets in order to help
him meet the responsibiliies which the beard has delegated to
him and as a precursor to its monthiy reporting to the board.

Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee
The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee met six
times in 2016 and is expected 10 meet at least twice in 2017,

During the year, the committee comprised all the independent
non-executive directors, the chairman and the chief executive
and each member's attendance is provided below:

Scheduled meetings 6 | Meetings Attended % of
Meetings atlendance

Mark Austen* 6 6 100%
David Barral 6 8 100%
Caraline Burton 6 6 100%
James Dean 6 6 100%
Cath Keers 6 5 83%

David Neave 6 6 100%
Richard Rowney* 2 2 100%
Mike Rogers*+ 1 1 100%

* Ch- aftha.:omr Hep
* R " Repniey wak app 1,00 85 & mstrhen of thae gar s tiee on 28 by 2016,
fowe g Moae [ reey cpsadngl -y

10 Mike Rogers was i ¢ g o altrnd mept nga whees reeay ment af R g suiLesier
#r4% o nig o xcussed,

The role of the committee

The committee:

+ Evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on,
and required by, the board for board appeintments and certain
senior management roles; and

s Prepares a description of the role and capabilities required for
any particular appointment.

Extension to the committee’s role and activities

In December 2016, the Nomination Committee’s terms of
reference were changed to give a stronger focus and ownership
to corporate governance matlers. To recognise this change,
the committee was renamed the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee.

The committee will continue to concentrate on the review of
board composition and tead the selection and appointment of
new directors. In addition to the committee’s on-going duties,
the board has delegated the following responsibilities to now sit
within the commitiee’s remit:

« To oversee the board's governance arrangements and make
appropriate recommendations to the board,

+ To comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code and ensure
hest practice is carned out;

« To review and approve the Corporate Governance Report for
the Annual Report;

« Toreview the terms of reference for the board and its
committees to ensure they are accurate and fit for purpose;
and

* Toreview the directors’ conflicts of interest register annually
and escalate any conflicts to the board.

Involvement of external consultants

Recruitment consultants The Zygos Partnership (TZP) were
instructed to help compile a short-list of candidates to interview
for the role of chairman designate. At the conclusion of the
recruitment process, the committee reviewed the candidates
and made recommendations to the board for approval. TZP

had no other cennection with the Scciety and was used solely
for the purpose of assisting with the recruitment for the board
vacancies.

Further details of the board appointments made throughout the
year are included on page 74,

Principal actlvities undertaken in 2016

During the year, the committee undertook the following activities:

+ Discussed succession planning:

« Instructed external search consuitants 1o begin the
recruitment process for a chief executive and chairman
designate.

+ Considered the short-list candidates for the role of chairman
designate, including time commitment and any conflicts of
interest and made a recommendation 1o the board;

+« Recommended to the board that the chief executive was
appointed from within the organisation following consultation
with external search consultants and after canducting
interviews with a short-list of candidates;

s Discussed the professional development plans and non-
executive director training for 2016;

+ Reviewed its effectiveness against its terms of reference; and

* Evaluated the performance of the committee's meeting
effectiveness.
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Board diversity policy

The board recognises that diversity and inclusion are central
to business success, today and for the future, reflecting the
diversity of its people, customers, members and communities
in which it operates.

The board has adopted the following diversity policy:

LV= recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
board, and sees diversity at board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills. industry
experience, background, race, gender and other quahues of
directors. These differences will be considered in determining the
optimum composition of the board and. when possible, should

be balanced appropriately. All board appointments will be made
on mernit, in the context of the skills and expenence the board, as
a whote, requires to be effective. The Corporate Governance and
Nomination Commitiee reviews and assesses board composition
on behalf of the board and recommends the appointment of all
new directors to the board.

Application of the diversity policy

In reviewing board composition, the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects
of diversity including, but not limited to, those described above,
in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
experience and backgrounds on the board.

In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the board,
the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee will
consider candidates on merit against objeclive criterta and with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the board.

As part of the annual performance evaluation of the
effectiveness of the board, board committees and individua!
directors, the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the board and the diversity of the board.

Diversity and inclusion programme
During 2016 LV= continued to progress ils diversity and
inclusion programme,

The purpose and objectives of LV="s diversity and inclusion
programme are:

e Tocreate a culture at LV= where everybody feels comfortable
with being themselves,

« lts people are setf-aware and accept persenal accountability
for diversity and inclusion;

s The diverse perspective of its people, customers, members
and communities it operates in are reflected in what they do;
and

s |ts people and leaders are as diverse as the customers and
mernbers it serves.

Our progress included the development of the programme to
include five main areas of diversity: gender, disability, sexual
orientation. ethnigity and multi-generational, ensuring it reached
out to all representative groups of its staff and customers alike.
LV="s commitment starts at the top of the business with group
executives sponsoring each of the diversity programmes,

Achievements in 2016

In 2016 we invested significant efforts in our diversity and

inclusion programme:

* We signed up to the Women in Finance Charter signalling our
commitment and aspiration to see gender balance at all levels
across financial services firms as well as at Lv=;

» Qurwide-scale leadership development programme continued
into 20186, engaging with over 1,800 leaders and recruitment
consultants, to highlight the impact of unconscious bias and
benefits of inclusion; and

» foundations were laid for our multi-cultural programme,
working alongside global diversity and inclusion consultants
Brook Graham, engaging with cur people on ethnicity feeding
into the creation of our LYy=Equals network.

The board has a strong interest in the development and
progression of women at all fevels of the group and during the
year continued to grow its women's network ‘PACE’ (which stands
for Potential, Ambition, Connections and Empowerment}, its
largest diversity and inclusion network. With an ever growing
membership from both its male and ferale workforce, the
network has been pivotal in helping people recognise the value
that gender diversity brings 1o an organisation. As well as helping
women to learn from more senior role models, build confidence
and take ownership for their own careers, the network provides
opportunities for mentoring. work-shadowing and insight for
male colleagues about the challenges that women face. With
regular speaker events from inspirational women and men, the
growing network is working towards the aim of supporting equal
opportunities for everyone, Today PACE is recognised as an
influential network for the business and our people on all gender-
related issues.

The main achievement of our overall diversity and inclusion
programme to date has been as the enabling voice for minority
groups, creating the opportunity for them to shape and influence
our culture, workplace and customer propositions. Resulting in
them feeling that they can bring their true self 1o work.

External partners

We are proud of our association with a range of external partners
who provide us with access to further networks, research and
best practice on diversity and inclusion across the UK, These
include: We are the City, City Women's Network, Stonewalt and
the Business Disability Forum.

The chairman is a member of the 30% Club which is committed
to bringing more women to boards. This is a group largely
comprising chairmen of major firms committed to achieving
gender balance at all levels of organisations.

The Society has not set a specific target but, during the
recruitment process for a new chief executive and chairman
designate, requested a diverse short-list and long lead-times

to ensure women had the opportunity to apply and could be
considered for the role. During 2016, women made up 22% of the
full beard and, of the non-executive directors, the Society had
33% female representation.
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Business activities and future prospects

LV= is an incorporated friendly society that,
together with various subsidiaries, carries out
insurance and financial services business

in the United Kingdom, through LVFS and its

subsidiaries. These aclivities include with-profits

insurance, life protection (both term and whole-
of-life}, pensions, annuittes, online retirement
advice, equity release, motor, home, pet and
travel insurance. The directors consider that afl
the activities undertaken by the group during the
year were within the Sogiety's rules and relevant
regulatory permissions.

The board sets objectives and priorities supported
by key perfarmance indicators (KPis) and targets,
which it monitors on an ongoing basis throughout

the year. During 2016, the key objectives and

priorities were aligned to our strategic agenda as

outlined on pages 24 and 25.

Business strategy

The board has chosen to set out the group’s
full strategi¢ report information required under
applicable taw and regulations in full which can
be found on pages 13 to 71 of this report.

Board directors and interests

The current members of the board and details
of its various committees are shown on pages
7810 79.

In February 2016 John O’Roarke's minority
shareholding in Liverpool Victoria General
Ingurance Group (22.22% shareholding in

the Qrdinary B Class of shares, equivalent to
approximately 0.25% of the total Ordinary share
capital of LV= General insurance Group) was
repurchased by the Society under an ‘earn-out’

agreement. Further details are given in note 50 to

the financial statements.

We continued to maintain liability insurance
cover for our directors and officers during the
year and as at the date of approval of these
financial statements.

ﬂ,’

Basis of accounting

These financial statements are presented using
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
as adopted by the European Union, drawn up

on a going concern basis. Further details about
the directors’ responsibilities for the financial
statemenis are gescribed on page 93.

Going concern and viability statement

tn accordance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the directors are
required to assess the prospect of the groupas a
going concern generally over the next 12 months
and alse its longer-term viability,

Going conhcern

Under the UK Corporate Governance Code the
directors are required to state whether the
business is a going concern. In considering this
requirement, the directors have taken into account
the following:

« The group plan, which was approved by the '
board and in particular the forecast regulatory
solvency position. Sensitivity analysis is
included within this forecast (for further detail
on this analysis see page 35);

« Forthe group, regulatory solvency is given
maore attention than liquidity. This is because,
by the nature of its business, the group holds
very substantial liquid assets on its balance
sheet which would enable it to pay claims and
expenses as they fall due for at least a 12
month period; and

» The principal risks and uncertainties that could
impact the group’s solvency and liquidity over
the next 12 months (for further detail on the
pnincipal risks and uncertainties assessed in
2016 see pages 51 to 54).

Having due regard to these matters and after
making appropriate enquiries, the directors confirm
that they consider it appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on the going concern basis.
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Viability statement

The board is required to assess the prospects

of the Society and the group over a longer period
than the 12 months required for the going concern
review, The assessment should consider whether
the board have a reasonable expectation that the
Society and the group will be able to continue in
operation over a specified period and meet their
liabilities as they fall due,

The review has been conducted over a period of
three years and is based on the internal group plan,
which was approved by the board in February 2017.
The statement takes account of events since the
approval of the plan such as the recent change to
the Ogden discount rate {see page 28).

The plan covers the five year period from 2017

to 2021, but the board has used a review period
of three years for the purposes of the viability
statement. Although the board does not have an
expectation that there will be a material change in
the principal risks affecting the solvency, liquidity
or performance of the group beyond the three year
horizon, the reliability of those forecasts is less
precise and is subject to potential business and
regulatory changes.

The plan covers, inter-alia, the group's strategic
business outlook, profitability, liquidity, regulatory
solvency position and other key financial
performance indicators over the period. The
agreed plan is the basis for setting detailed
largets for both the group and business areas.

The plan has been reviewed and challenged by the
board. In addition the board and risk function have
carried out a robust assessment of the key risks
which could threaten the group’s business model,
future performance, solvency or liquidity. The plan
is subject to stress and scenario testing to assess
the outcomes under a number of both regulatory
and internal conditions as well as sensitivity
analyses to key risks (for further detail on key risks
and stress and scenario testing carried out as part
of the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)
process see page 57). The review paid particular
consideration to the impact of both economic
stresses such as a sudden reduction in long-term
interest rates or equity values and large insurance
claim stresses such as a general insurance
weather event which could result in a significant
reduction in the group capita! surplus. The review
also considered mitigating actions available to the
group should an extreme stress scenario occur.

The board continues to pay particular attention

to the group’s solvency position which it views

as a key metric for assessing the sustainability

of the Society and group. As at 31 December
2016 the group's capital surplus on a Standard
Formula basis was £367 million, leading to a
capital coverage ratio of 140% which, although
above the group’s solvency capital requirement, is
below the board's capital risk appetite {see Capital
Performance on pages 33 to 35). The group has
applied to the Prudential Regulatory Authority for
approval of its Internal Model. Application of the
Internal Model for regulatory capital purposes

will only occur following PRA review and approval
of the application. The board’s assessment for
the purposes of this viability statement has
considered both Standard Formula and Internal
Model based capital projections.

The group has carried out a series of aclions

in 2016 to strengthen its capital position as
summarised on pages 33 to 35. Whilst the group’s
capital projections demonstrate that the group will
continue to meet regulatory capital requirements
over the assessment period, these projections
continue to show capita! surplus below the board’s
capital risk appetite during the review period and,
in the event of an extreme stress s¢enario, would
be significantly below risk appetite. Accordingly, the
board intends to pursue a number of options with
a view to bringing the group's capital surplus within
risk appetite and increasing its resilience to such
stresses over the review period.

The board has also assessed the liquidity position
of the Society and the group. The group has a
highly liquid balance sheet with a surplus of liquid
assels over forecast liabilities due over the next 12
months of £4,167 million and over the next three
years of £2,338 million (see pages 36 to 37). The
hoard has also assessed the liquidity position over
a three year period and has concluded, based on
current forecasts, that group will be able to meet
its liabilities as they fali due.

Based on the results of this review, and on the
assumption that, in the event of a significant
stress, the board would take identified mitigating
actions o restore its capital position, the board
has a reasonable expectation that the Society and
the group will be able o continue in operation and
meet their liabilities as they fall due over the three
year period of their assessment.
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Fixed assets
Changes in our fixed assels are shown in note 26 to
the financial statements.

Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2016
we held the required capital resources for each
business class as prescribed by the PRA.

Independent auditor

Aresolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers lip {PwC} as auditor will
be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

PwC has been the group's auditor since 2008,
Legislation regarding audit firm rotation now
requires that the external audit contract be put out
to tender at least every ten years. In view of this, an
audit tender process has been initiated which will
conclude during the course of the coming year, with
appointment subject to member approval at the
2018 AGM,

Assessment of risk

We logk to create value for members by maintaining
an appropriate balance between the returns that
we seek and the level and type of risk we take onin
order to achieve these returns,

in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the grouvp
and Society, including those which would threaten
its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity.

A full overview of our risk management can be
found on pages 48 to 58 and further details of the
ongoing monitoring and the annual review of the
effectiveness of risk management systems can be
found in the Audit Committee report on pages 82 (o
86. Note 4 of these accounts also provides further
detail about our risk management and control.

Internal control

The board has overali responsibility for the group’s
internal control systems and for monitoring
effectiveness. implementation and maintenance of
the internal control systems are the responsibility
of the executive directars and senior management.
The performance of the internal control systems

is reviewed by the relevant beard committees,
principally the Audit Commitiee which receives
reports from the internal audit. compliance and
risk funclions.

The Audit Committee report on pages 82 tc 86
describes the main features of the internal control
and risk management systems in relation to the
financial reporting process and the process for
preparing cansolidated accounts, which are a
subset of the internal control systems under the
supervision of the board's committees.

The group’s internal control systems are designed
10 manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to meet business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or ioss. in assessing what
constitutes reasonable assurance, the board

has regard to materiality and to the relationship
between the cost of, and benefit from, internal
control systems.

The regular review of the effectiveness of the
system of risk management and internal controt
concluded that these systems remain effective and
there were no significant failings or weaknesses to
report.

Our employees

Details about cur people, our people policies
including the employment of disabled persons, and
engagement with our staff generally can be found
on pages 59 to 71 of this report, headed "Carporate
Responsibility Report'. Our board diversity policy is
ingluded on page 89.
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Charitable donations

A full view of our charitable donations and
corporate social responsibility activities can be
found on page 67. No political donations were
made in 2016.

Statement of disclosure of information
to the auditor

As at the date of this report each director confirms
that:

1) So far as he or she is aware, there is no
information relevant to the audit of the Society’s
and the group's financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of which the
auditor is unaware;

2) He or she has taken all steps that he or she
ought to have taken in his/her duty as a director
to make him/her aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Society’s
auditor is aware of that information.

Directors’ statement of responsibility

The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (1992 Act)
requires a Friendly Society’s Committee of
Management to prepare accounts for each
accounting period. As we are incorporated under
the 1992 Act our board of directors has assumed
the responsibilities and duties of the Committee of
Management in relation to these accounts.

These accounts must comply with the relevant
provisions of the 1992 Act, and present fairly the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Society and the group at the end of the
accounting period. In carrying out this duty, the
directors have chosen to use IFRS as adopted by
the European Union.

A fair presentation of our accounts in accordance

with IFRS requires our directors (o:

« Select suilable accounting policies and ensure
they are applied consistentiy;

» Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis,
unless itis inappropriate to presume that the
Society and the group will continue in business;

s  Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

» Presentinformation, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable
information;

s Provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in IFRS is
insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Society’s and the group's
financial position and financial performance;
and

» State that the Society and the group have
complied with applicable IFRSs, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in
the accounts.

The directors are also responsible for maintaining:

* Proper accounting records which are intended
to disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any
time, the financial position of the Society and
the group;

+« Appropriate internal control systems to
safeguard our assets and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities; and

+ The integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on our website LV.com.

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the directors, whose names and functions

are shown on pages 78 and 79, confirm that to

the best of their knowledge and belief:

+« The Society and the group financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the Society and the group;

+ The Business Reviews on pages 28 to 47 of
the Strategic Report include a fair review of the
development and perfermance of the business
during the financial year and the financial
position of the group at the end of 2016; and

+ Adescription of the group's principal risks and
details of the group’s risk governance structure
are provided on pages 48 to 58.

Having taken all the matters considered by the
board and brought to the attention of the board
during the year into account, the directors are
satisfied that the Annual Report, taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides
the information necessary for our members and
investors to assess the Society's and the group's
position and performance, business model

and strategy.

By order of the Board of Directors

ﬂO\M S U

Rachel Small, Group Company Secretary
11 April 2017
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Report on
Directors’
Remuneration

At the heart of owr remuneration
Framewark is the link = ~ur
- larg: term business strafeq..

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

MR

Annual Statement

Dear Member,

in 2016, LV= has seen mixed financial results. The
underlying trading performance of both our general
insurance and life businesses is encouraging with
increases in both sales and cperating profit before
the impact of the Ogden rate change. At a group
|level however the results have been impacted
both by the Ogden rate change and losses in

our heritage business. Despite this our trading
businesses continue to demonstrate resilience

in challenging market conditions characterised

by low long-term interest rates, increased capital
requirements influenced by regulatory change and
on-going claims inflation.

As the chair of the Remuneration Committee, | and
my colleagues seek to ensure we offer a reward
package that attracts the best people to lead the
Society, that our pay arrangements appropriatety
support our long-term business strategy and that
variable incentive pay-outs reflect the business
performance that has been delivered on your behalf.

Pay and the link to our long-term
husiness strategy

Al the heart of our remuneration framework is

the link to our long-term business strategy and

the long-term sustainability of the Society. We
currently operate two variable incentive schemes
for this purpose - an annual bonus scheme and a
long-term incentive plan (LTIP}. The annual bonus
is driven by a balanced scorecard of financial and
non-financial measures covering risk, people,
strategy and customer, and a proportion of any
award may he deferred and paid out in a later year,
ensuring that our executives remain focused on
baoth the short-term and long-term health of the
Society. Qur LTIP, which measures performance
over three years, is intended to reward participants
for delivering high performance in business results
which is sustainable over the long-term.

.

Long-term growth in group profit is the primary
measure used as it is @ measure that grows
member value, provides the resources for us 1o
investin the Society's future, and can be used to
fund the mutual bonus.

Variable remuneration and the link to
performance

The annual bonus in 2016 was weighted 55% on
financial measures (normalised group operating
profit) and 45% on individual and strategic
measuras, Operating profit from trading operations
and before the impact of the Ogden rate change

in 2016 was £158 miilion, allowing for the Ogden
rate change the operating profit was £20 millien.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
elements of the group operating profit to calculate
anormalised group's operating profit of £108
million, which resulted in part payment in respect
of this measure. The individual strategic measures
are tailored for each executive director, but stem
from our balanced scorecard of financial and
non-financiat objectives. In light of the Scciety’s
performance and taking into account {feedback
from our risk review process relating to our capital
position during the year compared to our targeted
position, the commitiee has decided to exercise
its discretion and reduce the bonus payable to
executive directors. Whilst making this decision
the committee also discussed the mutual bonus
paid during the year. Following the committee
exercising its disgretion, the bonuses payable

to executive directors ranged from 10% to 79%

of individual maximum. A portion of each bonus
received by Richard Rowney, Mike Rogers and
Philip Moore, will be deferred for payment over the
next three years, with the value linked to the value
of investments in the with-profits fund, ensuring a
continued link to the performance of

the Society.
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Our success has also been shared with our
employees via our group annual incentive scheme,
with the average percentage bonus received by our
employees being 8.6% of benus-able earnings.

Our 2014-16 Group LTIP scheme was based on
stretching targets relating to Enterprise Value
growth, with our chief executive and group finance
director also having an element of their award
linked to Relative Investment Performance.
Annualised Enterprise Value growth over the three
year performance period was 10%, representing
significant growth but not exceeding the stretching
target set by the committee that would have
resulted in maximum vesting. This resulted in
payment of 50% of the maximum under this
element. Our annualised investment perfermance
over the three year performance period has

been solid, and has outperformed the industry
benchmark by 8bps. The annualised Relative
Invesiment Performance element of the awards
given to the chief executive and group finance
director has therefore generated payment of 45%
of the maximum under this element. We have
included more details of our LTIP performance on
page 102.

Changes to board composition

During 2016 we made a planned transition in

the role of chief executive with Richard Rowney
succeeding Mike Rogers in July. As confirmed

in 2015, John O'Roarke stepped down from the
board and his position as managing director of
our general insurance business in 2016 and
ceased to be eligible for any bonus. We appointed
Steve Treloar to replace John O'Roarke, and he
started with us in May 2016. Richard Rowney's
remuneration on promotion to chief executive

and Steve Treloar’s remuneration package

upon appointment are in line with our existing
remuneration policy that was approved by
members in May 2015, Details of all remuneration
arrangements are set out on pages 104 and 105 of
the Report on Directors Remuneration.

Mark Austen our current chairman will be standing
down at the Society's Annual General Meeting

in June 2017. Atan Cook was appointed to the
board on 1 January 2017 as an independent non-
executive director of the Society and chairman
designate following regulatory approval, and is
nominated for election as chairman at the June
2017 AGM. David Barral also joined us in March
2016 as a non-executive director.

Remuneration in 2017

Salary

We review directors' salaries at the same time as we
look at salaries for the whole employee population
and we determine any increases for our executive
directors in exactly the same way as our broader
employee group. In making any pay increases, we
consider affordability and the pay increases that

we see across our industry competitors. When it
comes to individual pay increases, we consider
individua! performance and talent potential,
comparing salaries to similar roles both externally
and internally. In 2017, salaries for our allemployee
poputation will increase on average by 1.7%. In 2017

our executive directors have chosen to waive any
pay increases that may have been awarded to them
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the challenging market conditions faced in 2016.

Varlable incentives

The committee continually keeps under review our
remuneration policy, remuneration levels and all
incentive arrangements.

Last year the committee approved a change to

the weightings of our annual bonus scheme for
20186, reducing the emphasis placed on financial
objectives from 80% to 55%, and increasing

the weighting on strategy from 10% to 15%. The
committee has determined that these weightings
remain appropriate for 2017. We are not proposing
any other changes to the operation of our annuat
bonus or our LTIP for 2017. Deferral under the LTIP
and annual bonus will remain in line with regulatory
requirements.

Listening to members

We appreciate on-going feedback and we continue
1o make every effort to listen to the views of

our members to help shape our remuneration
structures at LV=. Our Member Panel is made up of
around 40 members. We held two Member Panel
meetings in 2016, which were both really well
attended and provided us with great feedback on
our policies and how we communicate with you.

Last year, in response to your feedback, we
simplified the structure of our Report on Directors’
Remuneration to make it easier to read and more
informative. We are continuing to look at ways

to improve how we report to you, and we would
welcome your feedback, particularly on areas
where you think we can improve.

We have always aimed to comply with the highest
standards of corporate governance and our Report
on Directors’ Remuneration has again been
prepared in line with the reporting requirements
which apply to listed companies. Since we

are not proposing any significant changes to

the remuneration policy that was approved by
members at the 2015 AGM, at the 2017 AGM we
will only have one remuneration resolution puttoa
member vote, being the advisory vote on the 2016
Report on Diregtors’ Remuneration.

| hope that as members you will support the
resolution to approve the payments made in the
year under review at this year's AGM. As always,
the committee and | are keen to receive feedback
$0 we can take on board your views when setting
future policy.

Yours sincerely

LonY
Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration at a glance

ece

LV= financial performance in 2016 LV= non-financial performance in 2016
operating profit <~ st
£2 O m frorn)1 trading op%ragonssj A 1 UK best loved Q

140%  capital cover ratio <
14.5% LVER < 83% engagement @

main with-profits
fund performance

Financial measures used for the annual bonus plan and leng-term incentive plan
The churt below shows how the actual performance of the f niincial measures under the annual banus scheme
and 2014-2016 LTIP scheme compared with the targets set.

Thre<hold: £89m Ta[,p.et: £112m Maximuem: £134m
aF e nfnax T of rax 1007 af ax
Normalised group . Payout %
operating profit'2 - of max 73%
1 fgee * ogid Mr ek B gy e gt o Hervaa o orp - Td LRl BRI RN S R N I 1Y
Threshold: 6% Maximum: 19,
25 of epax’ ACHY  af max
Group Enterprise , Payout % .
Value growth {p.a) of max 50%
Threshoeld: Obps Maximum: 60bps
SF .ol 100 - of rrax’
Relative Investment . Payout %
Performance . ey of max 45%

How much our executive directors earned in 2016 from our ongoing remuneration policy

Rt Rowne, |
LI I L] 1 o
. e [ ' Mike Rogers _

LI M L] 2 o
pritp Moore N
Richard Rowney 1,166 79% 50%
steve Treioar [
Mike Rogers 891 13% 49%
& ® John O'Roarke -
Philip Moore 747 10% 49%
T —
Steve Treloar 488 44% p Salary, pension » Annual bonus
and other benefits » Long-term incentives

John O’Roarke 131 - -
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Remuneration Policy

Our Remuneration Policy was approved by members at the AGM held on 21 May 2015, There are no proposed changes o the
Remuneration Policy and we will continue to follow the already agreed policy in 2017. The full Remuneration Policy can be found
in the LV= Annual Report 2014. The key elements of our remuneration framewaork are set out below:

Salary

Benefits

Pension

Annual Bonus

Group long-
term incentive
plan (LTIP)

Deferral

Malus /
clawback

Details of our policy on recruitment and promotions, service contracts, payments for loss of office, and non-executive directors can be

Salaries are reviewed annually (but not necessanly increased) taking account

of severat factors including indiv.duat expenence, respons.oilities. function
and sector, along with indivigual and group performance.

Include car allowance, medical insurance, income protection cover, and
group product discounts, which are available to all staff and directors on
equal terms.

Directors can elect to join a defined contribution pension scheme or
recerve a cash sum in heu of pension contrnbutions.

The annual bonus potis measured against annual group financial
objectives, accounting for 555 - of the assessment, and a balanced
scorecard of objectives coverning risk, people, strategy and customer,
accounting for the remaining 455,

LTIP pay-outs will be made in cash. One-third of any payment wll be made
after three years when the scheme vests, one-third will be deferred fora
further year and one-third wil! be deferred for two years afier vesting,

For 2017 awards will be based on performance over three years and
measure group adjusted average pre-tax protits and group relative
mvestment performance for the chief executive and finance director,
and group adjusted average pre-tax prohis for the olther directors.

No prescnibed maximum.

Up to 22% of salary.

Chief executive: maximum
payment of 150%. of salary

Other directors: maximum
payment of 1207 of salary

Maximum pay-out s capped at
two times the original award,
the value of which 1s up to:

Chief executive:
1007 of salary.

QOther board executives:
754 of salary.

At least 40%-60% of the vanable remuneration paid to executive directors is delivered in long-term pay. If this
ratic is not met through the LTIP, then a portion of the annual bonus payment for that year will be deferred for
three years and the value tied to the value of investments 1n the with-profits fund.

Deferred payments are subject to recovery provisions, at the discretion of the committee, where it has come
1o light that awards were made in error or where new information is made available that would have changed

the value of the oniginal award.

found in our full Remuneration Policy as set out in the LV= Annual Report 2014,
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines the
broad policy for remunerating the executive
directors and agrees the remuneration of each
executive director and other senior managers.
The committee reviews remuneration policy and
strategy at least once a year and all incentive and
bonus schemes are established and monitcred by
the committee.

Members of the committee are provided with
regular training and topical briefing sessions
on developments and trends in executive
remuneration, particularly as this relates to the
financial sector.

Committee membership, attendance and
advisors to the committee

During 2016 the committee members were

Cath Keers, who chaired the committee, Mark
Austen, Carcline Burton and David Neave who was
appointed to the committee in March 2016. The
chief execultive is invited to meelings except when
his own remuneration is being discussed. Other
senior employees, such as the chief risk officer,
the human resources director and the head of
reward, regularly provide advice {0 the committee
and nermally attend meetings by invitation.

Following their appointment in 2015 as external
advisor, Deloitte lip provided advice to the
committee on remuneration levels and structures,
and attended committee meetings by invitation.
The committee undertakes due diligence
periodically to ensure that our commitiee advisor
remains independent of the Society and that the
advice provided is impartial and chjective. Deloitte
llp are members of the Remuneration Consultants’
Group and, as such, voluntarily operate under

the code of conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consulting In the UK.

The total fees paid 10 Deloitte in respect of
services that materially assisted the committee

during the year were £68,310. While fee estimates

are required for bespoke pieces of work, fees are
generally charged based on time with hourly rates
in line with the level of expertise and seniority of
the adviser concerned. During the year, Deloitte
also provided the group with advice in relation to
internal audit services and payroll tax services.

Committee activities in 2016

In 2016 the committee met five times.

The matters which were addressed included:

* Review of the overall policy relating to directors’
remuneration;

» Review of all-employee remuneration policy,
structures and levels;

* Review of salary and bonus levels;

« |mplementation of the Solvency Il regulations
which came into effect on 1 January 2016,

» Determination of recruitment and termination
arrangements for joiners, promotions and
leavers;

= Preparation of the report on directors’
remuneration; and

= Other routine matters throughout the year.

All-employee remuneration

The committee also takes an active role in
overseeing remuneration arrangements for the
wider employee population. LV= has committied

to paying at least the Living Wage Foundation’s
minimurn hourly rates of pay to all employees,
with employees paid a minimum of £8.45 per hour
outside London and £9.75 in London.

LV= conducts regular salary benchmarking,

both internally and externally against the wider
market, to ensure our emptoyee pay rates

remain competitive, We also offer all employees
the opportunity to participate in an incentive
arrangement (bonus or sales incentive) as well as
the cpportunity to individually select the benefits
they receive as part of their tota! reward package.
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Remuneration for the past year (year ended 31 December 2016)
Summary table of executlve directors’ remuneration - Audited
The remuneration of individua! directors, including that of the highest paid director, was as follows:

Total from
ongoing
Salary Other LUT V] Long-term | remuneration Other

£'000 and fees benefits’ bonus? incentives’ policy remuneration Total
Richard 2016 398 15 87 430 236 1,166 - 1,166
Rowney® 2015 326 15 72 360 207 980 - 980
Mike 2016 314 10 69 €3 435 891 - 891
Rogers® 2015 538 17 118 700 597 1.970 - 1,970
Philip 2016 375 16 52 45 259 747 - 747
Moore’ 2015 368 15 51 360 306 1.100 - 1,100
Steve 2016 246 8 34 200 - 488 1,245 1,733
Treloar® 2015 - - - - - - - -
John 2016 103 5 23 - - 131 - 131
O'Roarke® 2015 300 15 66 235 - 616 10,126 10,742
Total 2016 1,436 54 265 738 930 3,423 1,245 4,668

2015 1,532 62 307 1,655 1,110 4,666 10,126 14,792
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Summary table of non-executive directors’ remuneration — Audited

£'000 Othe.r Totul fees
fees

Mark Austen 2016 184 - 184

2015 i81 - 181
Cath Keers 2016 53 17 70
Chalr of Remuneration Committee, member of With-profits Commitise 2015 52 7 69
Carofine Burton ] 2016 53 20 73
ghait of investment Coranfn:-kv:lee. meTberofAudnandRemmm}m Committees., 2015 52 17 9
James Dean 2016 53 24 77
Senior independent director, chair of Audit Committee, member of Risk Commitiee 2015 52 18 70
David Neave 2016 53 26 79
Chair of Rls!‘ v::omn::ﬂl:: r;le‘r'rrer of :;ul.clri‘le :nd Remuneration Committees 2015 52 18 20
David Barraf® 2016 43 8 51
Member of Remuneration and investment Committees 2015 - _ .
Total 2016 439 a5 534

2015 389 70 459
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Annual bonus for the year ended 31 December 2016 - Audited
The annual bonus for the year under review was based on performance against annual group financial objectives, risk metrics and a
balanced scorecard of personal objectives. Details of actual performance against targets are as foilows:

Financlal
Weighting Threshold: £89m Target: £112m Maximum: £134m Payout %
Normatised group of bonus pot
55% 108 95%

operating profit

The Society operates a performance range for profit targets (see chart above) which is considered to be stretching at all levels.
Threshold is the level of performance that must be achieved to release 70% of the bonus pot. Target is the leve! of performance that
must be achieved to release 100% ¢f the bonus pot. Maximum is the level of performance that must be achieved to release 130% of
the bonus pot.

The Remuneration Committee adjusts reported gperating profit when measuring actuaf performance against target Lo temave or add-
back certain one-off items. The review in 2016 increased operating profit from trading businesses, including the impact of the Ogden
rate change, of £20 million to the normalised group operating profit shown above of £108 million.

Normalised operating profit of £108 million is calculated as follows:

Operating profit from D g S Annuity
wading operations L reinsurance’  Other
20m £70m £14m £4m
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Individual and stratepgic

The table below gives a broad indicator of how each executive director performed against their individual and strategic objectives along with a
description of those objectives. The total bonus awarded to each director and the percentage deferred is set out in the table overleaf:

- Individual and strategic objectives (45% weighting) Indication of performance

Objectives as chief executive:

Achieve a smooth transition to chief executive.

Progress against key strategic priorities,

Deliver the financial plan and targets.

Solvency Ilimplementation,

Operate within the Society’s risk appetite.

Deliver exceptional customer satisfaction scores - to be Britain's

Richard Rowney best loved insurer. Above target

= Continue to deliver leading employee engagement scores.

Objectives as managing director of life and pensions:
¢ Growth of the life and retirement business.

Build a distinctive and relevant brand.

Deliver market-leading digital solutions.

Operate within the Society's risk appetite.

Objectives as chief executive:

Progress against key strategic priorities.

Deliver the financial plan and targets.

Solvency Il implementation.

Operate within the Society’s risk appetite. Below target
Ensure exceplional customer satisfaction scores,

Continue to deliver leading employee engagement scores.

Succession planning and ensuring @ smooth handover of chief

executive responstbilities.

Mike Rogers

. * ¥ & 9 9 B

Objectives as group finance director:

+ Financlal operational performance.
Sotvency Il implemeniation.

Operate within the Sociely's risk appetite.
Develop the investment strategy.

Deliver the financial plan and targets.

Philip Moore Below target

Objectives as managing director of general insurance:
+ Growth of the general insurance business,

Build a distinctive and relevant brand.

Deliver market-leading digital solutions.

Operate within the Society’s risk appetite.

Steve Treloar Target
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Risk is taken into account when appraising all performance measures and the committee may reduce or cancel any bonus payment
if it considers that risk exceeded acceptable levels. In addition, no bonus payments will be made unless the group achieves a pre-
determined minimum level of profits.

The Remuneration Committee looks at the performance of the business in the round to understand any internal and exlernal factors
that have impacted performance and the broad trajectory of the business and market conditions, for example, before determining the

appropriate level of bonus 1o be released.

Payable in respect

Payout| Total actualbonus| Total actual bonus of 2016
% of maximum) (£'000s) {% of salary) (% of salary) (% of salary)
Richard Rowney? 79% 430 107% 92% 15%
Mike Rogers? 13% 11¢° 20% 12% 8%
Philip Moore 10% 45 12% 7% 5%
Steve Treloar 44% 200 53% 53% -
1 mufeme vy mempata b pedfd ok gn ar tumb o 1oy v dae Y E A rAn 1w A aprier on b fe o Apean crm et 2 201 w— 20 .
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Any variable pay amount deferred will be paid in equal parts over the following three years. During the deferral period, the value of
deferred amounts will be tied to the value of members’ invested funds, thereby creating a link 1o ongoing performance.

Group LTIP payments made in the year (2014 - 2016 scheme) -~ Audited

The group LTIP scheme which started en 1 January 2014 is based on performance to 31 December 2016. For the 2014-2016
scheme, the pay-out is based on both the growth in Enterprise Value {(75% of award for Mike Rogers and Philip Moore, and 100%
for Richard Rowney since he was managing director of life and pensions when this award was made} and the Relative Investment
Performance {25% of award for Mike Rogers and Philip Moore}. The performance condition and actual performance for the award
vested is as follows:

Mike Rogers and Philip Moore

Deferred

Weighting Threshold: 6% Maximum: 19% Vesting
Group Enterprise
Value growth (p.a.} 5% 10% 100%
Relative
Investment Weighting  Threshold: Obps Maximum: 60bps Vesting
Performance (p.a.
relative to benchmark) 25% 90%

97.5%

" Total vesting percentage (Mlke Rogers and Philip Moore)

Richard Rowney

{Maximum; 200%)

Weighting
Group Enterprise

Value growth (p.a.) 100%

Threshold: 6%

10%

: Total vesting percentage (Richard Rowney)

The vested awards are subject to a ¢law-back provision.

Maximum: 19% Vesting

100%

100%
{Maximum: 200%)
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Group LTIP awards made In the year (2016 — 2018 scheme) — Audited

vest al threshold performance % of face value
Growth in of award that Vesting
group adjusted Relative would vest | determined by
Face value | Basis of award average pre- Investment at maximum performance
Type of award of award (£'000) tax profit Performance pesformance over

Richard Rowney Cash 75% of salary 246 50% 75% 200% 3yearsto
Mike Rogers Cash  100% of salary 541 50% 75% 200% 5 D;;:f;‘lber
Philip Moore Cash  75%of salary 277 50% 75% 200%

Steve Treloar Cash  75%of salary 285 50% n/a 200%

Group LTIP - Performance of vested schemes

- Enterprise Value growth ’ Relative Investment Performance

Award at Award at

threshold Cumulative threshald Cumulative
(% of base Maximum | performance {%ol base Maximum | performance
LTIP Scheme award) { Maximum award % * ¥ Threshold award) | Maximum award % ‘
2014-2016 260
19 200 7 0 bps
scheme 6% 50% % % 10% Obps 5% bps 200% 8bp

For scheme participants measured on investment perfermance 25% of their award is based on Relative Investment Performance for
all scheme years,
1 Ae 0 AR f et YU Foeepr o wat w2 2 (TR G 0 des
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Group LTIP summary of awards and amounts vested during 2016 - Audited

Additional/
{reduced) To be paid Unvested
Unvested value on inrespect awards
awards at Awards vesting of of 2014- at 31
1 January made 2014-2016 2016 Of which December
Award 2016 in the year scheme scheme deferred 20167
Richard 2014-2016 236 - - 236 157 -
Rowney 2015-2017 240 - - - - 240
2016-2018 - 246 - - - 246
Mike Rogers 2014-2016 520 - (13} 507 338 -
20152017 530 - - - - 530
2016-2018 - 541 - - - 541
Philip Moore 2014-2016 266 - (7} 259 173 -
2015-2017 27 - - - - 271
. 2016-2018 - 277 - - - 277
Steve
Traloar 2016-2018 - 285 - - - 285

1 UnvesIsg awnrds are Shiwm At the hate swaed level Unvested Awards a? 1 1A ary 2016 are 10 respart F awerds grantad iy 2014 and 2015,
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Penslons - Audited

Since the closure of the defined benefit (DB} section of our pension scheme to future accrual in 2013, executive directors have had
the choice of receiving contributions into the defined contribution (DC) section of cur pension scheme or being paid an equivalent cash
allowance. Steve Treloar joined the DC section of our pension scheme from the date of his appointiment on 5 May 2016. All other
executive directors received cash payments in lieu of pension contributions,
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Additional information on 2016 remuneration

Percentage change in remuneration levels

The table below shows the movement in the salary, benefils and annual bonus for the group chief executive between the current
and previous financial year compared to that of the total bil! for the same elemenis for all employees. The table below reflects the
transition from Mike Rogers Lo Richard Rowney as chief executive during 2016, Change in remuneration for the chief executive is
calculated as the amounts reported in the Summary table of executive directors' remuneration for Richard Rowney and Mike Rogers
for the relevant months of performing the role of chief executive in 2016 compared with the amounts reported for Mike Rogers in
2015. Richard Rowney was newly appointed o chief executive and therefore his remuneration was deliberately set to reflect this.

% change in remuneration

Chief executive (3.75% D0.0%% (45)%

%5 change based on a statc
population exclud.ng the 1.7% 4.2% (31)%
chief executive

Ratio of chief executive pay to average employee FTE salary 17:1, (2015 18:1)
Relative importance of the spend on pay

The table below shows the group’s actual spend on pay (for all employees) relative to the mutual bonus, which represents a significant,
discretionary disbursement of profit io members.

W [T Y ST RSP 1]
2016 2015
£im £m change
Staft costs 270
Mutuat bonus 17 27 (374
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Chief executive's remuneration over eight financlal years

The total remuneration figures for the chief executive during each of the last eight financial years are
shown in the table below. The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year's
performance and LTIP awards based on three year performance periods ending in the retevant year. For
2016, total remuneration reflects the amounts received by Richard Rowney and Mike Rogers for the
periods each director performed the role of chief executive.

The annual bonus pay-out and LTIP vesting tevel as a percentage of the maximum opportunity are also
shown for each of these years.

L)) 1| ﬂliuaw (TR ‘IIFH 'llﬂa mih: PO 16 -
‘_.__.._.._._J

Total remuneration (£°000) 1,247 2177 2,622 2,364 1,666 1,870 891 610
Bonus ¥ of maximum awarded 3 7% 86% 95% 100% 745, 804 86% 13% T9%
LTIP % of maximwum vesting % 54 0% 100% 100% 0% 254 59 49%, 50%
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Payments upon recruitment and promotion of directors

Richard Rowney was promoted to the position of chief executive in July 2016. Richard Rowney's on-going
remuneration package as chief executive was set in line with our existing remuneration policy. as approved
by members at the 2015 AGM. Richard was appointed on a salary of £490.000 being set below market
levels, with the intention that this would be increased as Richard grew inlo the role of chief executive

and based on his performance. Richard Rowney's bonus maximum and LTIP award level were setin line
with our remuneration poficy at 150% of salary and 100% of salary (with awards capped at two times the
original award) respectively. As Richard was an internal hire, there were no buy-outs associated with his
promotion.

Steve Treloar was appointed as the managing director of general insurance to replace John O'Roarke in
May 2016. Upon appointment, Steve's salary was set at £380,000. Steve's bonus maximum and LTIP
award level were set in line with our remuneration policy at 120% of salary on a pro-rata basis since
joining and 75% of salary {with awards capped at two times the original award) respectively. Steve also
participated in a number of incentive arrangements at his previous employer which the committee agreed
to buy-out as part of his offer to join the Society. Deloitte as our advisors reviewed the buy-out details,

A sum of £187.333 was in respect of an annual bonus due to be forfeited, £480,803 was in respect

of deferred annuat bonus share awards that were due to be forfeited, and £577.064 was in respect

of performance shares that were due 10 be forfeited. For the annual bonus and performance shares,
performance was taken into account when determining their value at the time of the buy-out. The awards
are not subject to further performance conditions and will pay-out at the same time as the original awards
would have done, Buy-oul awards are subject to clawback provisions,

The table below represents the phasing of these payments.

Deferred annual ] Deferred LTIP

May 2016 £187,333 £172,534 £222,229 £582.096
March 2017 - £131,281 £265,663 £396,944
March 2018 - £84,265 189,172 £173,437
March 2019 - £92.723 - £92,723
Total £187.333 £480.803 £577,064 £1,245,200

Payments 1o past directors
No payments were made 10 past executive directors during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Payments for contractual commitments on leaving office’

Mike Rogers stepped down from the board on 28 luly 2016 and remained employed by the Society until
31 December 2016. Mike continued to receive salary, beneiils and pension in respect of the period up to
and including 31 December 2016 in the usual way (to a total value of £294k). Thereafter, Mike received
payments in ling with his contractual entitiements in lieu of remuneration that included a payment in lieu
of notice {PILON) which was made up of salary, car allowance, and cash in liev of pension for 12 months,
as follows:

Base Pay £551,400
Car Allowance £10,200

Cashn lieu of pension (22% of base) £121,308
Total £682,908

These sums were subject to the usual deductions for tax and national insurance.

As Mike Rogers was employed by the Society until 31 December 2016 he was eligible to be considered for
a bonus relating to the whole 2016 performance year. His performance was assessed by the chairman in
the usual way with payment agreed by the Remuneration Committee in earty 2017. The 2016 bonus details
in relation to the full year are set out on pages 100 and 101, with the bonus paid for the period when

Mike was a director {1 January to 28 July 2016) being £63k and the bonus paid for the period when Mike
was employed by the Society {from 29 July to 31 December 2016) but was not on the board being £47k.
Payment due was made at the same time as the general employee population, in March 2017, and was
subject to deferral.

Under our remuneration policy, Mike Rogers was required to defer at least 40% of his variable
remuneration {or 60% if the amount of variable remuneration received in the year is greater than
£500,000). Subject to the amount of bonus awarded in March 2017 in respect of the 2016 performance
year, the relevant proportion of his bonus was deferred and will be paid in 1/3rd instalments over a further
three years (with payments due in March 2018, 2019 and 2020). Sums in deferral will be adjusted based
on the performance of the LVQ1 fund prior to payment. Mike Rogers was not eligible to participate in the
2017 annual bonus scheme,

Mike Rogers retained eligibility to participate in the long-term incentive schemes {o which he had already
been invited to participate. All awards were pro-rated until his final date in employment, 31 December
2016. Any payments shail be subject to the applicable scheme multiplier, i.e. final performance of the
scheme, and will be made according to the original schedule. The schemes, eligibility and payment
schedules are as follows:

1st payment due

Scheme Award pro-rating | (1/3 of final f;:i%ﬁg:;i{g;ﬁ:; s
outturn}

2014-16 Full eligibility Apr-17 April 2018, April 2019

201517 2/3 eligibihty Apr-18 April 2019, Apnil 2010

2016-18 1/3 eliginlity Apri9 April 2020, Apnl 2021

The 2014-16 LTIP had a performance pertod ending on 31 December 2016, with details of the
performance and vesting level under this scheme set out on pages 101 and 102. The value of the award
that related to the period when Mike was a director (1 January 2014 to 28 July 2016} was £4 35k and the
LTIP paid for the period when Mike was employed by the Society (from 29 July to 31 December 2016) but
was not on the board was £72k. All amounts are subject to deferral in line with the remuneration policy.

Mike Rogers will not be invited to participate in the LTIP scheme for 2017-19,

All termination payments have been made within the existing remuneration policy and have been pro-rated
for time, remain subject to performance and will be subject to the same time horizons.

John O"Roarke stepped down from the board on 5 May 2016 and remained emp!oyed by the Society until
31 December 2016, a period for which he was available for any handover requirements. John continued to
receive salary, benefits and pensionin respect of the period up to and including 31 December 2016 in the
usual way (to a total value of £252k). John was not eligible to receive a bonus for the 2016 year and did not
participate in any LTIP schemes.

Directors’ loans
As at 31 December 2016 there were no loans outstanding ta directors.
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Results of members’ votes on remuneration resolutions at 2016 AGM
At the Society’s AGM in May 2016 the members approved the 2015 Remuneration Report; the remuneration policy was approved at

the AGM in May 2015.

2015 Directors’
Remuneration Report

Directors’
Remuneration Policy

©4% 64

»  Infavour
P Against

2015 Directomn’ Polcy on Dirsciors’

Remunerstion Report Remunaeration

Votes cast in favour 41,773 43,766
Votes cast against 2,487 2,826
Abstentions 1,948 2,732
$poilt papers i2 3
Total voles cast 46,220 49,327

Remuneration decisions taken in respect of the coming year (year ending 31 December 2017)

Executive director base salary

In 2017 our executive directors have chosen to waive any pay increases that may have been awarded to them by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the challenging market conditions faced in 2016. Current base salary levels and those which wil! apply from
1 April 2017 are as follows:

2017 2016 Percentage
Richard Rowney! £490,000 £490.000 0%
Philip Moore £376,800 £376.800 0%
Steve Treloar? £380,000 £380,000 0%
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Performance targets to be applied for the annual bonus and group LTIP {2017-2019 Scheme) In 2017

For 2017, the annual bonus will continué to be based on a balanced scorecard of group financial and non-financial objectives. The
changes made for the 2016 performance year, which were confirmed in the 2015 Directors Remuneration Report, will be applied for
2017. As such the financial objective weighting is 55%, with the non-financial measures accounting for the remaining 45%. In 2016
we increased the weighting on our strategic non-financial measure to 15%, to reflect our focus on long-term member interests, and
introduced a measure for diversity and inctusion, reflecting our commitment to recognising how a diverse workforce can strengthen
LV="g business, both now and in the future.

The weightings of our 2017 scorecard are shown below:

Financial Normalised group operating profit, subject to achieving capital and cash hurdies 55%
Strategy and change Progress made towards delivery of five-year strategic objectives 15%
Customer and member Brand and customer satisfaction metrics, subject to discretion if member bonus not in 10%
hine with policy
. . Customer outcomes in respect of conduct and eperational nsk controls and operating
Risk and compliance within the group’s risk appetite metncs 10%
People High employee engagement versus high performing organisations and diversity and 10%

meclysion mettics.
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The LTIP awards to be granted in 2017 will be subject to a performance condition relating to growth in group adjusted average pre-
tax profits and, for the chief executive and group finance director, a proportion of the awards will be linked to the group's Retative
Investment Performance.

Performance condition Weighting

Growth in group adjusted average pre-tax profits 75% for chief exgcutl_ve and group finance director and 100%
for other executive directors

Group Relative Investment Perfermance 25% for chief executive and group finance director only

The group LTIP scheme will only pay out f the growth within group pre-tax profit (adjusted for exceptional items and excluding the
effects of short-term fluctuations in investment performance of the with-profits fund) over the scheme period exceeds a threshold
target growth rate.

Group Relative Investment Performance relates to the annualised performance return of the with-profits fund. The scheme will only pay
out for this element if the performance return is greater than benchmark.

Non-executive directors’ fees .

Fees for the non-executive directors are determined by the board, based on the responsibility and time committed to the group’s
affairs and appropriate market comparisons. Individual non-executive directors do not take part in discussions regarding their own
fees. Fees are reviewed annually and changes are implemented from 1 June each year.

A summary of current fees is as follows:

w.ef. 1 june 2016

Chairman £185,500
Non-executive director base fee £53,000
Additional fees:

Senior independent director £6,500
Investment Committee chair £8,700
Other committees chair (including of subsidiary boards}) £13,000
Committee membership (various) £3,650-£5,500
Member of LV= subsidiaries boards £5,500

Fees effective from 1 June 2017 will be approved in May 2017.

The directors approved the Directors’ Report on Remuneration on 11 April 2017.

ey
Cath Keers

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Glossary

AtoZ
ABI: Associalion of British Insurers.

Asset shares: Asset shares reflect

the amount of money paid into
with-profits policies by way of premiums
and investment returns, less the costs
of agministering those policies.

BEL: Best Estimate Liability - The
expected cost of future policyholder
claims and expenses for existing
business. This is net of expected future
income from these policies such as
premiums and charges. Calculations
are on a best estimate basis, and are
discounted using a regulatory risk free
discount rate.

BIS: Department for Business Innovation
and Skills,

Capital resources: The amount of
capital that we have to run our business.

Columbla Threadneedle Investments:
A leading international investment
manager with a strong track record of
outperformance across assel classes.

Enhanced annuity: An enhanced annuity
is essentially a conventional annuity
which provides a higher level of ingome to
the purchaser. To qualify for an enhanced
annuity, the purchaser's state of health
or medical history must be such that their
life expectancy is lower.

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA):

A regulatory body formed as one of the
successors to the Financial Services
Authority (FSA). it focuses on the
regulation of conduct by both retail
and wholesale financial services firms.

FTSE: FTSE is an independent company
that provides indices lo measure how
stockmarkets and other financial markets
perform. In the UK, the FTSE 100 index

is widely used by the media to report on
the valuation of the largest 100 quoted
companies on the UK Stock Exchange.

GWP: Gross written premiums.

IFRS: Internationa) Financial Reporting
Standards are used to ensure a company’s
reported accounts are prepared to
common standards across the werld.

ILAG: Investment and Life
Assurance Group.

Industrial branch (1B): Part of our heritage
business and typically contains

small premium whole of life and
endowment policies.

Loss Portfolio Transfer (LPT): In a loss
portfolio transfer a reinsurer assumes

and accepts an insurer’s existing open
and future claims liabilities through the

transfer of the insurer’s loss reserves.
LVFS: Liverpool Vicioria Friendly Society.

Mutual: A business that is owned by its
members rather than by shareholders.

Mutual bonus: A discretionary
enhancement to asset shares to share
the results of the group's performance.

OEICs: Open-ended investment
companies are investment funds

similar to investment trusts, They are
open-ended hecause they can take money
from new investors at any time. Equally
they can pay back investors whenever the
investor choases. OEICs often adopt an
umbrella structure where the Investor can
get access through the umbrella fund to
a number of syb-funds which invest with
different objectives.

Crdinary branch {OB): Part of our heritage
business and typically consists of
traditional with-profits endowments, whole
of life policies, annuities and pensions.

Penslon annuity: An annuity uses the
proceeds of a pension fund o provide
an income for a fixed-term or the rest
of your life.

Periodic payment orders (PPOs);

An annuity style award paid to claimants
instead of a lump sum, where indexed
payments can be varied to meet likety
future changes in gircumstance.

This transfers martatity and investment
risk from the claimant to the insurer.

PHI: Permanent Health Insurance is

an insurance policy paying benefits to
policyholders who are incapacitated and
hence unable to work due to iliness or
accident,

Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA):
A regulatory body formed as one of the
successors to the Financial Services
Authority (FSA). Itis responsible for the
prudential regulation and supervision
of financial services firms.

Protection: A policy providing a cash
sum on the death or critical iliness
of the life assured.

PVIF: Present value of acquired in-force
business occurs when a life insurance
company makes an acquisition, Part of
the purchase price represents the value
of the insurance contracts in the target
company. This is, in effect, the present
value of the policies acquired.

Quota Share (QS): A type of pro rata
reinsurance contract in which the insurer
and reinsurer share premiums and losses
according to a fixed percentage.

RM: Risk Margin - The opportunity cost
of holding reguiatery capitaf for existing
business. Calculations assume that a
strategy of minimising investment risk is
followed.

RNPFN: Royal National Pension Fund
For Nurses.

Risk appetite: The amount of risk that
a business is prepared to accept or keep
when carrying out its everyday activities.

SCR: Solvency Capital Requirement = The
actual regulatory capital held, allowing

for current investment strategy and

risk profile. The capital held is based

on our ability to survive a 1 in 200 year
siress event, allowing for the benefits of
diversification.

Self Invested Personal Pension (SIPP):
Unlike normal personal pension plans,
where the pension company limits your
choice of investments 1o those that it
manages, SIPPs allow investors the
opportunity 1o make their own
investment decisions.

SME: Small and Medium Enterprises —
within the commerciat line of the
general insurance business.

Solvency II: An EU-wide project that

sets out to provide a comprehensive new
framework for insurance supervision

and regulation. This aims to strengthen
protection for policyholders by ensuring
that companies allocate enough capital to
cover all the risks in their business.

Transition: Transitional Measures on
Technical Provision (TMTP),

UK Corporate Govetnance Code:

The Code sets out standards of good
practice for isted companies. {t covers,
amongst other things, the board
composition and its accountability

and relations with business owners.

Unailocated divisible surplus (UDS):
The amounts that have yet to be formally
declared as bonuses for participating
policyholders together with the free
assets of the group.

UWP: Unitised with-profits.

With-profits fund: An investment fund
where we combine all of our with-profits
investors’ money and manage it on their
behatf. The fund normally invests in

UK and overseas shares, fixed interest
securities including Government stacks
and bonds, property. cash, and our own
business activities. We regularly monitor
where we invest the fund to take account
of future liabilities,
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LvV= Use of non-GAAP* measures

Ndn-‘GhAP.measuro

Profit
before tax

Operating proftt

Pensions business
IFRS adjustment

STIiF: Short term
investment
fluctuations

Centrally managed
costs

Investment
performance %

Operational liquidity

General insurance

Loss ratio

Expense ratio

Combined ratio

Pre-tax retum on
capital

Life

PVNBP: Present
value of new
business premlums

Non-GAAP New
business premlums

New business
contribution

Investment In new
propositions

New business

Internal rate of return

New business
Payback period

LY N LR )

‘Whyws use a non-‘GAAPmeuﬁre

Because LV= i1s a mutual. any remaining profit s transferred to the Unallocated divisible surplus, leaving

a final balance for profit each year of £nil. This would mean that if we apphed the strict GAAP definition

our profit before tax would simply be equal and opposite to our tax charge. We beheve that this would be a
confusing and meaningless figure for users of our Annual Report and we therefore provide an alternative
measure for preofit before 1ax which readers would recognise and which would allow meanngful comparnsons
with the profit before tax disclosed by other companies.

Qur operating profit measure is the key performeance measure for profitability for the LV= group, life and
general insurance businesses and executive remuneration in these areas is linked to this metric, This
measure provides useful information regarding the financial performance of the group as il represents
management’s view of the performance of the ongoing business without distortion from temporary volatility.

For the group this measure represents the longer-term return from all its businesses and tha cost of ongoing

central overheads such as support functions. For the general insurance business this measure represents
the return from insurance activities, i.e. underwriting profit and investment returns.

In order to provide comparable reporting across its pension products LV= reports self-invested pension plan
operating profit on a value-add basis.

Short-lerm investment fluctuations are presented outside of Operating Profit in order to exclude the Impact
of temporary volatility.

Lv=reports some of Its costs below operating profit because they are nol assoctated with running the
trading business of the group. These costs tend to be one-off costs and are often connected 1o strategic
inttiatives of the group.

Provides s measure of the performance of the investment strategy. The performance of the with-profits fund
drives the retums to our members, Within general Insurance, this measure aflows managemant to monitor
the investment performance and make changes Lo lhe stretegy as necessary.

Certain hguid assels reported in the Statement of Financial Position are required to match reserves and
therefore do not provide a true measure of the available liquidity of the group i.e, the ‘free’ funds available to
meet s obligations as they fall due,

"The foss ratio Is the ratlo of incurred losses to Net sarmned premiums. The 1058 ratio anablas management

to monitor genaral insurance product parformance by comparing the fevel of samesd premiums with incurred
claims.

The expense ratio is the ratio of the expenses associated with acquiring, underwriting and servicing
contracts to Net earned premiums. The expense ratio provides a measure of cost efficiency of the general
insurance business.

“The combinad ratio Is tha ratio of incurred (osses and expanses to Net aamed premiurma. The combined

ratio provides s barometer for underwriting profit,

Pre-tax return on capital provides a measure of profitability and how efficiently capital is employed by the
general insurance business to generate profits that will be remitted to the Society.

"PVYNBP provides a massure of the velua of new business written in the year thet is more useful than [FRS

naw businaza pramiums as it inciudes the present value of the regular pramiums we expect to racalve gver
the term of contracts sold in the year.

New business premiums are adjusted to reflect actual product sales achieved in the year. This includes
sales of Seli-invested personal pension products which are excluded from IFRS sales as these are
accounted for as an Investment contract liability. Where customers take a tax free lump sum at the
inception of an annuity contract, this value is deducted from the value of annuity sales; within IFRS this is
shown gross within Net benefits and claims.

The contribution 1o operating profit as a resuft of new business written on 8 PYNBP bagis provides a
messure of profit generated by management actlons during the year, rather than from In-force business.

investment in new propositions is the project costs invested in developing new products. These costs are
excluded from New business contribution as they do not relate to the overall profitability of policies written
during the year,

The nternal rate of return provides a measure of the return expecled to be generated on capital invested to
write new business during the year.

Payback period allows management to understand the period of capital investment associated with new
business written during the year.
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Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion .

In our opinion, Liverpoo! Victoria Friendly Society Limited's

Group financial statements and Society financial statements

{the “financial statemenis™):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Society’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's
and the Society's result and cash flows for the year then
ended;

» have heen properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as adopted by the
European Union; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Friendly Societies Act 1992,

Our audit approach

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report.

comprise:

« the Group and Society Statements of Financial Position as at
31 December 2016;

+ the Group and Society Statements of Comprehensive income
for the year then ended,

» the Group and Society Statements of Cash Flows for the year
then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the financial statements is IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, and applicable law,

Overall 1o
materiality ’

veralt Group materiality: £30 mullion which represents 3% of the Group’s Unallocated Divisible Surplus (‘UDS'). ]

§

—
Audit .
scope

—

The Group consists of 26 aclive statutory entities, but primarily operates through three main trading entities {the
Society, Liverpool Victona Insurance Company Limited and Highway Insurance Company Limited) at 11 locations
b across the UK, In our view, all three main trading entities required full scope audits of their complete financial
mformation, due to their size and risk characteristics.
« |n addition to the Group's head offices in Bournemouth, we visited four other locations. Our testing at those other
locations primarily focussed on the systems and controls in place over the recording and processing of new
and renewal business and ciaims. The testing of controls over claims processing was relevant to our focus on
the valuation of general insurance claims habihties, particularly in relation to the completeness and accuracy of
recorded claims and the consistency of case estimates.
« Taken together, the procedures we performed over the three main trading entities and the Group consolidation
entrics accounted for atl of the Unallocated Divisible Surplus (‘UDS') and all of the Group’s net earned premiums
and loss before tax, mutual bonus and transfer to the UDS.

Areas of B |T
focus .

The vatuation of tong-term insurance contract liabiiies (£9.4bn (2015: £7.8bn)).

The valuation of general insurance contract liabiities (£1.6bn (2015: £1.4bn)).

+ The accounting and related disclosures of the acquisition of Teachers Provident Society Limited (“Teachers™).
+ The vatuation of difficult to vaiue investments inctuded in financiat assets held at fair value through income.

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) {(“I1SAs (UK & Ireland)”).

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing
the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.
In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our
audits we also addressed the risk of management override

of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was
evigence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud.

The risks of materia! misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and
effort, are identified as “areas of focus” in the table on page
114. We have also set out how we tailored our audit to address
these specific areas in order to provide an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make
on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.
This is not a complete list of al! risks identified by our audit.
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How our audi addressed the erea of focus <

The vatuation of long-term insurance Our work o sddress the valuation of the long-lerm insurance contract L.ab lities
contract liabilities was supported by our in-house Nife actuanal specialists, and ncluded the
{£9.4bn (2015: £7.8bn)) follow.ng protedures:

Refer to notes 19 and 24 for further information *+ We tested the underly.ng compzny data, including key reconci ations, and this
The Group ! nancial statements include lesting was performed w th no matenal exceptions.

| bl ues for the estmated cost of setiling «  We compared the methodology, models and assumptions used ags nst
henefits and claims associated w.th iife recogmsed cctuanal practices and by apply.ng our :ndustry knowledge and
products. expenence, and found them to be reasonable,

s  We performed an independent annual benchmarking survey which allowed
us {o further challenge the assumption seting process by companng certan
assumptions used relative to the Group's Industry peers.

We focussed on this area because of the
sign.ficance of these umounts in denv ng the
Group's resgit, and because of the use of &

suite of economic and demograph:c dista and Add.tional test ng on the speaific assumplions 15 set out below.

assumptions which are often highly subjective.

In particular, we focussed on:

»

The expense assumplions used to estimate
the future cash fows in respect of the
longderm msurance contracls — in particuler
the assumed rate of growth of expenses,
and ther alloci:hion between the nsurence
entities, product types and whether they
are incurred 10 mamtaining existing policies
or processing new business. The Sociuly
performed a review of the methodology

in 2016 which reflected an update to
methodology and the development of the
business: and

The longewvity assumplion (1.e, life expeclancy
of pol:cyholders) used to estmate the
Group’s long-term labilty for enhanced
annuity contracts {1.e. where the arnuitants
have existing medical conditions or

are smokers!.

Testing on specific assumptions

Expense gliocatlons

We tested the revised 2016 methodology by performing the following

procedures;

« We tested the completeness of relevant expenses used in the calculation
by agreemng them to the underlying financial records, and tested that inforce
oolicy numbers agreed to the Group's pol.cy admuustrahion systems:,

*  We assessed the reasonibleness of significant judgments made in setung
the assumptions, ncluding the sphit between acqu.sition {new bus.ness) and
mantenance costs and the sllocation of costs to different products based
on the current yeurs’ expenence znd considerastion of factors which could
Increase costs in the future.

s We performed independent calculations to quanufy the impact of differences
between management's assumplions and those wh'ch we would have
selected ourselves and determined that we were able Lo accept the valuation
on the grounds of mateni:hty.

*«  We tested whether expenses had been appropnately allocated to per
policy data.

Expense inflation

We assessed the appropriateness of the expense inflalion assumplions used
by manapgement to derve unit costs, and in particular whether the use of a
lower infiation assumplion in respect of the Protection and Retirement Soiulions
businesses than that used in the respect of the Hentage business, which is
closed to new business and in run-off, was justiied, based on level of growth
expected in the respective businesses.

We assessed whether the forecast growth was reasonzble by considenng

the accuracy of management’s forecasting in the past and whether expected
volume increases appropnatety refiected developments in the market, such as
the ongomg annuity reforms.

Longevity assumptions

We considered the apprepriateness and accuracy of the data used by
management to model fongevity for the Society’s enhanced annuity portfolio. in
particular, we considered the extent to which the assumptions used, based on
this data, were consistent with other sources of information, such as medical
studies and industry-wide mortal ity investigations.

Management use industry dsta to model lonfevity for the Society’s enhanced
annuity contracts and continue to use the CMt 2013 projection model,

Our market benchmarking survey ind:cates that this 1s an outlier, as other
benchmarking respondents zre using more recent projections. The Society is in
the process of assessing the impact of the recently 1ssuved CMI 2016 projection
model on its habulities, and expect to update longewity assumptions once this
assessment 1 concluded.

Based on the work performed we found that the assumptions used were supported
by the evidence we obtained.
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The valuation of general insurance
claims habilities (£1.6bn

(2015: £1.4bn;}}

Refor to note 12 for further Information

Tire Group frene ol stete nonts “nclude

let Lt s for tre estimeted cost of scttlng
gerers! insurenge chims, These re reluded

ctlahltes,

We focused or this grca cue to tne s srrfcance
of these Lobobes o the Growp's oolenne sheoet
a1 Bocauss of the imharent suectivity of

ther valuation

Irt particular, woe fanuassec o

e The zccuracy of clams duta Lscd 10 estmate
the cloms eh s, o partoulen the
cernleteness cf recorded ¢lzims and ine
conerstency in SetiSs case o8l metes

e Writher ony cRanges to the undody rg res
prodle of the polcies wotten {for enample,
the carcentictinn of yource’ drvers ar
chzr-es to pest sote m k) gre approprstey
eloeted ©the ealostatons of clams
I'et! tes; and

»  The metheds and assumptions used in
estmatrg the costs of elerrs for generat
irsurance nreduils {mamny moter policies),
In part cular fer those c.ams such as
personal ir,cny, which can taae & long tme
to settle and where the amoun!s ooroemned
can he large.

e« 0On 27 Februrry 2027 the M wstry of Justice
arrounced a reducten ir the diecount rate
to e appled M coloulolrg persoral injury
temege ewerds (“Ozden rate”) from 2.5,
10 rirus 0.75 0. The grrecters calculated
the :rrpact of the charze by identfyng
those open persg. 2l irpury clieims vith @
fullre loss elemrert and computing the
required ad ustment for o sample of the
irgest of theso cla'ms, The impaet was
then extrapoletea ecross tre rema’nirg oper
persenal injary elaims vwith fature toss ot
the yearend. This resulted in an increase n
bodiy irury reserves hald at 31 Decembaor
2016 of £239 muil:on {nct) 5 sel out in
rote 4. Given the signif.cant impact of the
charge @nd tining of the annourcement this
was a particular area of fecus for our audit.

Cur nrra bz cdoices the valuatien of the gencral nsurence s Ms [ELLes,
Vel Swonurted by o rinhouse nen e astsenat spocialists, ard insluded thy

foliovwy procedues:

We tlested the completeness, concistercy end aceuracy of ela nes data.

We perfuimed (ndependent testng over 587 of claums habiittes and mothedology
end assunplens reven s oLer o fdrther 1 7.0, Furthermore v performad ey
na.cator chechs 1o idertify cny aromal.es over the remainns hilance.

Sproell e crens of teoting

Completeness of recorded claims and consistency of cose estimates

We tested the systens and eontrols in place aver the reecgrdire grt process N
of cla'ms. In crder to assess the completeness of recereed claims, we
abzerved whether theve was ary evidense of claims bemg recosdod on any
med.um other tnan gaeetly onto the claims systems, ane tested the operotior
¢f the controls quer the handling of complamtis.

We tested the effectveness of the guahlity assurance precosses over the
vworg of the cluins Purdicrs .o ordes to deterrine wietter claims vore bemrsg
assossed on a consistert besis and examired & semple of cams to obtan
ev.derce that they weore based on the ~ost recert alaims rformatior,

Consistency of risk exposure

We essessen moncgemert’s assertion that there had boen no sarteonnt
chantes i ire nsi prafiie tor matenal ngs af hus.ness using guanticive,
ewdertzl anclys's and vee were provided w.tr data by acoident year for wey
exposure categores such as age ard gender.

Methodology and assumptions
We carred out @ sabstent.al emouant of gur vork on the 2'5 s hebites &4 30
Septemper 2016, rolirg forward cur worh to the year end.

We evaluated the methodology and assumptons used by managewent to
estimate tite eost »’art cant components of the claims tabiities as at 30
September 2016, We also took into acoourt ary changes to the types of r b8
underwtien by the husiness, wivch could increase the leve! of uncertanty ana
judgernert :r the estinrles.

We considered the rar-off of prior year liatihtes, the sensitwity of the Labl tes
to aternatve methods and assumptions and, where relevant, :ndustry
benchmarking. Where we felt it was appropriate, v.e performed indepentent
calculators to guantify the impact of differences betweer management’s
acluaral oralysis or assumptions and those which we would nave conducied
or scilected ourseives based on our understanding of markat trends ard the
pertculer circumstances of the Group.

We also examined trends in ratios, including those between the inital case
estimates end the final costs of setilement,

For the Ozden rate change we understood and tested itow the group est'meated

the impact of the charge on the.r booked reserves by:

« Testing a sample of indiv.deal open personal injury ela'ms to test wicther the
impatt of the discoun! rate change had been applied correctly;

=  Evgiguing the method used by the group to identify all afected persensl
mpury glams aad quient fy the impact acrass all such oper c.aims &t the
yoer-end,

Buscd on the woris performed, the recorded peneral insurunce claims lrabiitio
are consistont vath the evidence obtamned.
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How our audii addressed the area of focus

The accounting and related disclosures
of the acquisition of Teachers
Provident Society Limited {"Teachers”)
Refer to note 46 for further informatien

On 1 June 2016 the Society acquired the entire
longterm bus.ness and all the assets (£0.8bn}
and hul:lties £0.8bn) of Teachers and its
subsd ory undertakings by way of a transfer

of engagements undertaken .n accordance

with Section 86 of, and Schedule 15 to, the
frierdly Societies Act 1992, We focussed on
ths acquisition as it 15 matenda! to the Group
and Society financial statements ond there 1s
signficent complexity und a depree of ,udgement
‘n determ'ning the far value of the assets and
lab.lties acqu red.

In add.tion, the Society recorded a bargen
purchase gon of £3m and accounting stendards
emphasise that bargain purchase gans need to
be considered sceptcally,

The valuation of difficult 10

value investments included in
financial assets held at fair value
through income

Refer to notes 13 and 14 for further Information
The Group financial statements include loans
secured on residential property |equity release
morigages) with a fair value of £0.7bn (2015:
£0.6bn} which are desipgnated as financial
assets held at fair value through income.
Because of their nature, quoted prices are not
avatlable for these and the Group uses internal
models to estimate ther fair value,

The fair value of the mortgages 15 estimated
using a discounted cash fiow model which
takes into account the contractual rate

of interest charged on the mortgages,

the expected mortality or morbidity of the
policyholder, the nsk of default {including

the nisk that in such an event the sale
proceeds are less than the carrying value of
the mortgage! and prepayment nisk {the nsk
that policyholder repays early, shortening the
term of the mortgape and reducing the total
amount of interest recewed). Changes to these
assumptions can have a matenal impact on the
calculation of the fair vatue of the mortgages.

The Group &lso uses denvative financial
instruments to manage market nsk; the market
values of these at the year-end comprised
assels of £0.2bn (2015; £0.1bn} and liabilities
of £0.3bn {2015: £0.1bn). We focus on this
area because ceftamn contracts require the use
of bespoke valuation models.

We ucreed the cash consideration of £26m paid on 1 fune 2016 to bank
statements and venfied that no non-cash consideration was agreed.

. We lested the fair values determ ned at the transfer date for .dentifiable assets

pncluding intang, ble assetst hebiites and contingent iiub 1.ties acquired by

performung the follow.ng procedures:

« Obtlaned external confirmations for all inancial assets and testad the value
of securibies by comparing prices to externat market information, covenng
100. of the balance at the acguisition date.

« Reviewed the data, models and assumptions used to calculate the fiir value
of the relevant assets and Lablilies,

« Evcluzted whether the identified assels, Lubibties and conuingent habiilies
met the recognition critena set out in IFRS3 {Business Combmations and
whether they were appropniately measured.

Wh'le testing the calculaton of the bargain purchase gam of £3m ansing from
the acqussiion, we reassessed the business combination accounting, including
the iWdentiiciation and measurement of the Jdentifiable assets includ'ng
intangible assets., | obil.ues and conuingent hishilities and concluded it was
appropriate to recognse the gain.

We reviewed the transfer agreement to assess whether matenal contractual
terms lincluding assets and labilities transferred) were reflected with.n the
acquisition accounting.

Based on the work performed, we determined that the accounting for the
Teachers acquisition, including recogmtion of the bargon purchase gam arising
from the acquisition was appropriate,

For loans secured on residential properly we assessed the methodology and
assumptions used by manzgement in the calculation of the year end values,

We reconciled the model data to the pol:cy admimistration system. We tested
controls over diata mamntained in the policy administration system including the
contractual loan agreements and property valuations,

In order to update our understanding of the model we re-performed the fair
value calculations for a single foan.

We compared the assumptions used against appropriate benchmarks and
investigated any significant differences.

Based on the work undertaken, we determined that the methods and assumptions
used to value loans secured on residential properly were appropriate.

In respect of the derivative tinancial instruments, our vatluation specialists
ndependently re-performed the vatuation of alt of the positions at the year
end. in doing this we agreed key information to onginal contracts and tested
the exisience of the derivatives by obtaining confirmations from the respective
counterparties.

Based on the work undertaken, we did not identify any material differences
between the voluation we calcuiated and that determined by management’s
mode/s.
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How we tallored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic
structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group is structured along three business umits, being "Life’
(including Protection and Retirement Solutions), ‘Heritage and
‘General nsurance’. The Group's financial statements consists
of a consolidation of 26 active statutory entities; but the Group
primarily operates through the three main trading entities; the
Sociely, encompassing the ‘Life' and ‘Heritage’ business units,
and two general insurance companies,

All three main trading entities are material to the Group and
were audited by the Group engagement team. In establishing
the overall approach to the Group audit, we determine the type
of work that we needed to perform at each entity to be able

to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had
been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial
statements as a whole.

In our view, all three main trading entilies required a full scope
audit of their complete financial information, due to their size
and their risk characteristics. This, together with our testing

of the consolidation at Group level gave us the evidence we
needed for our opinion on the Group financial statements as

a whole and accounted for ail of Unallocated Divisible Surplus
('UDS"), the Group's net earned premiums, and loss before tax,
mutua! borus and transfer to the UDS.

Materlality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application

of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit progedures on the individual
financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the
financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall group” "£30 mithon (2015 £33 miflion). -
materiality _

1
. - - - = = =
- %r

~—ah

, How we
1 determined it '

' Rationale for
t benchmark

l. applied

]

3% of Unallocated Dwisiblé Surphus (UDS).

—— v — —— v mw m - - - - w—

"In arriving at this judgement we considered the financial measures which we believed to be most relevant to the
'members of the Society as a body. Members' interests in the Group are represented pnmanly by the UDS and,
rconsequently, the UDS was considered to be the primary metric to use to determine matenality. We have also

Lhad regard to other relevant measures such as the Group's regulatory capital surplus and the other performance

| metrics such as operating profit wathin the Strategic Report.

{ Component || Each component in oUr audit Scope was audiled to a local statutory audit materiality that was less than our
overalt group materiality. The range of materiality applied across components was between £2.5 million and

materiality
; ' £30 milhon,

L~
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We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £1.5 million
(2015: £1.7 million) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern

The directors have voluntarily complied with Listing Rule
9.8.6(R)(3){a} of the Financial Conduct Authority and provided
a statement in relation to going concern, set out on page 90,
required for companies wilh a premium listing on the London
Stock Exchange.

The directors have requested that we review and report on this
statement as required under the Listing Rules for premium
listed companies. We have nothing to report having performed
our review,

The directors have chosen to voluntarily report how they have
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code — An annotated
version for Mutual Insurers {(“the Code") as if the company were
a premium listed company. Under ISAs (UK & lreland) we are
required to report to you if we have anything material to add

or to draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement
about whether they considered it appropriate 10 adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. We have
nothing material {0 add or 1o draw atiention to.

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
conciuded that it is appropriale to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements. The going concern
basis presumes that the Group and Society have adequate
resources to remain in operation. and that the directors
intend them to do so, for at least one year from the date the
financial statements were signed. As part of our audit we
have conciuded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis is appropriate, However, because not all future events
or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a
guarantee as to the Group's and Society's ability to continue as
a going concern,

1oday 212aens
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Other required and voluntary reporting

Consistency of other information and compliance

with applicable requirements

Frlendly Socletles Act 1992 opinions

In our opinion:

» the Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with
Friendly Societies Act 1992, and the regulations made under
it: and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial

The directors' assessment of the prospects of the group and of
the principal rlsks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the group

As a result of the directors’ voluntary reporting on how they
have applied the Code, under 1SAs (UK & Ireland) we are

required to report 10 you if we have anything material to add or
to draw attention to in relation to:

year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

ISAs (LUK & Ireland) reporting

« the directors confirmation on page 92 We have
of the Annual Report, in accordance with  nothing
provision C.2.1 of the Code, that they material to

have carned out a robust assessment
of the pnincipai nsks facing the group,

add or to draw
attention to.

As a result of the directors’ voluntary reporting on how they

have applied the Code, under 1SAs (UK & ireland) we are
required 1o report to you if, in our opinion:

+ nformation in the Annual Report is: We have

~ materially iInconsistent with the no exceptions
informatien in the audited financial 1o report.
statements; or

— apparently matenalty incorrect based
on, or matenally inconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Group and Society
acquired in the course of performing
our audit; or

- otherwise misleading,.

« the statement given by the directors on We have
page 93, .n accordance with provision no exceptions
C.1.1 of the Code, that they consider to report.
the Annual Report taken as a whole 1o
be farr, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary
for members to assess the Group’s and
Society’s position and performance,
business model and strategy 13 materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the
Group and Society acquired in the course
of performing our audit.

« the section of the Annual Report We have
on pages 82 to 86, as required by no exceptions
provision C.3.8 of the Code, describing 1o report,
the work of the Audit Comnuttee does
not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit
Committee.

including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance,
solvency or liquidity.

s the disclosures in the Annual Report that  We have
descnbe those risks and explain how nothing
they are bemng managed or mitigated. matenal to
add or Lo draw
attention o,

s the directors’ expianation on page 91 of We have
the Annual Report, in accordance with nothing
prowvision C.2.2 of the Code. as to how materal to
they have assessed the prospects of the  add or to draw
group, over what penod they have done attention 1o.
s0 and why they consider that penod
to be appropnate, and their statement
as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the group will be able
to continue in operation and meet its
habiliues as they fall due over the penod
of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualificattons or assumptions.

The directors have requested that we review and report on the
statement that they have carred out a robust assessment

of the principal nisks facing the group and the statement in
relation to the longer-term viability of the group, as required
under the Listing Rules for companies with a premium listing
on the London Stock Exchange. Our review was substantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making
inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting their
statements; checking that the statements are in alignment with
the relevant provisions of the Code; and considering whether
the statements are consistent with the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing our audit. We have nothing to
report having performed our review.

Propriety of accounting records and information and

explanations received

Under the Friendly Societies Act 1992 we are required to report

1o you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

« proper accounting records have not been kept by the Society;
or

« the Society financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Other voluntary reporting

Opinion on additional disclosures

Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Society voluntarily prepares a Directors’ Remuneration
Report in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006. The directors have requested that we audit the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report specified by the
Companies Act 2006 to be audited as if the Society were a
quoted company.

in our opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we have agreed to report by
exception

Corparate governance statement

The Society prepares a corporate governance statement in
accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules sourcebook of the Financial Conduct Authority and has
chosen to voluntarily comply with the UK corporate Governance
Code - An annotated version for Mutual Insurers, The directors
have requested that we review the parts of the Corporate
Governance Statement refating to the Society’s compliance with
the ten further provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for auditor review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority as if the Society were a premium listed
company. We have nothing to report having performed

our review,

Responsibilities for the financial

statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of
responsibility set out on page 93, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
{UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Society’s members as a body in accordance with
Section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
respensibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

This includes an assessment of:

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
and the Society’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;

= the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors; and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
directors' judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We
obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financiat
information in the Annual Report {o identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
With respect to the Directors' Report, we consider whether
those reports include the disclosures required by applicable
legal requirements.

Andrew G Hill (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

11 April 2017
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2016

Group Soclety
2016 2015 2016 2015
Restated - seeNote 1
Notes £m £ £m £m
Gross earned premiums 5 I 2,760 l 2,408 I 1,228 i 987
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 (601) {469) {261) (184)
Net earned premiums 5 2,159 1,939 967 803
Investment income 6 401 401 406 372
Net gains/(losses) on investments 7 1,006 {282) 1,013 {247)
Gain arising on Teachers acquisition 46 3 - 3 -
Other income 8 &8 57 12 8
Total income 1 36371 2,115 i 2,4011 936
Gross benefits and claims 9 (2,136)l (1,814} (859)l (793)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 9 540 | 423 237 | 158
Net benefits and claims 21 (1,596)- (1,391) 1 {622) (635)
Gross change in long-term contract liabilities, excluding mutuat bonus 21 (1,59:1.)l (83) (:1..59:1.)l (66)
Change in long-term contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers 21 94 127 94 127
Change in non-participating value of in-force business 21 3 (17) 3 (17)
Net change in contract Habllities, excluding mutuval bonus 21 1 {1,499) 47 1 {1,494) 44
Gross operating and administrative expenses 11 (543)] (623) (2:L!‘-)1 (204)
Expenses recoverable from reinsurers 11 721 = - -
Net operating and administrative expenses 11 (571)' (623) (215)_ (204)
Finance costs 10 [24). (24) (23) (23)
Investment return allocated to external unit holders {1) — - -
Total other expenses T {596} (647) T (238) (227)
Yotal benefits, claims and expenses, excluding mutual bonus 1 (3.686) (1,991) I {2,354) (818)
(Loss)/profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer (49)1 124 47 118
Mutual bonus (.1.7')+ 27) (17)1 (27}
Income tax (expense)/credit 33 (35) (6) {45) 1
Transfer from/(to) the Unallocated divisible surplus 47 101 | (91) 15 i {92)
Profit for the year - I - l - I -
Qther comprehensive income
Items that wlll not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit pension schemes, net of tax 38 {(2) 51 (2). 51
Transfer from/{to) the Unallocated divisible surplus 47 . 2 (51) 2 i {51)

Total comprehensive income for the year

As a Friendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carried forward within the Unallocated
divisible surplus. Accordingly, there is no profit for the year shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group and the Society have not presented a Statement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity holders in gither the Group

or Society.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2016
Group Society
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes £m £m Lm £m
Assets
Pension benefit asset . 38 134 87 134 87
Intangible assets 27 291 249 11 1
nvestments in group undertakings 28 - - 802 770
Property and equipment 26 43 39 9 9
Investment properties 5 - 5 -
Deferred acquisition costs 22 102 a9 - -
Reinsurance assets 23 1,090 890 601 492
Prepayments and accrued income 30 140 125 99 91
Loans and other receivables 16 291 77 155 87
Insurance receivables 29 293 261 16 20
Corporation tax asset 34 6 10 - 8
Financia! assets at fair value through income 13 13,491 11,419 11,842 9,651
Derivative financial instruments 14 179 97 179 95
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 805 1,186 469 449
Total assets 16,870 14,539 14,322 11,760
Liabilities
Unallocated divisible surplusg ) a7 998 1,101 1,019 1,036
Participating insurance contract liabilities 19 4,999 3,872 4,999 3,972
Participating investment contract liabilities 15 630 554 690 554
Non-participating value of inforce business 20 (324) (321) (324) {321)
6,363 5,306 6,384 5,241
Non-participaling insurance contract habilities 19 6,798 5,896 4,426 3,784
Non-participating investment contract liabilities 15 2,547 1,862 2,547 1,862
T 9,345 7,758 6,973 5,646
Net asset value attributable to external unit holders 28 220 - -
Pension benefit obligation 38 - 3 - 3
Deferred tax liability 35 70 a2 73 42
Provisions 39 12 10 11 9
Subordinated liabilities 7 357 356 347 347
Derivative financial instruments 14 259 144 236 144
Other financial liabilities i8 116 96 116 95
Corporation tax liability 38 - - 6 -
Insurance payables 31 51 286 21 29
Trade and other payables 32 269 318 155 204
Total liabilities 16,870 14,539 14,322 11,760

The financial statements on pages 120 to 212 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2017 and sighed on its

behalf by:

ﬂO\M WU

R.S. Small
Company Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2016

Group Soclety
l 2036 2015 I 2016 1 2015

Notes im im £m £m
Cash and cash equlvalents at 1 January 1 1,159 772 1 4331 381
Cash flows arising from:
Operating activities
Cash {used in)/generated from operating activities before movements
in investments held at far value through income 51 !194)‘ 319 153 270
Net increase in investments held at fair value through income (521) (285) (471) (528)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (715) 34 (318) (258)
Dividend income received 107 96 95 86
Interest and other income received 313 339 235 235
Utilisation of provisions (2) {3) (2} 2)
Finance cost paid (1)“ 1) - -
Income tax paid {23) (31} (17) {16)
Net cash flows {used in)/generated from operating activities T {321) 434 1 {7) 45
Investing actlvitles
Increase in investment in group undertakings - ~ (35} {14}
Cash (paid) on acquisitions, net of cash acquired 46 12 (8) - -
Cash held on transfer of Teachers Assurance Fund to the Society - - 34 -
Dividend income received from group undertakings 6 - ~ 44 22
Interest income received from group undertakings 6 - ~ 24 27
Purchase of property, equipment and intangibles 26, 27 (44) (16) (10) {5)
Net cash flows {used in)/generated from investing actwities I (32) (24) 57! 30
Flnancing activities
Interest paid on subordinated debt 10 (23) (23) (23) (23)
Net cash flows used in financing activities 1 (23) {23) [ (23) (23}
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (376): 387 27 52
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1 7831 1,159 1 460 1 433
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Bank balances 189 202 144 a6
Short-term bank deposits 616 984 325 353
Cash and cash equlvalents per the Statement of FInancial Positlon 805 | 1,186 I 469 l 449
Non-offsettable bank overdrafts (see note 32) {22) {27) {9} (16)
Cash and cash equivalents per the Statement of Cash Flows i 7831 1,159 { 460 | 433

The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets and the net purchases/sales of investment
properties as operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from the cash flows associated with the origination of insurance

and investment contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2016

Significant accounting policies

.

This section describes the LV= Group's significant accounting policies and accounting estimates that relate to the financiat
statements and notes as a whole. if an accounting policy or an accounting estimate relates to a specific nole, the applicable
accounting policy and/or accounting estimate is contained within the relevant note. These policies have been consistently applied

1o all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of presentation

The Groug financial statements consolidate the results of
the Society and its subsidiary companies, The Group’s and
Society’s financial statements conform to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} and interpretations issued
by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as published
by the International Accounting Standards Board and adopted
by the European Union. In addition the Society's financial
statements comply with the Friendly Societies (Accounts &
Related Provisions) Regulations 1994 (the Regulations).

In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts, the Group
has applied existing accounting practices for insurance
contracts and participating investment contracts modified as
appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework and applicable
standards. Further details are given in accounting policy 1.3b
on page 125,

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historica!l cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and financial assets and habilities
(including derivatives and non-participating investment

Restatements
Gross up of annuity reinsurance treaty

contract liabilities) at fair value through income. Items included
in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities

are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {'the functional
currency’). Unless olherwise noted, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in millions of pounds sterling, which
is the Group's presentation and functional currency.

Within the financial statements the Group uses the term Profit
before tax to refer to Profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS
transfer as disclosed on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. This is to provide a more representative Profit before
tax figure as described in the LV= use of Non-GAAP measures
disclosed on page 109,

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group
therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its consolidated financial statements.

Within the Society and Group the premiums and claims ceded to reinsurers within the Statement of Comprehensive Income have
been reclassified by £85m to reflect the current year reporting presentation. The reclassification has no impact on the Statement of

Financial Position and the Statement of Cash Flows.

Hoday 2igaieng

Reported Adjustment Restated

Note Dr/(Cr) Dr/(Cr) Dr/(Cr)
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Society)
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 £99m £85m £184m
Claims ceded to reinsurers 9 £{73)m £(85)m £{158)m
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Group)
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 £384m £85m £469m
Claims ceded to reinsurers 9 £(338)m £{85)m £{423)m
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financia! statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates. Where such estimates are

complex they often involve a significant level of management judgement in applying those estimates. These significant accounting
estimates are disclosed within the financial statements separately from those judgements that management have made in applying

accounting policies.

The foliowing areas involve significant judgement by management on policy application:

Area Significant accounting judgements Note
Insurance and participating .
. - 19
investment contract liabilities Changes in methodology
Remsurance assets Transfer of insurance nsk 23
Pension benefit assel/ipbligation) Right to a refund from the pension scheme's assels 38
Consolidation Assessment of whether LV= controls underlying entities 44
The following areas include significant estimates and assumptions, including the exercise of management judgement:
Area Significant accounting estimates Note
Fair vatue financial asseis Estimate of fair value where there is no or imited markel data 13
Insurance and participating investment Assumptions and adjustments used in determining insurance contract habilities; 19
contract liabilites Assessment of future options and guarantees;

Estimate of ultimate cost of claims
Intangibles Estimation of recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit 27
Pension benefit assei/{obligation) Assumptions used to measure the pension benefit obligation 38

1.3 Accounting policies

a) Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including Open Ended Investment
Companies (OEICs), over which the Group (directly or indirectly)
has control.

The Group controls an entity when the Group has all of the

following:

« power over the relevant activities of the entity, for example
through voting or other rights;

« exposure to, or rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity; and

« the ability to affect those returns through the power over
the entity.

The assessment of control is based on the consideration of all

the facts and circumstances. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred (o the Group using uniform accounting
policies consistently applied across the Group. They are
excluded from consolidation from the date on which

control ceases.

The Group uses the purchase methed of accounting to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Accordingly, the cost of an
acquisition is measureq as the fair value of the cash or other
assels given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date control passes. Identifiable assets
acquired, liabilities and ¢ontingent liabilities assumed in a

business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition 1s less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Where investments in specialised investment vehicles (such as
QEICs) are consolidated the interests of other parties in these
vehicles will be classified as liabilities and appear as 'Net asset
value attributable to external unit holders' because they are
puttable instruments, The external unit holders’ share of the
net investment return on the OEICs is charged or credited to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as Investment return
allocated to external unit holders. Where the Group does not
control such vehicles they are carried at fair value through profit
or loss within financial assets in the consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

Details of the Society’s subsidiaries are given in Note 42.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continves

Year ended 31 December 2016

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)
Assoclates and joint ventures in property holding companies
The Group invests in associate companies and jointly controlled
entities that hold investment properties. Associates are all
entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
20% and less than 50% of the voting rights. Joint venlures are
arrangements where the Group has joint controf and rights 10
the net assets of the entity.

The investments in associates and the Group’s interests in
jointly controlled entities have not been consolidated under the
equity method but are designated as investments at fair value

insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than
the henefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financiat
nisk with no significant insurance nsk,

All with-profits contracts have been classified as partigipating
contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to receive,

as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits
or bonuses;

through income under UK unlisted investments in accordance + that are likely to be a significant portion of the total

with the exemptions permitted under |AS 28 applicable to contractual benefits;

investment-linked insurance funds. » whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion
of the Group; and

b) Contract classification « that are contractually based on:

{i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or
a specified type of contract;
(i} reahsed and/or unrealised investment returns
on a specified pool of assets held by the fund; or
(iii) the unallocated surplus of the fund that issues
the contract.

The Group issues contracls that transfer insurance risk,
financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
insurance risk. Such contracts may also transfer financial
risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant

Product classification

Product classification

Insurance Insurance Investment Investment
{Participating) {Non-participating) {Participating) (Non-participating) |

All Gl products

Sigruficant insurance risk 1s transferred

from the pohicyholder to LV= whereby LV=

will compensate the policyholder for any

loss ansing from an insured event (such n/a n/a
as motor collisions, property damage).

The customer does not participate in any

opuions or guarantees and there

is no fund to share in a surpius.

Gl n/a

All Protection

Significant insurance risk {primarily
morbidity, mortality/longewvity) 1s
transferred from the pelicyholder to LV=
whereby the policyholder is compensated
from any loss arising from an insurance
event {such as cnitical illness or death).
The customer does not participate in any
optlions or guarantees and there I15 no
fund to share in a surplus.

FGB

FGB funds
include a
significant
death benefit.

Policyholders
are entitled to
a share of the
surplus of the
with-profits
fund.

Unitdinked pensions

Including SIPP

Mo significant insurance

risk is transferred to LV=;

the customer degides
n/a on their investment

and is exposed to the

associated financial

risk with no additional

participation benefits,

Life

Other Retirement non-profit funds, (Fixed
term/enhanced annulty)

Sigriicant insurance rnisk 1s transferred
{mortahty/longevity} from the
policyhotder to LV=.

Policyholders are not entitled to a share
of the surplus of the funds.

wodsy o¥ajens
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Business .|
unit 1

FTARIFRLES

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

g ——— -

RNPFN and LVFS
WP penslons
policies, TA Fund
life policles

These policies
transfer
sigmificont
mnsurance nsk
{mortality/
fongevily) Trom
the policyholder
oLV .

Reritage

Policyholders

are entitled to
a share of the
siprplus of the
with-profits

fund.

c) Forelgn currencles
Investment assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the year. Purchases and sales of investments denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in that part of the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome in

which the underlying transaction is reported.

d) Financial assets and liabilitles

Recognitlon

1AL (BN CE

RNPFN non-profit fund and LVFS
Heritage conventional non-profit life
and pensions/annuitles in payment
These policies transfer sigmificant
insurence risk imortality/longevity)
from the poi eyholder 10 LV::,

Policyholders are not entitled to a share
of the surplus of the long term fund.

~iProduct classification

| o N -
T PR T (P PR ,

ABIER WLy
Teachers Assurance
Fund and LVFS WP
Investments
These investment
products provide
the policyholder with
market returns. The
value paid out to the
pol.cyhoider 15 not
signthcantly impacted
by whether poy-out 15
on surrender, maturity
or deyth, therefore this
1% Nt an nsurance
contract. The
mvestments entitle the
policyholder 10 a share
of the surplus of the
with-profits fund.

E,(-'-S:Tm.uﬂ

LHmepadEpanny

LVFS Heritage Linked lfe
and pensions and RNPFN
Linked life

These products are
investment contracts and
do not transfer signihcant
insurance risk from the
polcyholder to LV. |

Policyhoiders are not
entitled to a share of
the surplus of the long
term fund.

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities upon initial recognition as shown below. The classification is impacted by the
nature of the instrument and the purpose for which the investments were acquired:

ICatégory]

inanclalinstrument]

B53isPotclassification)

beequent!
surement]

Designated fair
value through
profit and

loss (FVTPL)
on Inltlal
recognition

Fair value
through profit
and loss
(FVTPL) Held for
trading

Debt securities, Equity
securites

Loans secured on
residential and
commercial property

Non-participating
nvestment contract
habilities

Derivative assets/
{liabilities}

Where the investment
return is managed on the
basis of the total return on
Investment.

Designated as faur

value In order to avoid a
measurement inconsistency
with the associated unit-
bnked financial assets,

Dernvatives are classified as

held for trading as required
by 1AS 39.

Falr value using prices
2t the end of the
penod.

Faw value on a
discounted cash flow
basis, taking into
account no negative
equity guarantees
where relevant.

Amount equal to

the far value of the
assoctated unit-hnked
financial assets.

Carned at faw value.
Asset/(liability}
classification
dependant on whether
fair value 1s positive
or negative.

Income Statement —
Net investment gains/
{losses).

n/a

Income Statement -
Net investment gans/
[losses}.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Loans, remnsurance
deposits, other deposits
and financial assets
arising from nen-
investment activities

Loans and
receivables

Cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents

Category Basis of classiflcation Subsequent Recognition of
4 Measurement change in fair value

Financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments not
quoted in an active market.

Consist of cash and highly
tquid investments that are

Income Statement —
Net investment gains/

Amortised cost using
the effective interest

method. (losses) when reahsed
or impaied.
Carrying amounts at n/a

amortised cost.

readily convertible into a
known amount of cash.

Other financial Subordinated debt

liabilities

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or liability
is included within the relevant note for the category.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and has:
— transferred the risks and rewards of the asset; or
- transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

e) Liabllity adeguacy testing

Insurance and participating investment contract liabilities

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the
recognised long-term contract liabilities are adequate, using
current estimates of future cash flows. If that assessment
shows that the carrying amount of the liabilities (less related
assets) 1s insufficient in light of the estimated future cash flows,
the deficiency is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income by setting up an additional liability,

General insurance

At each Statement of Financial Position date liability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance
contract liabilities, net of related deferred acquisition costs.
In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets
backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income initially
by writing off deferred acquisition costs and by subsequently
establishing an unexpired risk provision. Any deferred
acquisition cost written off as a result of this test cannot
subsequentiy be reinstated.

f) Impairment of nonHfinancial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually

for impairment. Assets that are subject Lo amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

Financial liabiities with fixed
or determinable payments
and matuniy date.

Amortised cost using nfa
the effective interest
method.

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows {cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash at bank and in
hand, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and
cash equivaients are as defined above but are shown net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

h) Collateral
Collateral is received or pledged against dervative contracts
in the form of cash collateral and non-cash collateral.

Cash collateral

Cash collateral received, which is not legally segregated from
the Group, is recognised as an asset with a corresponding
liabilty for its repayment in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash collateral pledged, which is legally segregated from
the Group, is derecognised from Cash and cash equivalents
and a corresponding asset for its return is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position,

Non-cash coliateral

Non-cash collateral received against derivative contracts

where the counterparty is not in default, that is neither sold

nor repledged., is not recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position. Non-cash collateral pledged against derivative
contracts where the Group is not in defaull is not derecognised
from the Statement of Financial Position and remaing within the
appropriate asset classification.

Yioday 2dajens
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

i) Mutual bonus

The Mutual bonus declared by the Sociely is presented on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income below Profit before tax
and not within the Gross change in long-term contract habilities.
This is to provide a more representative Profit before tax figure
as described in the LV= use of Non-GAAP measures disclosed
on page 109. The impact on Gross changes in long-term
contract liabilities is disclosed separately within Note 21.

1.4 Changes and future developments In accounting policies
{i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
Although no new standards have come into effect, amendments
1o IFRSs have been adopted by the EU for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, These amendments have
been adopted by the Group but do not have a material impact
on the 2016 financial statements.

IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements’, has been
amended as part of the Disclosure Initiative, The amendments
focus on materiality and aggregation, primary statement
presentation requirements, structure of notes and disclosure of
accounting policies.

{FRS 7, 'Financial instruments: Disclosures’, has been amended
to clarify what constitutes ‘Continuing involvement’ in a financial
assel. Where an enuty has "‘Continuing involvement' in a
financial asset that has been transferred, the entity is required
tc make disclosures under the existing IFRS 7 disclosure
requirements.

(i) New standards and Interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2017, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these are expected
1o have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except for the following:

Amendment to IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts”: Applying IFRS

9 'Financial Instruments’ with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’,
effective from 1 January 2018. This amendment has been
issued to address concerns arising from the different effective
dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming insurance contracts
standard. The amendment provides two approaches that can
be applied by eligible insurers; the overlay approach and the
temporary exemption from IFRS 9. The Group and the Society
are eligible insurers and intend 16 lake the temporary exemption
from IFRS 9 due to the uncertainty regarding accounting

for insurance contracts and the impact of this upon the
classification of financial assets.

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
labilities. It replaces the guidance in 1AS 39-that relates to

the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive ingome (FVOCI) and fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL). The basis of classification depends on

the entity's business model and the contraciual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required 10 be measured at FVTPL with the
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income without recycling. There is a
new expecled credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial fiabilities
there were no changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for lisbilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The standard is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, or at the latest
1 January 2021 where application of the standard is deferred
in accordgance with the above Amendment to JFRS 4 ‘Insurance
contracts’. The Group will assess the impact on the accounting
for both financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9 and
insurance contracts following the publication of the forthcoming
Insurance Contracts standard IFRS 17.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

It replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and is effective from 1 January
2019. Information disclosed by lessees and lessors will enable
users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial position, financial periormance and

cash flows of the entity. The standard has been reviewed and
it is expected that leases currently classified as operaling
leases will require recognition on the Statement of Financial
Position at the present value of minimum lease payments.
Assets and liabilities will be increased by a material amount;
however the net impact on the Statement of Financial Position
and Statement of Comprehensive Income is expected to

be immaterial.

JFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ provides

a principles-based approach for revenue recognition that is
underpinned by the achievement of performance obligations.

It replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and is effective from 1 January
2018. The Group is cirrently assessing the impact of this new
standard; the standard does not apply to business classified

as insurance contracts, the impact is therefore expected to be
immaterial as it is confined primarily to fee and commission and
other income,

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are
not yel effective that are expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

Segmental information

This section details the disclosures arising under IFRS 8 Operating segments. These segmental disclosures are based on operaling
segments that reflect the leve) within the Group at which key strategic and resource allocation decisions are made and the way in
which operating performance 1s reportied internally to the Group board of directors.

2. Segmental information

Accounting for operating profit

« centrally managed strategic costs;

« Tfinance costs;

+« amortsation and imparment of acquired intangibles;
« gans ansing on business acquisitions;

requirements of IFRS; and

current pernod.

Operating profit is the profit earned from normal core business operations. it1s a non-GAAP measure and calculated as IFRS
profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer adjusted for the following items:

« accounting differences between the basis upon which the resulls of the pensions business are managed and the accounting

« shortterm investment fluctuations. This represents the difference between the long-term average return currently expected
over the lifetime of the free Estate and Life assets and the actual mvestment return achieved on these assets in the

The activities of each operating segment are described betow:

General insurance
The principal activity is 10 underwrite general insurance

business through both direct and broker distribution channels,

The primary sources of premium income are from the sale of
Motor and Home products and Commercial Insurance for
Small and Medium Size Enterprises. The General Insurance
business also underwrites Road Rescue, Pet Insurance and
Travel Insurance.

Life

The principal activity is the provisicn of Protection and
Retirement Solution products. The core products offered

in Protection are Life, Critica! lllness, Income Prolection
and Unemployment Insurance. The core products offered in
Retirement Solutions are Annuities, Self-Invested Personal
Pensions (SiPPs), Equity Release Mortgages and Flexible
Guarantee Bonds.

For the purposes of this segmental disclosure, insurance and
investment contract liabilities, operating profits, IFRS profit
before tax and net change in contract liabilities shown for
the Life business, are calculated after allocating the non-
participating value of in-force business to this segment.

Heritage

This segment comprises LVFS' with-profits business (both
erdinary branch and industrial branch), the Teachers Assurance
ring-fenced fund and some non-profit business and unit-linked
business, which was acquired from the Royal Naticnal Pension
Fund for Nurses {'RNPFN'). Most of the Heritage products are
no longer actively marketed, although the Society continues (o
sell newer with-profits products via the Life business channels.

Central items and other
This segment comprises centrally held items such as
group functions.

Transactions between reportable segments are on
normal commercial terms, and are inciuded within the
reported segments.

The profit measure used by the Group board of directors to
monitor performance is Operating profit before tax. Operating
profit before tax by segment is shown in the table below,
together with a reconciliation of the Total operating profit before
tax to the {FRS result before tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continuea

Year ended 31 December 2016

2. Segmental information {continued)

The following tables give details of the Group's profit, revenue and expenses and assets and liabilities with reference to the

operating segments defined above:

a) Segment profit

—

Contral
Rems

insurance Lite Huritage and other Totsl
2016 £m £m £m £m Lm
Operating profit/{loss) pre Ogden 1 113 45 (35) 1 124 |
Reserve increase due to Ogden T (139) - - - (139)
Total operating (loss)/profit before tax : f (26) 45 {35) 1 {15)
Pensions business IFRS adjustment - 3 - - 3
Short-term investment fluctuations and related items* - 32 21 {39) 14 '
Centrally managed costs (2) (2) {2} {21) (27)
Gain arising on Teachers acquisition - - 3 - 3
Finance costs - - - {24} (24)+
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {2) 1) - - {3)
{Loss)/profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 1 {30} 77 (13) {83} {49)

Central
General items
insurance Life Hertage and other Total

2015 Im Lm £m £m im
Total operating profit/(loss) before tax 72 41 88 {6) 195
Pensions business IFRS adjustment - (5) - - (5
Shortterm investment fluctuations and related items* - {27) 11 B (10)
Centrally managed costs - 2) - @n (29)
Finance costs - - - (24) (24)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (2} (1} - - (3)
Profit/(loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer 70 53 99 (51) 124

* Short-term investment fluctuations and related items contains a loss of £28m representing the unmatched movements in the
value of investment assets and liabilities, predominantly caused by the fall in yields during the year. This is more than offset by
the favourable impact of tax deducted from policy asset shares and the RNPFN fund totalling £42m (2015: £nil).




Qur Accounts 131
Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2016
2. Segmental information (continued)
b) Segment revenue and expenses
All revenues disclosed in the tables below are external.
Central
Genaral Hams
insurance Lifs Hurltasge and other Total
Year ended 31 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,530 1,170 60 - 2,760
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {340) {230) {31) - (601)
Net earned premlums 1,190 940 29 - 2,159
Investment and other income 84 751 676 {33) 1,478
Total segmental Income 1,274 1,691 705 {33) 3,637
Gross benefits and claims {1,275) (514) (347) - {2,136)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 303 210 27 - 540
Net benefit and claims (972) (304) (320) - {1,596)
Net change in contract liabilities - {1,129) (359) (6} {1,494)
Other expenses (332) {181) (39) {44) (596)
Total segmental expenses {1,304) (1.614) {718) {50} (3,686)
{Loss)/profit before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer* {30) 77 {13) (83) (49)
Lie Central Total
General Restated - Hems Restated -
Hnaurance seg Note 1 Herilage and other see Note 1
Year ended 31 December 2015 £m im £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 1,420 935 53 - 2,408
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (284) (162) (23 - {469)
Net earned premiums 1.136 773 30 - 1,939
Investment and other income 67 (11) 108 12 176
Tota! segmental income 1,203 762 138 12 2,115
Gross benefits and claims {1.018) {499) (297} - (1,814)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 265 136 22 - 423
Net benefit and claims (753) {363) {275) - {1,391)
Net change in contract liabilities - {218) 266 {1) 47
Other expenses {380} {175) {30} (62) {647)
Total segmental expenses (1,133} (756) {39) (63)  (1,991)
Profit/{loss) before tax, mutual bonus and UDS transfer* 70 6 Q9 {51) 124

Gross written premiums for investment contracts which are deposit accounted for and not included above are £425m (2015:

£515m).

* As a Friendly Society, all net earnings are for the benefit of participating policyholders and are carried forward within the

Unallocated divisible surplus, resulting in the profit for each financial year being zero. Therefore the resulting Profit before tax
required to be disclosed under IFRS 8 will always be equal to the tax charge being £35m (2015: £6m) and £45m (2015; £(1)m}
for the Group and Society respectively. In order to present a mere meaningful disclosure the Profit before tax, mutual bonus and

UDS transfer is disclosed in the tables above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2016
2. Segmental information (continued)
c) Segment assets and liabllities _
Central
Ganeral Hems
surance Lite Hertage and other Total
As at 31 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £
Assets
Property and equipment 8 - 4 31 43
investment properties - - 5 - S
Financial assets 2,078 6,892 4,956 328 14,254
Reinsurance assets 489 572 29 - 1,090
Other assets 387 118 51 117 673
Cash and cash equivalents 210 102 255 138 805
Total assets 1 3,272 7,684 5,300 614 16,8701
Liabilities
Insurance and investment contract liabilities (2,353) (7,037} (5.320) - (14,710)
Subordinated liabilities (10) - - {(347) (357)"
Other ligbilities {219} (220} (170} (196) (8o0s)’
Total liabllitles excluding UDS 1 (2,582) (7,257} (5,490} {543) {15,872)
) ]
Net Assets 1 690 427 (190) 71 9981
Consolidation adjustments 1 {575} {466) 310 731 -1
Unallocated divisible surptus (UDS) 1 115 (39) 120 802 998 |
Central
General Items Total
Insurance Life Henlage and other
As at 31 December 2015 Im £m im £m £m
Assets
Property and equipment 6 - - 33 39
Financial assets 1,783 5,270 4,031 770 11,854
Reinsurance assets 398 461 31 - 890
Other assets 340 107 i8 105 570
Cash and cash equivalents 6585 140 205 156 1.186
Total assets 3,212 5,978 4,285 1,064 14,539
Liabilties
Insurance and investment contract liabilities (2,093) (5,496) {4,374} - {11,963)
Subordinated liabilities {9) - - {347} {356)
Other liabilities (395) (203) (112) (409) (1,119)
Total liabilities excluding UDS {2,497) (5,699) (4,486} (756) (13,438)
Net Assets 715 279 {201} 308 1,101
Consolidation adjustments (560) (386) 321 625 -
Unallocated divisible surplus (UDS} 155 {107) 120 933 1,101

Within the Central items and other segment, there is a balance
of £618m (2015: £752m) which relates to Estale net assets.
The Heritage with-profits policyholders have access 1o the
Estate assets, if required to settle guarantees and bonuses.

Included within the Consolidation adjustments is £324m (2015:

£321m) of non-participating value of in-force business which -
is generated from the non-participating policies written in the
Life business. Under IFRS GAAP this is matched against the
participating contracts which are hetd within Heritage.

d) Major customers

The directors consider the Group’'s external customers to be
individual policyholders. As such, the Group is not reliant on any

individual customer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued ‘

Year ended 31 December 2016

Capital and risk management °

/ |

4

This section details the capital and risk management approach of the Society and Group. The Group seeks to create valtue
for its members by investing in the development of the business while maintaining an appropriate level of capital available.
The risk appetite for each type of principal risk is set based on the amount necessary to meet the PRA’s capital requirements.

3. Capital management

Policies and objectives

Capital is managed on both economic and regulatory bases
to ensure the Group has sufficient funds to meet its business
objectives, the promises made to members and policyholders
and regulatory requirements.

The Group’s key capital management cbjectives are:

{i} To ensure the Group's financial strength and to support the
risks it takes on as part of its business;

{ii) To give confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders
who have relationships with the Group;

{iii) To comply with capital requirements imposed by its UK
regulator, the PRA, in association with the European
Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority {EIQPA) and
the new Solvency Il tegislation from 1 ltanuary 2016; and

{iv) To ensure the Group’s strategy can be implemented and
is sustainable,

These objectives are reviewed at least annually and
benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the
Group's capita!. The capital position is monitored against
those benchmarks to ensure that sufficient capital is available
to the Group.

The Group complied with all regulatory capital requirements that
it was subject to throughout the reporting period.

Capital Management
Capital is monitored and managed at a Group and entity level.

The Group manages capital resources under Solvency Il at

the {evel of Eligible own funds. Excluding RNPFN and Teachers
ring-fenced funds, Eligible own funds were £1,298m for

the Group {2015: £1,220m) and £1,284m for the Society
(2015: £1,236m). Including RNPFN and Teachers ring-fenced
funds, Eligible own funds were £1,411m for the Group (2015:
£1,301m) and £1,400m for the Society (2015: £1,294m). The
inclusion of the ring-fenced funds does not change the Group
capital surplus.

The Group seeks to deploy capital where it believes the risk is
properly rewarded. Asset and liaility matching is extensively
used and risks are hedged where the Group believes it would
otherwise receive insufficient return for the risk taken or to
reduce volatility.

Risk appetite

The Group has embedded its approach 1o risk management
through its risk appetite. The risk appetite for capital
management I1s lhat sufficient solvency capital is held to ensure
that the Group can continue to trade following a severe adverse
movement in markets. As at 31 December 2016, the target
capital risk appetite was £470m or circa 150% of the capital
requirement. See further details on risk management on pages
48 to 58. ’

Measurement and monitoring of capital

The capital position of the Group is monitered on a regular
basis and reviewed formally on @ monthily basis by the Group
Asset and Liabilty Committee (ALCO). These objectives are
reviewed and benchmarks are set by which to judge the
adequacy of the Group's capitat and ensure that sufficient
capital is available.

The Group's capilal requirements are forecast on a regular
basis and compared against the available capital and the

=

Group's minimum internal rate of return. The internal rate of

return forecast to be achieved on potential investments is also

measured against minimum required benchmarks taking into %

account the risks associated with the investment, u‘;g’ i
(]

Methodology &

Eligible own funds comprise the excess of the value of 12:',4

assets over the liabilities, as valued on a Solvency Il basis, -~

Subordinated debt issued by the group is considered to be part

of Eligible own funds, rather than a liability, as it is subordinate

to policyholder ctaims.

Assets are valued at IFRS fair value with adjustments to 24

remove intangibles and deferred acquisition costs, and to value §

reassurers’ share of technical provisions consistent with the B

Solvency N regulations. §

Liabilities are valued on a best estimate market consistent :\"

basis, with the application of a Matching Adjustment, for valuing .

qualifying annuity liabilities, and a Volatility Adjustment for
other qualifying business. Transition (also known as Transitional
Measure on Technical Provisions or TMTP) is recognised on the
balance sheet and has been calculated on a basis approved

by the PRA which seeks to capture the differences between

the total Financial Resources Requirement under the previous
Solvency | regime and the new Solvency Il regime.

>

The liabilities include the Risk Margin which represents an
allowance for the cost of capital for a purchasing insurer taking
on the portfolio of liabilities and residual risks that are deemed
to be not hedgeable under Solvency Il, following the 1.in-200
stress event. This is calcutated using a cost of capital of 6% as
prescribed by EIQPA.

The Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) is the amount of
capital required to cover the 1-in-200 worst projected future
outcome in the year following the valuation, allowing for
realistic management and policyholder actions and the impact
of the stress on the tax position of the Group, This allows for
diversification between the different businesses within the
Group and between the risks to which they are exposed.

All non-insurance regulated businesses are included using their
current regulatory surplus.

Allowance is made within the Seolvency ll balance sheet for the
Group's defined benefit pension scheme using results on an
IFRS basis. I
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

3. Capital management {continued)

Assumptlons

The calculation of the Solvency 1l balance sheet and

associated capital requirements requires a number of

assumptions, including:

(i) assumptions required to derive the present value of best
estimate liability cash flows. Non-market assumptions are
breadly the same as those used to derive the Group’s IFRS
disclosures. Future investment returns and discount rates
are those defined by EIOPA, which means that the risk free
rates used to discount liabilities are market swap rates, with
a 17 basis point deduction o allow for credit risk. For annuity
business that is eligible, the liability discount rate includes
a Matching Adjustment. For other business that is eligible,
the liability discount rate includes a Volatility Adjustment;

{ii) assumplions regarding management actions. The only
management aclions allowed for are those that have been
approved by the Board and are in place at the balance
sheet date.

Use of and [imitations of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is used to determine the effect of a

change in a key assumption while other assumptions remain
unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the
assumptions and other {actors. It should also be noted that
these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts
should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these resultls.

The sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration

that the Group's assets and habilities are actively managed.
Additionally, the Solvency I} position of the Group may vary at
the time that any actual market movement occurs. For example,
the Group's financial risk management strategy aims to manage
the exposure to market fluctuations!

As investment markets move past various trigger levels,
management actions could include selling investments,
changing investment pertfolio allocation, adjusting bonuses
credited te policyholders, and taking other protective action.

Other limitations of sensitivily analysis include the use of
hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential

risk that only represent the Group's view of possible near-term
market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty,
and the assumption that all interest rates move in an
identical fashion,

Stress and scenario testing .

Due to the imitations of sensitivity analysis in isolation,

the Group undertakes a series of stress and scenario tests
to ensure the robustness of its solvency position in regard
to different levels ¢f new business growth, movements in
investment markets and changes in other assumptions such
as the expected lifetime of our enhanced annuity customers.

In looking at movements in investment markets the Group
considers a number of single stresses (e.g. a significant fal!

in equities} but more importantly because investment markets
are highly correlated consideration is given to how they will
move together in stressed conditions. The Group uses the
outcomes of the stress and scenario testing o develop the
management actions that would be undertaken if capital

or other performance measures move outside of the defined
risk appetite.

In order to plan for the future operations of the Group, forecast
plans are produced including stress and scenario testing to
provide the board with assurance that the Group will be able
to withstand adverse events if they arise.

Reconcillation of Group IFRS UDS to Solvency i1 Eligible

own funds

The table below gives a reconciliation of Group IFRS Unallocated
divisible surplus to the Group’s Eligible own funds on a Solvency
Il basis.

The Group Solvency Il results are not due to be submitted to the
PRA until after the release of the Annuat Report. As a result,
the Group Solvency |l results disclosed below are based on the
best estimate of the results at the Annual Report signing date
and may differ to the results published as part of the annual

Solvency Financial Condition Report.
I_ 2016 '1 2015
£m im

{FRS Unallocated divisible surplus L) 9981 1,101
Remove DAC, goodwill and other intangible assets and liabilities (393) {340}
Add subordinated debt treated as available capital 385 370
Insurance contract valuation differences 505 233
Deferred tax adjustments 24 15
Other (19)‘ {9)
Less net eligible own funds relating to ring-fenced funds {204) (150}
_Eligible own funds (excluding ring-fenced funds) 1 1,296} 1,220
RNPFN - eligible own funds 139 126
Restriction of own funds in respect of RNPFN (42) (45}
Teachers - eligible own funds 65 -
Restriction of own funds in respect of Teachers {47), -
QOckham pension scheme — eligible own funds -I 24
Restriction of own funds in respect of Ockham pension scheme - {24)
Group Eligible own funds as submitted to the PRA ] 1,4111 1,301
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4. Risk management and control

The Group's primary business activities include the provision

of insurance, investment and retirement products to UK-based
customers, In providing these products the Group ac'cepts and
needs to manage nsk. A description of these risks and how they
relate to the Groups’ products is outlined below and the Group's
approach to managing and controlling these risks through its
governance and risk management framework is set out on
pages 48 to 58. .

As part of its risk management programme, the Group records
its current and projected risk position across a defined set

of risk categories. In addition a measure of the sensitivity on
Profit before tax, Unallocated divisible surplus, and Long-term
insurance contract liabilities under both deterministic and
stochastic scenarios is performed.

Management uses the insight gained through these
sensitivities to help manage the Group's risk exposure and
sustainability. The models, scenarios and assumptions used
are reviewed regularly and updated as necessary including any
interdependencies between risk types. This section includes
the impact on the three measures of a sensitivity test that
calibrates to a reasonably possible change in a single risk type.

Principal risks

The Group uses a standard categorisation to group types

of similar risks. All such risks are subject to the same risk
management and control framework, however they impact the
business and its financial performance in different ways. The
following sections provide more detail on these risks and how
they impact the Group.

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk arises both from the claims commitment that

the Group has made to its policyholders and the pricing

assumptions made in respect of the policy of insurance.

As such, this covers the following risks:

« The timing and the amount of the claim is uncertain
and hence there is a risk that the exposure (o loss arising
from this claims experience is different to that anticipated.

« The product is pnced assuming certain assumptions
covering how long the policy will be maintained by the
customer (persistency risk} and the cost of administering
the product over its life cycle (expense risk). There is a
risk that across the Group's insurance port{olio the actual
experience is different to that assumed when the product is
priced. This is more likely the longer the term of the product
and therefore is usually only a significant factor in life
insurance products.

Insurance concentration risk

The Group is not exposed to significant concentrations of
insurance risk. Experience shows that the larger the portfolio
of similar insurance coniracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition,

a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a
change in any subset of the portiotio. The Group has developed
its insurance underwriting strategies to diversify the type of

[-— —-- .
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insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to
achieve a sufficienty large population of risks to reduce
the variability of the expected outcome.

The Group writes a diverse mix of insurance business across
a diverse group of people and businesses. However, as the
Group has substantially written all of its business in the UK,
results are sensitive to demographic and economic changes
arising in the UK.

The Group minimises the {evel of insurance concentration
through the use of portfolio analysis and reinsurance.

The Group assesses its insurance risk in two broad categories:
life insurance risk and general insurance risk and the specific
components of each of these are further outlined below:

{}) Life insurance

The Group's hfe insurance activities primarily involve the
provision of Pratection, Annuity and Pensions. These products
are long term in nature and provide key benefits to the
policyholder and their dependants.

A number of key assumptions are made when determining

the future ¢laims liability that will arise from these policyholder
commitments. These are based on prior experience and latest
forecasts in trends and patterns and include the future life
expectancy and heaith of policyholders, the extent to which
contracts will be terminated early, how much insurance contract
administration costs will increase, growth in the value of
investment returns, interest rates and tax rates.

Details of life insurance contract liakilities and associated
valuation assumptions are disclosed in Notes 19 and
24 respectively.

Differences in actual experience versus the original key
assumptions will give rise Lo different liabilities than originally
anticipated. In addition the assumptions made regarding

the length of time the policy stays in force and the cost of
administering the policy may vary from original assumptions,
Wherever these outcomes vary from the original or most recent
estimate they may give rise to potential life insurance risk
exposures, the primary life insurance risks prevalent within the
Group'’s products are described below:

Mortality, longevity and morbldity

Life Protection and Annuity business is exposed to changes
in life expectancy (mortality — reduced life expectancy,
longevity — increased life expeclancy) and health expectancy
{morbidity) experience.

Protection product liabilities are exposed to mortality and
morbidity risks whereby higher mortality rates and adverse
morbidity will lead to increases in contract liabilities. Annuity
product liabilities are exposed to longevity risk whereby contract
liabilities will increase with life expectancy.
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4, Risk management and control (continued)
Mortality, longevity and morbidity risk is managed in the Group
through the assessment of the risk associated with individual
policyholders against a set of acceptance (Underwriting) criteria,
which may include an individual's medical history, occupation,
smoking and drinking habits {i.e, ingicators of life expectancy).
The actual experience of policyholders is then regularly
monitored to assess that the underwriting criteria remain
appropriate and that the level of risk being assumed by the
Group remains within its risk appetite. Finally, a proportion

of mortality, longevity and morbidity risk is transferred via
reassuring policy commitments through agreements with
reinsurance companies.

Persistency

In pricing life insurance business, the Group makes
assumptions as 10 how long the policyholder is likely to retain
the product. Persistency risk arises from the actual experience
being different to the assumptions. The level of persistency
influences the ability 1o recover initial costs of sale from the
premiums and charges that relate to the product. The Group

is exposed Lo persistency risk whereby the profitability is
adversely impacted by reductions in the length of time that
policies remain in force.

For certain Heritage products the level of persistency influences
the estimated cost of guarantees and options. The risk for
these products is that a larger proportion of the portfolio
remains in-force o avail of these guarantees and oplions,

Persisiency nsk is managed in the Group through the
assessment of the risk associated with different products
against the assumptions used when pricing and subsequently

valuing the insurance obligations. The actual lapse experience
segmented intc appropriate product groups i1s regularly
monitored to assess whether the pricing and valuation
assumptions remain appropriate and that the level of nsk being
assumed by the Group remains within its risk appetite,

Expense

In pricing life insurance business, assumptions are made as
to how long the Group will need to continue to service and
maintain the product and communicate with the policyholder.
The Group is exposed to the risk that the charges it deducts
from policyholder benefits are not sufficient to cover the full
extent of these expenses. In addition, the Group makes an
assumption as to how much this service and maintenance
will cost each year. Expense risk is the exposure irom these
assumptions on cost and duration varying from the assumed
levels, with higher than expected expenses reducing profits.

The Group manages this risk through an on-going assessment
of the factors that will generate additional expenses in the
product servicing costs and the average duration of life
insurance products.

Life insurance concentraticn

The Group's exposure to life insurance risk is captured in the
long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities set out
below. The products listed below cover the Group’s protection,
annuity, and pensions products and also the investment
exposure arising from the Group's savings and investment
products. The Society’s exposure 1o life insurance risk is
consistent with that of the Group.

I 2016 1 2015

Gross Relnsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

Group I £m £m £m I £m L Lm
Whole life 2,794 16 2,810 2,140 [£23) 2,132
Endowment 526 - 526 l 295 - 295
Term Assurance 243 {250) {7} 204 (202) 2
tmmediate and deferred annuity contracts 4,682 (111) 4,571 4,112 (91) 4,021
UWP pensions and protected retirement plans 1,339 - 1,339 1,126 - 1,126
Critical ilness . 73 {65) 8 29 {75} 24
Income protection 161 {189) (28) 103 (115) 12)

" 1sA 101 - 101I 78 - 78
QOther 160 (2) 158 323 (1) 122
10,079 {601) 9,478 8,280 (492) 7,788

Long-term claims liabilities 46 - 46 40 - 40
Unit linked 2,553 - 2,553 1,867 - 1,867

1 12,678 (601) 12,0771 10,187 (492) 9,695
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4. Risk management and control (continued)
Life insurance risk sensitivities

The table below sets out the impact on the long-term contract habilities {both investment and insurance contracts), the Unallocated
divisible surplus and Profit before tax for movements in key assumptions. The Society's exposure to life insurance is materially

consistent with that of the Group.

impact

on Eross

Impact long-term

N on Profit Impact Insurance

* before tax, of the. ané

mutusl bonus  Unallocsted I“““'t“n:

contrac!

Sensitivity analysis for the change in assumptions used in long-term , "'::,::::5, ‘l:,';::: WabHities

Insurance and Investment contract liabilities £m im £m

Increase in mortality rates by 10% - Non annuity products (10) (10) 73
Decrease in mortality rates by 10% — Annuity products (41) {41) 130 w
Increase in morbidity rates by 10% (25) {25) 126 %
Increase in persistency by 25% H {(?7) (N 118 @
Increase in expenses by 10% {50} (50) 53 D
B
Reinsurance =)

The impact of an adverse or favourable movement in

the assumptions is largely symmetric. The persistency
sensitwvity is performed as stresses to the persistency
assumptions propartionally for ali products and therefore
implicitly allow for offsets between products exposed to
different directional sensitivities.

{ii) General [nsurance

The Group's insurance activities are primarily concerned

with the pricing, accepting and management of risks from its
policyhoiders. In accepting risks the Group commits to paying
claims and therefore these risks must be understood. The
Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy,
reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is the
risk that actual claims exceed the carrying value of the Group’s
claims reserves. The risk arises from the inherent uncertainties
as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance claims,
For general insurance contracts this is primarily represented

by exposure to risks which may lead to significant claims in
terms of frequency or value. These would include major weather
events, subsidence and large single claims arising from either
the motor business (injury ctaims) or SME business (liability
and/or property claims). There is also a risk that the prices
charged for unexpired risks to which the Group is contractually
committed may prove to be insufficient to absorb the cost of
the claims which they will generate and any related deferred
acquisition cost. Procedures are in place to measure, monilor
and control exposure to all these risks.

General Insurance concentration

Motor business is exposed to the risk of large bodily injury
claims, where the claim amounts can be significant due to the
cost of care required for the claimant. The Group has entered
into excess of loss reinsurance contracts which reduce its
exposure to large claims. The Group's retention is £5m per
claim (2015: £5m per claim).

Praperty business {domestic and commercial} is exposed o
catastrophic risks such as those resulting from storms or floods
as well as risks such as subsidence, The Group has entered
into reinsurance contracts which provide protection against
catastrophic weather events.

SME business is exposed to farge individual property losses
and also to liabilities arising from employment and commercial
activities. The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts
which provide protection against these liabilities.

In addition to the reinsurance ¢oniract described above, the
Group has also entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer Agreement
resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its booked reserves. The
Group also entered into a 20% Quota Share arrangement for
2016 to 2018 (each year treated separately). Whilst the primary
driver of these transactions was efficient capital management,
the contract also has the effect of reducing the Group's
exposure {0 general insurance concentration risk.

The table below sets out the Group's concentration of general insurance contract liabilities by type of contract:

o
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2016 ' 2015
Gross  Relnsurance Net - Gross  Remnsurance Net
L £m Lm £m im £m £m
Motor 1,284 {402) 882 1,067 (326) 741
Commercial 209 (49) 160 206 (44) 162
Household ’ ' 61 (21) 40 72 14) 58
Qther 9 - 9 8 (2} 5]
1,563 {472) 1,091 1,353 (386) 967
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4, Risk management and control (continued)

Claims development

The claims prowiston is the estimated cost of outstanding

claims from expired risks. The provision is calculated largely

from using the Group's historic claims development data.

How much the past claim development will reflect future

¢laims development will be impacted by the following factors:

* Changes in actuarial processes and methodology.

« Changes in risk profile.

« Changes in underwriting, rating and policy conditions.

s Changes in legislation and regulation e.g. PPOs, Ministry
of Justice reforms, changes 1o the Ogden discount rate, etc.

+« Changes in other external factors e.g. ‘¢laims farming’/
accident management firms.

It is therefore important that the impact of these items on
claims development is understcod, Whilst every effort has been
made 1o ensure the claims provision appropriately allows for
such changes, there remains uncertainty in the eventual reserve
outcome as a result. This uncertainty can change from year to
year depending on the timing and magnitude of these items.

The estimation of the ultimate cost of large bodily injury claims
follows a more complex stochastic process given that these
claims typically exhibit low freguency and high severity and
hence the outcome is highty uncertain. Significant factors
that affect the large injury claims estimation process are
legislation {e.g. the Ogden discount rate used to value lump
sum settlements), judicial decisions and the tong delay to
settlement. Over the last decade, there has been an ingreasing
prevalence of Periodic Payment Order ('PPO’) settlements given

that the Ogden discount rate was setat 2.5% p.a. and at a

time when real yields were very low. These settlements have

an annuity-type structure, i.e. they are typically paid annually
over the claimant’s life with mortality, inflation and investment
returns being the key nsks. Courts may decide that a claim
should be settled on a2 PPO basis, but in some cases the
claimant will request a PPO settlement. Due 1o all these factors,
the future development of bodily injury claims have a high
degree of uncertainty compared to non-injury claims.

On 27 February 2017, the Lord Chancellor announced a change
in the Ogden discount rate from 2.5% n.a. to minus 0.75% p.a.
This change impacted the valuation of the cost of care element
of farge injury claims, and required insurance companies to hold
more money in reserves in order to match the inflation risk in
the long term. The impact of this Ogden change has led to an
increase in bodily injury reserves of £139m for the Group and
has significantly impacted other insurers in the market, The
change in the Ogden discount rate is expected to make the
lump sum settiement more attractive to claimants than a PPQ
settlement, without reducing the ¢ost of a PPO claim. Qverall
PPO ctaims reserves should reduce due to lower propensity
but these claims would be replaced by more expensive lump
sum settlements.

The table below provides a sensitivity analysis of the potential
impact of a change in the discount rate used to value PPOs and

"a change in the Ogden discount rate, with all other assumptions

left unchanged.

Increase/{decraase) in Profit before Incresss/{decrease] in

tax, mutual bonus and UDS 1] 1] ivisible surplus
I 20186 I 2015 [ 2018 2015
£m £m £m £m
PPOs
Impact of a 1% increase in the discount rate used to value PPOs [ B ' 19 | 6 1 15
Impact of a 1% reduction in the discount rate used o value PPOs (11) (29) {9) (23)
Ogden discount rate ’
impact of an increase in the Qgden discount rate of 1% p.a. | 58 ' n/a l 46 l n/a
Impact of a decrease in the Ogden discount rate of 1% p.a. (79) n/a (63) n/a

1) The sensitivities refating to an increase or decrease in the Ogden discount rate illustrate a movement in the value from the

current level of minus D.75% p.a.

2} The selection of these sensitivities should not be interpreted as a prediction.

b} Financial markets risk

As a result of the insurance, investment and retirement
products offered to policyholders the Group is exposed to
financial markets through the investment of premiums and
investment lump sums in various investment assets such as
equities, gilts, corporate bonds snd property.

Financial markets risk is defined as the risk that arises from
adverse fluctuations or increased volatility in asset values,
assel income or interest rates. This includes credit spread
widening. The Group manages these risks through aligning
the investment strategy, asset allocation and performance
benchmarks with the Group’s risk appetite and utilising asset

liability matching and stochastic modelling techniques. These
actions aim to match the risks arising from the liabilities under
the Group's insurance and investment contracts with the risks
inherent in its assets and the capital available to ensure the
Group s able to meet policyhatder commitmenits when they fall
due and to achieve a sufficient return for members,
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Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control (continued)

In addition to the actions summarised above the Group may
also look to use derivative instruments particularly to assist

in hedging policyholder guaranteed options and, where cost
effective, 1o transfer risks it believes are either unrewarded

or which it believes can be better managed by a third party.

For example, derivatives are used to reduce exposure {0
fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates and for efficient
portfolio management purposes. The principal derivatives used
for this function are interest rate contracts {including interest
rate swaps and oplions), forward foreign exchange contracts
and equity derivatives (index fulures and options) respectively.
The Group does not hold derivatives for investment purposes,
they are held purely as a risk management technique to manage
financial market risk exposures within its investment holdings
(see Note 14 on how these are used).

The investment management agreement between the Group
and Columbia Threadneedle Investments specifies the limits
for holdings in certain asset categories and currencies.

Assel allocation and performance benchmarks are set, which
ensure that each fund has an appropriate mix of assets and

is not over or under exposed to a particular asset category,
currency or specific investment., The Funds Management Group
monitors the actual asset allocation and performance against
benchmarks with oversight provided by Group ALCO and the
tnvestment Committee.

The Group is not exposed to financial markets risk in respect
of assets held to cover unit linked liabilities as these risks are
borne by the holders of the contracts concerned, except to
the extent that income from the fund based management
charges levied on these contracts varies directly with the
value of the underlying assets. Such assets are, however,
prudently managed in order to meet policyholders’ risk and
reward expectations. In addition, regulatory requirements
prescribe the type and quality of assets that can be held to
support these liabilities.

The key types of financial markets risk to which the Group is
exposed are set out in more detail in the following paragraphs.
Sensitivities to key market risks are shown on page 141,

{l) Asset performance risk

Asset performance risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of an asset or liability will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest
rate or currency risks.

The Group is primarily exposed to asset performance risk
arising from its investment in equities, property, gilts and
corporate bonds.

Equity price rlsk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk from daily fiuctuations
in the market values of the equity portfofio. These assets are
used to support contractual liabilities ansing from investment
and long-term insurance contracts. For investment and

long-term linked insurance contracts the price movements

are matiched with corresponding movements in contractual
obligations. For participating insurance contracts the aim is

to achieve growth in excess of the obligations. For general
insurance contracts. equities are held to achieve an investment
return, Decreases in the market price of equities will negatively
impact the profits and capital of the Group. The risks from
investing in equities are managed by investing in a diverse
portiolio of high gquality securities ensuring that holdings are
diversified across industries and concentrations in any one
company or industry are limited by parameters established

by the Investiment Committee. In addition, the Group may use
derivatives to reduce the level of equity price risk.

Property price risk

The Group is subject to property price risk due to its exposure
to the residential property market through its equity release
products, where sustained underperformance in UK residential
property prices could result in proceeds on sale being exceeded
by the mortgage debt at the date of redemption (see Note

13 for disclosures relating to loans secured on residential
property). This risk is managed through limits on the maximum
loan e value ratio and seeking to limit concentrations in
particular geographic areas. In addition, monitoring of actual
experience in house prices versus expected is undertaken.

Corporate bond price risk (Credit spread risk)

The credit spread risk represents the risk of adverse fluctuation
in the values of assets and liabilities due to changes in the level
of corporate bond credit spreads. This represents the main
market risk exposure of the Group's investments in investment
grade corporate bonds.

A widening in credit spreads, over and above risk-free yields,
causes bond values {o decrease. There is a partial offset
where the value of certain insurance liabilities fall in value

but the overall impact on IFRS profits is negative. Conversely a
narrowing of credit spreads results in a positive impact on
IFRS profits.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the group is exposed to lower
returns or loss as a direct or indirect result of fluctuations in the
value of, or Income from, specific assets and liabilities arising
from changes in underlying interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's investments
in long-term debt and fixed income securities and their
movement relative to the value placed on the insurance
liabilities. A number of products sold by the Group have features
that influence the Group's exposure to interest rate risk. These
features include guaranteed surrender values, guaranteed
annuity options and minimum surrender and maturity values,
which can lead to the present value of claims being higher than
the value of the backing assets, when interest rates change.

-
F"’ voday 28aens

-

B

aolRUIAA0Y

SUNOIIY INQ



ap— W ———— —

140 | L= Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements continved

Year ended 31 December 2018

4. Risk management and control (continued)

The Group manages interest rate risk by investing in fixed
income securities which closely match the interest rate
sensitivity of our liabilites. where such investments are
available. The Group also makes use of derivatives in addition
to physically held assets to manage the interest rate exposure
resulting from the liabilities. The Group manages its exposure
on both an IFRS basis and a regulatory capital basis under
Solvency Il, and currently focuses on regulatory capital. These
derivatives are principally interest rate swaps and swaptions.

Exposure to interest rate risk is monitored using several
techriques, including scenarip testing, stress testing and asset
liability duration control.

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Group predominantly operates within the UK and is
therefore not significantly exposed to currency exposures within
its normal trading activties. However, the Group's investment
strategy and policies allow for a limited leve! of investment

in overseas markets, via both equities and fixed interest
securities. The main currency exposures here are to the Euro
and US dollar.

The risk to the Group is thal the {air vatue or future cash flows
of an overseas investment asset will change as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk is managed by
the use of exposure limits and authorisation contro!s operated
with the Group’s risk management framework.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure, after hedging, to foreign currency exchange risk in stering. The Society's exposure
to foreign currency risk in 2016 amounted to £18m Euros and £124m US dollars {2015: £20m Euros and £131m US dellars).

1 2016 1 2015
I Eure  US Dol Yon Other Totsl Ewrn  US DoWar Yen Other Totsl
£m im m £m £m Lm £m £m im £m
Derivatives {(77) 1) - {(27) {105) {74) {97} . - {18} {189)
Equity securities 200 123 48 108 479 164 221 54 88 527
Debt securities - - - - - 26 73 - - 99
Cash and cash equivalents 13 8 - - 21 a 2 - - 11
1 136 130 48 81 3951 125 199 54 70 448

A strengthening of the value of sterling against the foreign
currency (increase in exchange rates), in which the investment
asset is denominated, will lead to a devaluation of the asset
value and any associated income flows. A weakening of the
value of sterling against the foreign currency will have the
reverse impact.

The sensitivity of investment assets to a 10% increase/
decrease in Euro and US Dollar exchange rates, net of
derivatives, i5 £14m (2015: £13m) and £13m (2015: £20m)
respectively. In determining the percentage rates to use in this
sensitivity the movements in the actual market rates of Euro
and US Dollars during 2016 were taken into account. The above
table incorporates all material currency risk to Profit before tax.
Therefore, a 10% increase/decrease across all currencies could
impact Profit before tax by up to £27m (2015: £31m).

Some foreign debt securities are denominated in sterling so
bear no direct currency risk and have not been included within
the above table.

{iv) Investment concentration

Investment concentration risk arises through exposure to
particular asset types, geographical markets, industry sectors,
groups of business undertakings or similar activities. The Group
may suffer losses in the investment porifolio as a result of over
exposure to particular sectors engaged in similar activities or
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political and other conditions,

The Group's trading activities are UK-based and associated
insurance and investment contract liabilities are impacted by
the UK marketplace and hence there 1s a high ¢oncentration in
corresponding matching UK investment assets.

The Group invests in a portfolio of assets and seeks to
maximise portfolio expected return for a given amount of
portfolio risk, or equivalently minimise risk for a given level of
expected return, by carefully choosing the proportions of various
assels. The Investment Committee sets the Group's investment
strategy and recommends to the Board the policy and limits
required, Responsibility for implementation is delegated to the
Chief Investment Officer, with day to day investment activities
being undertaken by the Group's investment manager, Columbia
Threadneedle Investments.

The Funds Management Group monitors the actual asset
allocation and performance against benchmarks with oversight
provided by Group ALCO and the Investment Committee.
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4. Risk management and contrel (continued)
Eurozone exposure

The table below shows the Group's exposure by country of incorporation of the counterparty at 31 December 2016. The Seciety's
exposure to Eurozone risk is materially consistent with that of the Group.

2016 2015
Sovarelgn su“::": Total Soversign Sovm:l:: Toial
£m £m £m . £m im im
italy - 32 32 - 24 24
Spain ' 1 114 115 - 90 920
Other Eurozone 46 1,785 1,831 . 53 1,379 1,432
Total . - ' 47 1,931 1,978 53 1,493 1,546

The Group's combined exposure Lo Greece, Cyprus and Portugal is £7m (2015: £nil). Non-sovereign exposure includes £109m

(2015: £84m) of subordinated debt.

Summary of market risk sensitivities

The table below sets out the impact on long-term contract liabilities {both investment and insurance contracts}), the Unallocated
divisible surplus and Profit before tax for movements In sectors of the market that the Group is invested in, net of derivatives,
The 2015 sensitivities for gross liabilities have been restated to allow for the change in full RNPFN policyholder liability and to
include the credit exposure to quasi and foreign government, and government-guaranteed investments. The Society's exposure
to market risk sensitivities is materially consistent with that of the Group.

voday 2gaens

-

H T 2018 2015

' £Em Lm £m £m £im £im

[ Impact |- Inpact

on gross on gross

long-term long-term

( Impact on impact Insurance mpact on nsurance

Prafit betore on the and ¥ Profitbefore  Impact on the and

tax, un d Invest t tax, mutual  Unabocated nvestment

| bonus and divisible contract bonus and dunsible contract

UDS transfer suplus Hablltles l UDS transier surplus Habrdiies.

Sensltlvity analysis to movements in key market sectors . £m £m £m £m Lm Lm
Equity values fall by 20% (50) (39) (813) l (27) 21) {630)
Property values fall by 12.5% (16) (15) {24) (16) (15} (25)
Credit spreads increase by 100bps . (148) {143) {171) {91) {89) (126)
Fixed interest yields fall by 50bps 90 20 548 { 1 2 419
Fixed interest yields increase by 100bps (159) {159) (912) - (2) (704}

In determining the percentage rates to use in the sensitivity analysis reference has been made to those used for internal reporting
within the Group. Where sensitivities have not been produced in both directions, the impact of the sensitivity in the other direction

is materially consistent with the sensitivity provided.

For fixed interest yield sensitivities, there has been a significant amount of Solvency li related hedging in order to protect the
Society's regulatory capital coverage ratio. The execution of these Solvency 1l related hedges has led to increased interest rate

exposure to the IFRS results.

Asset values and, where appropriate, asset shares are adjusted to reflect the change in each sensitivity. Future policy related
liabilities are recalculated using these revised values and, where appropriate, economic scenarios generated by an asset model

calibrated to the revised risk-free rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control (continued)

Falr value estimation .

The following fair value estimation tables present the Group's
and Society's assets and liabilities measured at fair value

by fevel of the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31
December 2016,

Level 1 - quoted prices

The fair value of financial instruments included in the Level 1
category is based on the value within the bid-ask spread that

is most representative of fair value quoted in an active market
at the year-end date. An instrument is regarded as quoted in an
active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service
or regulatory agenoy and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.

Level 2 - observable [nputs

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an active market
and their fair value is determined using valuation techmques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of data from
observable current market transactions (where it is available)
using pricing obtained via pricing services, even where the
market is not active. It also includes financial assets with prices
based on broker quotes.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments classified as Level 2 include:

« Derivatives are valued by discounted cash flow techniques,
using observable yield curves and models such as Black
Scholes using implied market forward rates and volatilities,

« Units in listed investment funds are valued using quoted
prices from external pricing services.

« Debt securities are valued using quoted prices from external
pricing services,

« Loans secured on commercial property are valued using
discounted cash flows to reflect changes in underlying gilt
yields and debt margins.

« Non-participating investment contract liabilities are valued
on a basis consistent with the underlying assets in the
investment fung.

Level 3 - slgnlficant unobservable inputs
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments and other financial investments held at fair value
classified as Level 3 include:

« The Group acquired an investment properly as part of the
Teachers Assurance business combination. This property
is valued at 31 December 2016 in accordance with the
RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards by professional,
third party, independent chartered surveyors Eddisons
Commercial Ltd. The valuation is on an income approach
basis and requires the use of unobservable inputs for rental
income and yield assumptions which take into account
comparable properties.

« Private equity holdings are valued on a net asset value
basis using unobservable external unit prices factoring
in distributions or calls since the latest valuations. The
privale equity valuations are reviewed on a monthly basis
by group treasury L0 ensure ongoing validity and accuracy.

s The fair value of the loans secured on residential property
is determined using discounted cash flow projections.,
The expected value of redemptions are estimated based on
the assumed prepayments over future time periods (months),
mortality and long-term care entry rates including any early
redemption charges. The expected redemplions
are discounted at swap rates plus spread plus allowances
for risk factors. The full swap curve is used so each
discount rate is matched to the appropriate cash flow.
The assumptions used for prepayment, mortality and long-
term care are based on the experience of the in-force book
supported by industry data. The valuation is performed
by a Senior Actuarial Analyst and reviewed by the Asset
Actuary. The assumptions are set by the Board upon
recommendation by the Audit Committee.

Whilst there were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year, the classification of assets within the fair
value hierarchy has been reassessed. During 2016, the

Group transferred Level 3 derivative financial instruments

into Level 2 since significant inputs, including yield curves

and implied volatilities, are observable for the majority of the

derivative contract. The movements in such derivative financial

instruments are explained below:

» Interest rate swaps: The £77m asset oulstanding as at 1
January 2016 was transferred into Level 2 for the Society
and Group.

» Equity/index derivatives: The £17m and £19m assets
outstanding as at 1 January 2016 were transferred into Level
2 for the Society and Group respectively.

« Cash flow swaps: The £143m liability outstanding as at 1
January 2016 was transferred into Level 2 for the Society
and Group.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year,

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

The valuation of ali of the Group's investment holdings is
performed by independent and qualified valuers.

Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/ i
losses on investments within the Statement of Comprehensive

Incorne with the exception of Investment contract liabilities

where the movement is recognised within the Gross change in

contract liabilities. Details of these gains/losses are disclosed

within Notes 7 and 21 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2016
4. Risk management and contrc! {(continued)
2016 2015
Total {alr Total fair
Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 vatua Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valug
Group £m £m £m £m im Im £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financlal Instruments
Interest rate swaps - 160 - 160 - - 77 77
Swaptions - 6 1 7 - - 1 1
Equity/index derivates - 12 - 12 - - 19 19
- 178 1 179 — — 97 97
Financial assets held at fair value
through income
Shares, other variable yield
securities and units in unit trusts
- UK listed 1,746 4,390 - 6,136 1,242 2,322 - 3,564
- UK unlisted - - i20 120 - - 125 125
- Overseas listed 464 3 - 467 S00 4 - 504
- Qverseas unlisted - - 55 55 - - 64 64
Debt and cther fixed income securities
- UK listed 1,657 1,927 - 3,584 2,120 2,126 - 4,246
- Overseas listed 98 2,148 - 2,246 24 2,186 - 2,210
Loans secured on residential property - - 685 685 - - 593 593
Loans secured ocn
commercial property - 198 - 198 — 113 - 113
3,965 8,666 860 13,491 3,886 6,751 782 11,419
3,965 8,844 861 13,670 3,886 6.751 879 11,516
Financial liabillties
Non-participating investment
contract liabllities - 2,547 - 2,547 - 1,862 - 1,862
Derlvative financlal instruments
Cash flow swaps - 173 - 173 - - 143 143
Interest rate swaps - 29 - 29 - - - -
Gilt spread lock - 37 - 37 - - - -
Equity/index derivatives 1 19 - 20 1 - - 1
i 258 - 259 1 - 143 144
1 2,805 - 2,806 1 1,862 143 2,006
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Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and contro! (continued}

2016 1 2015
Total fair Total fair
Levell Level 2 Level 3 yalue Level 1 kovel 2 Level 3 velue
Society m £m £m £m im Im £ £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps - 160 - 160 - - 77 77
Swaptions - [ 1 7 - - 1 1
Equity/index derivatives - 12 - 12 - - 17 17
- 178 1 179} = — 95 a5
Financlal assets held at fair value
through income
Shares. other variable yield
securities and units in unit trusts
— UK listed : 1,187 4,810 - 5,997 830 3,729 - 4,559
- UK unlisted - - 120 120 - - 124 124
= Qverseas listed 101 1 - 102 105 - - 105
- OQverseas unhsted - - 54 54 - - a3 63
Debt and other fixed ingome securities
— UK listed 1,643 1,520 - 3,163 1,714 1,165 - 2,879
— Overseas listed 98 1,426 - 1,524 24 1,192 - 1,216
Loans secured on residential property - - 684 684 - - 592 592
- Loans secured on
commercial property - 198 - 198 - 113 - 113
3,029 7,955 858 11,8421 2,673 6,199 779 9,651
3,029 8,133 859 12,0211 2,673 6,199 874 9,746
Financial liabillties
Non-participating investment
contract liabilitles - 2,547 - 2,547 .- 1,862 - 1,862
Derlvative financlal Instruments
Cash flow swaps - 173 - 173 - - 143 143
Interest rate swaps - 25 - 25 - - - -
Gilt spread lock - 37 - a7 - - - -
Equity/index derivatives 1 - - 1 1 - - 1
1 235 - 2361 1 - 143 144
1 2,782 - 2,783 1 1 1,862 143 2,006
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2016

4, Risk management and control {continued)
The table below presents the movements in Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Unraalised
galns/
Tota| gains/ {losses)
(losses) recognised
recognlsed At 31 through
Al L Janusry through Decembar Income in
2018 incoms Purchases Sales 2016 2016
Group £m £m £m £m £m tm
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Swaptions 1 - - - 1 - _
. 1 - - - 1 -
) @
Financlal assets held at falr value through income ! 8
Shares, other variable vield securilies and units in unit ,3 1
trusts . ;
- UK unlisted , 125 (5} 4 {4) 120 {4} 2z
- Overseas unlisted . 64 5 - (14) 55 3 2
Loans secured on residential property* I 593 75 61 {44) 685 75
i 782 75 65 {62) 860 74
783 75 65 (62) 861 74 -
]
* |n relation to Loans secured on residential property, purchases represent lgans advanced plus accrued interest and sales 2
represent loans repaid g
Unrealised %
gans/ g
Toal gains/ (losses) g
(losses) recognised ~
recognised At 31 through
A1l January ihrough December wcome in
2015 income Purchases Sales 2015 2015 .
Group £m £m £m £m im £m .
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 4
Swaptions 2 {1} - - 1 {1) >
. 2 (1) - - 1 (1) a
Financial assets held at fair value through income T,
Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit
trusts
— UK unlisted 111 17 - {(3) 125 14
- Overseas unlisted 70 {3) 2 {5) 64 {4}
Loans secured on residential property 684 (139) 88 {40} 593 {139)
865 {125) 20 (48} 782 {129)
867 {126} 90 (48} 783 {130)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control (continued)

Unrestised ]
geins/
Total gains/ (losses)
(losses) recognlsed
racognised At 31 through
At 1 January threugh December income in
2016 income Purchases S»stes 2018 2016
Society £m Em £m £m £m £m
Financlal assets
Derivative financial instruments
Swaptions 1 - - - 1 -
[ i - - - 1 -1
Financial assets held at fair value ’
through income
Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit
trusts
- UK unlisted 3 124 (4) 4 {4) 120 {4)
— Overseas unlisted 63 5 - {14) 54 3
Loans secured on residential property* 592 75 61 {44} 684 75
1 779 76 65 {62} 858 741
i 780 76 65 (62} 859 741

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, purchases represent loans advanced plus accrued interest and sales

represent loans repaid.

Unrealised
jains/
Total gains/ (losses)
[{: T3] recognised
racogrused At 31 through
At 1 Janusty through Dacember Income in
2015 income Purchases Sales 2015 2015
Society £m im im £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Swaptions 2 (1) - - 1 (1)
2 {1} — - 1 (1)
Financial assets held at fair value
through income
Shares, other variable vield securities and units 10 unit
trusts . .
— UK unlisted 110 17 - (3) 124 14
— Overseas unlisted 70 (3) 2 (6) 63 (4)
1Y
Loans secured on residential property 678 (134) 88 (40) 592 (134)
’ 858 {120) 90 {49) 779 {124)
860 (121) 90 {49) 780 (125)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control (continued)
Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservahle inputs {Level 3)
Included below are the significant unobservable inputs that impact the valuation of material level 3 assets and liabilities.

Fair value I

at 31

Faw value

8131

December | December Valpalion Unobservable Range of unobservable inpuls Relationship of unchservable
Group 2016 1 2015 1echnigue(s) inputs  {probability - weighted average) nputs o far value
Description 1 tm | £m
Financial assets l
Derivative financial
Instruments !
. Higher interest rate
. Interest rate Could be several g - X
Swaptions 1 1 Mark-to-model . . volatility results in
volatihty percentage points .
higher contract value.
1 1t 1

Financlal assets held at falr value through income

Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts

Adjusted net

Could vary significantly

The higher the price

e A r———. ————

’,,,____.._._._.___.
3

1loday ordalens
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= UK unlisted 120 125 asset method Price per unit due to the range of perunit, the hlg_her the
holdings fair value
Distributions  Could vary significantly The' fal_r va_lue vanes
. on distributions/calls
or calls since due to the range of . |
. and period since last
last valuation holdings N
valuation
Adjusted net Could vary significantly The higher the price
- Overseas unlisted 55 64 / Price per unit due to the range of per unit, the higher the
asset method . .
holdings fair value
Distributions Could vary significantly The- fal.r va!ue vanes
. on distributions/calls
or calls since due to the range of N .
. - and period since last
last valuation holdings .
valuation
The spread (tlogether
. , . . ith the underlying risk
Loans secured on residential Discounted Varies based on with t .e underlying
685 593 Spread free yield curve) forms
property cash flow cohorts of loans .
the discount rate used
to value the cashflows
. Prepayment rate will
Prepayments 3.5%-7% determine the profile of
expected cashflows
Mortality and ) . Mortality al:ld Iong-le'rm
Annuitant mortality care rate will determine
long-term care .
X tables are applied the profile of expected
assumptions
cashflows
L 8601 782
1 8611 783
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Notes to the Financial Statements continves
Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control (continued)

Sensitivity to changes in unobservable Inputs (Level 3}

The only financial instrument which is significantly impacted by reasonably possible changes in unobservable inputs is the loans’
secured on residential property. The loans secured on residential property are sensitive to changes in discount rate spread, which
includes the profit and hiquidity premium as well as the No Negative Equity Guarantee risk allowance. The impact of reasonabiy
possible alternative assumptions is shown in the table below:

2018 1 2015
o Sy poag alita. Reasonably possible aligrnative
assumpiions AsSsSUMPLIONS
Decranse

Uncbservable |Current fair  Increase in in tah Current faks Increase in  Decrease in

Input value talr value value value fair value isit value

Description I £m m im ‘ £m £m £m
Loans secured on residential property Discount rates 685 38 {(35) 593 34 {31)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2016

4. Risk management and control {continued)

¢) Credit counterparty risk

Credit counterpanty risk {credit risk) is defined as the risk of
loss if another party fails to perform its obligations or fails
to perform them in a umely fashion. Exposure to credit risk
may arise in connection with a single transaction or an
aggregation of transactions (not necessarily the same type)
with a single counterparty.

The Group encounters credit counterparty risk from different
sources, firstly within the business activities associated with its
insurance, investment and retirement products and secondly in
the financia! assets held in the Group’s investment portfolio.

Credit counterparty risk is managed via a Group policy and

risk limits covering aspects such as total exposure, and
concentration. Group counterparty exposures are monitored by
Group ALCO, with ultimate oversight of risk being undertaken by
the Risk Commitiee.

The principal credit counterparty risks within the Group are
as foliows:

Investment counterparties

The principal other source of credit risk arises from the assets
held in the investment portfolic. The risk is that the investment
counterparty enters financial difficulties and the fair value of the
asset diminishes or the income stream is not paid; alternatively
the counterparty becomes insolvent and the value of the asset
is written off.

The investment portfolio contains a range of assets, including
equities, corporate bonds and other fixed income securities
and cash deposits. The credit counterparty risk policy
stipulates approved counterparties, permitted investments and
geographical territories, as well as detailing specific asset class
exposure limits, These are implemented within the investment
management agreement with Columbia Threadneedle
Investments. The policy and agreeménts also require that asset
holdings are within regulatory limits that restrict excessive
concentirations with individual counterparties or with particular
assel classes. th order to minimise its exposure to credit risk
the Group invesls primarily in higher graded assets, rated 8BB
and above.

In addition, the Group uses derivatives to transfer elements

of financial markets risk exposures. Where possible, significant
counterparty exposures from over-the-counter derivatives are
mitigated by the use of collateral. The fair value of the derivative
is matched by collateral received from the counterparty, which
increases or reduces in line with the contract’s fair value.

The collateral can be sold or re-pledged by the Group and

is repayable if the contract terminates or the contract’s fair
value decreases. Details of collateral received and pledged is
included within the offsetting disclosure on page 151.

Loans secured on resldential and commercial property

The retirement business provides residential and commercial
mortgage lending and is exposed to credit risk arising from
mortgage loans pravided. This risk is managed by using the
property as security against the lean, assessment of the

risk and maintaining a low loan to value ratio. The Group has
appeinted AgFe as its mandated criginator and assel manager
for commercial mortgages, using their considerable expertise 1o
source and underwrite loan prospects. Note 13 provides further
disclosure and provisions for ‘No Negative Equity Guarantees’
on residential mortgages.

Relnsurance counterpartles

Reinsurance agreements are entered into to transfer an
element of potential insurance risk exposure from contract
liabilities. This does not, however, discharge the Group's liability
as primary insurer. If a2 reinsurer fails to pay a reinsurance
ctaim, the Group remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. To manage this exposure the creditworthiness

of reinsurers is considered by reviewing their financial strength
prior to finalisation of any contract, which is then regularly
reviewed, Group exposures are regularly monitored by

Group ALCO.

Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsyrance concentration risk is minimised through
contracting with a diverse range of reinsurance counterparties
with credit ratings within our risk appetite. Reinsurance
concentration risk is managed through reviewing the credit
rating of reinsurance counterparties.

Insurance recelvables

Insurance sales expose the Group to credit risk from
policyholders and intermediaries for outstanding premiums.
The creditworthiness of the intermediaries is assessed and
credit limits are used to manage any potential concentration
risk associated with individual counterparties.

The ¢creditworthiness of policyholders who take out premium
finance on general insurance products is assessed at the time
of sale and outstanding premiums are monitored and collected
via a dedicated budget accounts function,

No further credit risk provision is required in excess of the
normal provision for doubtful receivables.

Credit exposures also arise within general insurance, where
claims expense recoveries are due from other insurers’
policyholders who are at fault for any repairs expense suffered
by the Group's policyholders. These exposures are managed
via a dedicated recoveries team and an indu